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Seeing is believing. At 1/0,we have begun to see

our vision turn into reality as we continue to deliver on
our full-wave vision. This rezlility is visible in the three
real-world examples showcased in this year's report.

During 2006, we successfully executed on our

strategy and, as a result, have achieved several

noteworthy milestones. i

te by 40+ percent

Grew revenues and operating inco
Reached a $1 billion market capitalization

Signed BP and Apache as multi-year launch partners for Firefly®

Executed a $29 million purchase orlder for the fourth VSO system with RXT

Won a $60 million competitive tender with ONGC, believed to be the
largest sale of land systems in theIhistory of the seismic industry
f

Won the largest deal in Sensor histary to supply geophones to Saudi Aramco

Launched our Scorpion® land acguisition system to improve reliability,
reduce costs, and sustain recent market share gains

Completed the acguisition of two new GXT BasinSPAN™ programs in India
and the Arctic, with estimated revehues from each in excess of $25 miliion

Commercialized the reverse time migration processing technigue,
winning the Best Exploration Techpofogy award from World Oil

Won a tender for the largest full-wlave processing project in company
history at Sinopec's XinChang field in China
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President 8 LED

to our SHAREHOLDERS

During 2008, 1/0 and you, our shareholder, began to capture
the benefits of the full-wave vision we laid out for the company
in 2003. Financial performance improved significantly for 1/0
as many of our businesses delivered both record revenues and

operating income during the year.

I/0 consolidated revenues increased 39% versus 2005 to
$503.6 million. Consolidated operating income increased at a
faster rate, rising 62% to $39.9 million.

robust ENVIRDNMENT
The company clearly benefited from a robust hydrocarbon price environment
and continued high levels of E&P activity during the year. West Texas
Intermediate crude was priced above $60 per barrel during most of 2008,
nearly 50% higher than its average price just two years earlier. Oil & gas
companies continued to ramp-up their exploration expenditures to take
advantage of these historically high-price levels and to attempt to sustain
production in an era in which oil and gas is becoming harder to find and more
costly to produce. While seismic expenditures have grown at a 10-15%
annual rate over the last several years, comparable to the growth of the overall
E&F sector, seismic still accounts for only $10 billion of the $300 billion
total annual E&P spend.

goining MARKET SHARE

1/0's performance clearly benefited from a rising tide in 2008. Yet, sector
growth alone cannot account for the financial performance delivered by the
corporation. Instead, our performance can also be attributed to the gains we
are making within the rﬁarketplace and to improved internal operations as we
execute upon our strategy. Customers see real value in our mission to solve
the most complex subsurface imaging challenges using differentiated solutions

that deliver improved seismic images at reduced cost and in less time.
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launch partners for EIREFLY

Our land businesses performed well in most areas. Our FireFly team signed

up both BP and Apache during the year as launch partners for our first
cableless system. The financial commitments made by these two oil & gas
companies allowed us to deliver a high station count land acquisition system
in late November. It's a testament to the effarts of our development team,
consisting of personnel from several business units across the company,

and our ¢ollaborative relationship with BP, Apache, and their selected field
acquisition contractors, that we collectively achieved this milestone, The early

results from the first FireFly survey at BP's Wamsutter field appear promising

and we are now preparing for our second FireFly project, this time involving
Apache, in early 2007 {you can read more about our Warmsutter FireFly

project later in the Annual Report).

] record year in LAND Other land businesses had record years as well. Our Sensor
As much as we believe the cableless architecture of FireFly will change the subsidiary, the technical and market share |leader in the
game in land seismic imaging, we continue to win back market share in the geophone segment, delivered both record revenues and
cable-based world. Uptake of System Four® and its successor product— operating income. Sensor continues to make significant
Scorpion, launched in October—improved during the year. In the third quarter, progress in reducing its development, manufacturing,
we closed the then-largest land systems sale in /O history with a seismic and distribution costs in order to sustain their leadership in
contractor in Russia. Then, in December 2006, we closed what we believe a highly competitive market, The capstone of the year was the
is the largest land systems sale in the history of the seismic industry when we largest geophone sale in Sensor history, an award of 37,000
signed a $60 million contract for deliveries in 2007 with ONGC, the national land and marsh strings by the Chinese contractor BGF, which
oil company of India. These sales, along with others throughout the year, they will initially be deploying in the Middle East. We also exit
continued to increase the number of /O systems that are deployed throughout the year with a significant backlog in our vibroseis truck market;
the world. While many are outfitted in an analog configuration to record with more than 50% of our production capacity in 2007 has already
conventional geophones, a significant number, including all of the systems been sold to a variety of land acquisition contractors. Although
sold to ONGC, are configured to record seismic data using our VectorSeis® gross sales margins are thin in the vibroseis segment, our low-cost
full-wave sensors. As a result, we exit the year with an estimated 80% market manufacturing and go-to-market model enables this business  —
share in full-wave land systems. to make healthy contributions to our bottom line.

o Tri 15-20% annual growth in the number of active land seismic crews worldwide
-~ "Ill'nl;.'ﬁ

Qil & gas company desire to increase sampling densities to improve the quality
and utility of land seismic images

$100+ million (40%) growth in sector revenues from land systems since 2004

Growing sector backlogs for key technologies, including vibroseis vehicles,
geophones, and land systems

Increasing pressures on the health, safety, and envirenmental aspects of land
seismic operations

Growing interest in cableless acquisition methods, increasing the acceptance of
both 3C digital sensors and full-wave imaging
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strong performance n MBAINE
Qur marine businesses had an equally strong year. The Marine

Imaging Systems group began in-water field trials of their DigiFIN™
lateral streamer control product in the first half of the year with

a major marine contractor. DigiFIN is a unique offering. It builds
upon the traditional streamer positioning & control competencies
of our DigiCOURSE® product line while addressing an emerging
market requirement for tighter streamer spacing. Marine seismic
contractors want to pull maote streamers, closer together, in order
to improve both acquisition productivity and spatial sampling

in the subsurface (which directly translates to improved image
quality}. With additional new-build seismic vessels scheduled to

enter the market this year and next, a trend towards more and

new software from CONCEPT SYSTEMS

White our marine group provides ihe in-water sclutions for marine contractors,
Concept Systems provides the software that acts as the command & control
‘nerve center' of acquisition operations. Concept introduced their Orca®
software package in April 2006. Built upon a proven platform, yet incorporating
several new, purpose-designed features, Orca has rapidly become the
streamer command & contro! system of choice among contractors that are
conducting complex survey operations. During the year, Concept also played
a vital role in the FireFly development effort as they leveraged their expertise
in navigation and positioning and built the Connex™ command & control
systemn. As a result of Orca sales, and strong performance in several other
software and services segments, Concept Systems delivered record revenue
and operating income results in 2006.

longer streamer cables, and a desire to more accurately control
streamer positions during wide-azimuth and 4D surveys,
our streamer positioning & control products are well aligned with

the evolving requirements of our customer base.

On the marine full-wave front, our VectorSeis Ocean (VSO)
redeployable seabed acquisition system continued to deliver

significant image quality enhancements to the oil & gas

companies and substantial productivity advantages to RXT,
our exclusive acquisition contractor partner for this product.
in August 2008, RXT issued a $29 million purchase order for
their third VSO system. In December, we received another

$29 million purchase order for a fourth system. Once delivery
of this fourth system is made in the second half of 2007, RXT
will be operating over 200 kilometers of VectorSeis-enabled, VSO

seabed arrays worldwide.

Imagu courtesy of RXT

i
Exploration for prospects in deeper waters and deeper in lhle geologic column
20+ naw marine vessels expected to enter the market beere 2009

A move toward more and longer stieamer cables and tighter llreamer spacing to
increase sampling densities and improve image quality ’

Introduction of complex acquisition geomelries (like wide- and mulli-azimuth) to
batter image subsalt {argets ‘

$200+ milion (60%) growih in sector revenues from marine dquipmenl since 2004
; Growing sector backlogs for key technologies, especially streamer cables

Increasing penetration of new acquisition plattarms, includirLg node systems
and full-wave seabed systems ’

Introduction of new processing algorithms, like beam migraiion and reverse
time migration (RTM}
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A retum to basics in understanding petroleum systems at the basin level
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BRSINSFAN PHOGHAMS

',

ArcticSPAN ,;.ﬁg
RS

D Ultra-deep geophysical data libraries from GXT

expanding GRT'S BASINSPAN PROGRAMS
At our GX Technology (GXT) subsidiary, we made significant progress in

a number of areas. We continued to identify new regions around the world
in which the oil & gas companies want a basin-scale understanding of a
petroleum system. During 2006, we extended several of our BasinSPAN
data libraries, including in West Africa and the Gulf of Mexico. In the Gulf,
we delivered several full-wave seismic lines that were acquired using VSO
and processed by GXT. Since this full-wave dataset was in close proximity
to an existing data line in GXT's GuifSPAN™ data library acquired using
streamer technology, our customers have a heads-up comparison of the

merits of full-wave seabed imaging versus P-wave-only streamer data.

During the year, we also completed acquisition of BasinSPAN
programs in two new areas. IndiaSPAN™ acquisition was
concluded in Novemnber, providing customers with a comprehensive
structural framework for India’s deep offshore waters. In December,
we completed the first phase of ArcticSPAN]” which provides
high-resolution, subsurface images of prospective targets offshore
northern Canada and Alaska. We also laid the groundwork for
additional BasinSPAN programs in 2007 and 2008 by working
with key government agencies and prospective oil & gas company

underwriters in other petroleum provinces.

extending GRT'S PROCESSING LEADERSHIP

The data processing business of GXT also performed well.
We improved our backlog significantly as the year went on
and expanded our Houston-based computing center to 13,000
CPUs, which collectively provide more than 85 Teraflops of
compute capacity (one Teraflop defines the ability to perform one
trillion floating point computations per second). Our international
expansion continued as we opened a new imaging services
center in Port-of-Spain, Trinidad to handle customer requests
for advanced seismic data processing capabilities in a region
estimated to hold five billion barrels of oil equivalent. GXT
continued to invest in extending their technical leadership

in high potential growth areas. Our state-of-the-art, reverse
time migration (RTM) algorithm was fully commercialized.
We undertook RTM projects in the Gulf of Mexico, North Sea,
and West Africa for a variety of clients with extremely positive
results and customer feedback. Late in the year, GXT received
the World Qil Award for Best Exploration Technology for their
development and implementation of the RTM technique.
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advancements in EULL—WAVE PROCESSING

On the full-wave processing front, we continued to invest in the

algorithms and workflows that better enable efficient processing
of the VectorSeis data acquired with our FireFly, Scorpion,

and VSO platforms. We have geared up to process the extremely
large seismic datasets that FireFly can acquire. During the year,
we developed a high throughput seismic trace engine, which we
call Autobahn;" along with new ways to organize, process, and
analyze large land and marine seismic datasets. One of the
technigues we're most excited about, and plan to apply to

BP's Wamsutter data, is called offset vector tile (OVT) processing.
Sorting and processing the data using OVT methods is a critical
step in our journey to provide the most densely sampled, highest
quality seismic images to our clients.

Our efforts are being recognized by a number of customers in
a number of regions, exemplified by the award of the largest,
integrated full-wave processing contract in company history
by a subsidiary of the Chinese energy firm Sinopec in July.
In connection with this award, we'll not only be processing
the full-wave VectorSeis data, but also undertaking advanced

reservoir studies that characterize rock and fluid properties.

The integrated seismic datasets we deliver will ultimately be
used by Sinopec to select new well locations and optimize its
drifling program. Our move to provide high-impact consulting
services that result in ‘drill here’ maps signifies the value the
I/Q family of companies is perceived to be capable of delivering

using full-wave technology.

butlding OUR FOUNDATION

In addition to these accomplishments, we're preparing the company for

the next wave of growth. Throughout 2008, we strengthened our financial
capabilities. Under the leadership of CFO Brian Hanson, who joined in May,
we've continued to add new personnel and reinforce our control processes
across the company. We'll continue to invest in the best people and the latest
IT systems, and incorporate additional best practice processes, to ensure that
our financial foundation is stable enough to support the company's anticipated
growth in the years ahead. During the year, we remediated the three material

weaknesses identified in 2005, resulting in an unqualified opinion this year.

In December, we announced a recrganization of the company into two
divisions— Systems and Solutions. Our Systems Division will focus on

the core equipment and software technologies that seismic contractors buy
and that many traditionally associate with Input/Qutput, including our cable-
based land recording systems, streamer technologies, and geophones.

Our Solutions Division will focus on the needs of our oil & gas company
customers and how to best design and deliver a unique package of hardware,
software, and value-added services in any particular imaging situation.

Jim Hollis, who spearheaded the development and commercialization of FireFly,
began leading our Solutions Division starting January 1, 2007. Qur FireFly,
Seabed, GXT Data Processing, and GXT Integrated Seismic Solutions (1ISS)
business units all report to Jim.
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,feugragmg OUR MOMENTUM

The upcoming year should prove to be exciting as we continue to benefit
from a robust E&P environment and see our advanced imaging technologies
continue to gain widespread acceptance in the marketplace. In 2007,
we have several areas of focus. The first is ensuring the successful
commercialization of FireFly. This includes our ongoing refinements to the
hardware, software, and processing elements of the FireFly ecosystem.
We also intend to sign up several additional early adopter launch customers

in key regions throughout the world.

On the cable-based land systems front, we are committed to increasing
our momentum in the marketplace. With the launch of Scorpion, we have
improved the reliability of our cable-based offering and have seen our mark

share improve in three years from the high teens to approximately 25%.

et

As we continue to drive reductions in Scorpion’s ¢cost of goods, we expect to

see the competitiveness of the product and its associated margins improve

significantly. Successfully delivering the 14 cable-based land systems
to ONGC is high on our list of priorities for 2007; as we capture cost
improvements throughout 2007, we expect to see the actual margins for the

ONGC project exceed the forecasts used in pricing out the tender.

The year 2007 may prove to be the year of land in IfO. To suppert the gains
we expect to make with both FireFly and Scorpion, we have significantly
ramped up our efferts in land processing. We are exploring a number ot
options to broaden the scope and scale of GXT's imaging footprint in

markets where we think our advanced processing capabilities can make

a profitable contribution either stand-alone, or in support of our land imaging

systems. These efforts, along with regional rollouts of additional BasinSPAN

programs, should ensure that the GXT business units in data processing,
data libraries, and Integrated Seismic Solutions continue to sustain their

growth trajectbries.

While land will receive significant attention from /O {and the
broader E&P industry} in 2007, our marine businesses should
continue to be significant contributors to our success. We are
committed to delivering on the VSO systems that have already
been ordered and are collaborating with RXT to design the
next-generation platform for seabed acquisition. In addition,
we are working together with RXT to demonstrate the merits
of full-wave seabed imaging to the oil & gas companies in arder
to build demand and expand the market. We also are working
to ensure the continued penetration of our DigiFIN and Orca
products in a marine streamer market that is both growing and
moving to ever more complex seismic surveys for which these

products are uniquely suited.

the best 1s YET TO COME

I'm excited about how much progress we made against our vision
in 2006, as well as how far we have come as a company since
2003. Over the last several years, we have laid the foundation for
future growth and have improved our ability to deliver operational
results to the bottom fine. While we could revel in our successes

to date, | believe the best is yet to come.

Thanks in advance for your continued commitment and support.

QR

Robert P. Peebler
President & CEO

COMPRRISON OF ULATIVE TOTAL RETUAN

2005

2006

This graph compares our cumulative total stockholder return on
our common stock for the five years ending December 31, 2006,
assuming reinvestment of dividends, with {i) the S&P 500 Index
and (i) the Hemscott Industry Group 124 — Oil and Gas Equipment
and Services Index, an index of companies that we believe are
comparable in terms of industry and their lines of businass.

In the stock perfarmance graph contained in our 2006 proxy
statement, we compared our cumulalive stockholder return with
the S&P 500 Index and with a group of three peer companies
consisting of OYQ Geospace Corporation, Bolt Technelogy
Corporation, and Compagnie Générale de Géophysique (CGG).
After considering changes in our business and in the businesses
and market capitalizations of last year's peer group, we concluded
that those three companies no longer provided an adequate
comparison and that a more meaningful comparison would be the
Oil and Gas Equipment and Services Index,

The graph assumes that $100 was invested in our common stock

2004

2005

008 and the abeve indices on January 1, 2002, We have nol paid

any dividends or our commeon stock during the applicable period.
Historic stock price performance is not necessarily indicative of
e clnel prire nedarmanca
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reueahn

RESULTS

For nearly a decade, I/O has been developing
and acquiring the technoloigies needed to make
full-wave imaging a reality. ;I_"n 20086, several I/O
customers began to realizé significant benefits
from their applications of full-wave seismic
techniques. The following pages highlight three
success cases in which full-wave imaging helped
our customers develop hig;iher quality insights
into their E&P assets in eﬁipient, HSE-conscious
ways. The common thread in all cases was I/O's
VectorSeis sensor and the solutions approach we
took to address the geophyszcal and operational
challenges facing our Cllents The emergmg results
are encouraging and prowde some insight into
how full-wave imaging can make a real difference

in both onshore and offshore applications.




FULL-WAVYE
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Firefly

FireFly is a cableless, full-wave land
acquisition platform, offering dramatic

. improvements in system weight,
operational productivity, and health, safety,
and environmental (HSE) performance,
as well as in the quality and utility of the

seismic images that result.
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REG!ONAL CONTENXT

Recent exploration success has hinted at
Wyoming's potential as a major supply center

for North America’s natural gas requirements.
One of the key producing areas in Wyoming is
Wamsutter, an asset that was discovered in the
1950s and that continues to be a major producer
even today. Though more than 2,000 wells
populate Wamsutter's wide-open landscape,
legacy geologic and geophysical studies reveal the
potential for an extended program of successful
development wells.

BP is an operator of more than 320,000 acres

at Wamsutter. This energy leader continues to
invest heavily in the United States, the source

of one-quarter of BP's oil & gas production,

as evidenced by the company's announcement in-
2005 of a $2 billion capital program for Wamsutter.
These funds, to be spent over the next ten years
on development drilling and field trials of advance
E&P technologies, are designed to double ;
Wamsutter's production rate over the next deca

WAMSUTTER, WYOMING
LAT: 41.6667 LONG. -107.9667

imaging ond operatonal CHALLENGES

Land seismic imaging presents serious challenges to both the E&P
operators who commission the programs and the seismic contractors
who acquire the data on their behalf. According to lan Jack, a retired
Distinguished Exploration Advisor at BP, “Onshore data are grossly
under-sampled. The average seismic crew typically carries from two-

to four-thousand channels on a fand survey today. This is at least one
order of magnitude less than what they should be carrying. The second
challenge is operational. Land seismic operations, both in an absolute
sense and certainly compared to marine acquisition, are slow, expensive,

and, if dong improperly, can impact safety and the environment.”

BP faced similar challenges at Wamsutter. Although previous geophysical
surveys proved valuable to BP’s subsurface mapping efforts, the
company required higher quality seismic data to better expose subtle,
complex reservoir largets throughout the field and optimize the return on

its $2 billion investment.

The best way to achieve this objectiva is to increase data sampling density,
which itself is achieved by deploying more sensars, closer tegether.
Unfortunately, this presented BP with a major challenge at Wamsutter, an
E&P asset that is located on Bureau of Land Management (BLM) acreage.
The field is governed by mandates which limit the amount of environmental

disturbance that can take place during seismic or other E&P operations.

Devising a seismic survey of the magnitude that BP required was nearly
impossible with existing cable-based land acquisition platforms.
Traditional cable-based acquisition would have required more equipment,
field workers, layout time, and equipment repairs, which would have elevated

the costs, safety risks, and environmental remediation requirements.
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the 1/0_SOLUTION

In 2003, a team of I/O engineers identified the potential for a clean-sheet

approach to land imaging. They envisioned a world in which cables
disappeared and rapidly advancing data storage, telecommunications,

and power systems technologies could be integrated within a new land
imaging platform. The effort was internally funded and, over the next two years,

moved into high gear as development activities progressed.

Customer input, from a select group of il & gas companies and seismic
acquisition contractors, was solicited throughout the development process
and incorporated into the system that was to become FireFly. A key part
of the feedback provided was that FireFly needed to be more than just a
sensor and a recording platform; instead, it had to encompass an entirely
new approach to the way seismic surveys are dasigned, how acquisition
operaiio.'ns are conducted, and how the data are processed. As a result,
the I/O development efforts included scientific and engineering input from
all areas of the company, including our Concept Systems and

GX Technology subsidiaries.

At the 2005 Society of Exploration Geophysicists convention, /O announced
the world's first full-wave, cableless land acquisition systern. With strong
input from BP and others, FireFly was built to address the pain points of

acquiring densely sampled seismic data in a cost-effective and environmentally

friendly manner. In order to deliver on this multi-faceted objective, /O sought
to develop a complete solution that covers all aspects of a seismic survey,

from its initial design to how the acquired data are processed and interpreted.

Shortly thereafter, BP and Apache moved beyond their advisory roles and
were announced as commercial FireFly launch partners. Each company
committed funds to deploy the first system on their key exploration and
development assets around the world, including the Wamsutter field.

By leveraging wireless technology and eliminating the cables
used in traditional land systems, FireFly reduces the cost, time,
and safety risks involved in a survey by requiring fewer workers
to lay out cables and by minimizing cable repairs. Reducing these
acquisition costs enables more money to be spent on sensors
and recording units, providing densely sampled, high-resalution
subsurface data in return. At the same time, cable removal
decreases environmental impact and allows companies to
implement more flexible survey designs that are better aligned
with their overall subsurface imaging objectives.

FireFly encompasses more than just a recording box and a
sensor. The entire FireFly ecosystem combines advanced
hardware, software, and operational and processing techniques
that revolutionize land imaging. One key ecosystern component
is Connex. Designed by Concept Systems, Connex navigation,
positioning, and data management software will change the
way land seismic surveys will be designed and how acquisition
operations will be conducted.

Current land surveying utilizes stakes and flags that are placed

in the ground to mark where the sensors and shot points should
be located. In addition to being costly, this archaic process runs
the risk of significant inaccuracy as the surveying operation may
take place weeks {or months) before seismic acquisition begins.

FireFly changes all this through an automated, software-driven
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approach that uses highly accurate, handheld navigation units
to guide field workers to the appropriate deployment points on

a real-time basis during acquisition operations. This advancement
reduces the cost, time, and environmental footprint of not only
surveying, but also of the entire acquisition operation. By organizing
raw information in an efficient, accurate way, Connex delivers
processing-ready data to the geophysicists so they can begin
their job sooner.

In order to process the huge volumes of seismic data that will be
collected by FireFly-enabled surveys, GX Technology scientists
developed a new software called Autobahn. They also have
implemented new techniques for advanced imaging, including
offset vector tiling {OVT), to take full advantage of the densely
sampled data acquired by FireFly.

the emerging AESULTS
In late 2006, the first FireFly system was deployed at Wamsutter.

The harsh weather conditions presented a few operational
challenges, yet FireFly's performance was an overall success.
The first Wamsutter survey involved recording approximately
7,200 shot points in a 28-square-mile survey area. The acquisition
crew averaged approximately 700 shots per day with a dynamite
energy source; peak production was 1,001 shots during a

six-hour period.

GX Technology has begun to process the Wamsutter data.
The initial results appear promising, suggesting much higher
quality seismic images from the field will be obtained.
Throughout 2007, GXT and BP geophysicists will continue to
extend the types of processing techniques they apply to the
data. Over time, their collective goal is to obtain high-resolution
images of, and to better characterize, the subtie reservoirs at
Wamsutter. The final image quality from this first commercial
FireFly survey has the clear potential to illuminate details in
the subsurface that surpass any seismic data that has been

acquired at Wamsutter.

extending the SUCCESS
/O and BP have already begun to plan for the future. Geophysicists are

identifying assets within the BP portfolio that would benefit from the type of
densely sampled, low environmental impact seismic acquisition that FireFly

makes possible.

In early 2007, the first FireFly system will be moved from Wamsutter to an
asset in northeast Texas that is operated by Apache Corporation, our second
FireFly launch partner. Apache intends to use FireFly to better characterize
the target reservoirs and to measure the productivity of FireFly-enabled vs,
conventional seismic acquisition in this agriculturally sensitive region. Over the
next several years, both BP and Apache will be handing the initial FireFly
system back and forth as they test how far they will be able to push the

boundaries of land seismic imaging.

FireFly has generated averwhelming excitemant throughout the industry.
i/0 has been approached by several oil & gas companies about deploying
the system on their key assets. Some are intrigued by the system's potential
to acquire densely sampled data, an imaging benefit that helps in most every
exploration situation, but especially in the many target reservoirs that are
characterized by thin sands, fracturing, complex geology, or stratigraphic
traps. Others are intrigued by the cableless aspect of FireFily, which makes
the system well-suited for challenging environments such as urban areas,

mountainous terrain, or environmentally sensitive lands.

We think we've sparked a revolution in land imaging that has only just begun,
The possibilities are truly limitless as we expand the hardware and software
elements of the broader FireFly ecosystem and move to provide value-added
services across the entire land imaging workflow, from survey design to data
processing and interpretation.




Sinopec sees the FULL- lUFIUE

DIFFERENCE

in their reservoirs in China

UectorSeis

VeclorSeis is a digital, 3C, single-point

sensor that measures true 3D ground

motion and records the full seismic wavefield.
When VectorSeis is used to acquire seismic
data, geophysicists obtain enhanced subsurface

images that allow them to better plan their

exploration and development drilling programs.
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REGICNAL CONTEKXT

As China becomes the ‘factory to the world,'
both its economy and its thirst for energy are
growing at a double-digit clip. Over the last
several years, Chinese oil & gas companies
have embarked on a strategic quest for
hydrocarbons, striking mega-deals with leading
resource holders in the Middle East, West
Africa, Central Asia, and Canada, Nonetheless,
China has a sizeable domestic resource base
(roughly half the size of that of the United States)
that has yet to be fully exploited.

Sinopec is one of three quasi-national oil
companies under the ownership and control of
the Chinese government. Sinopec's mandate
includes the exploration and production of oil
and natural gas, oil refining, and the production
and sale of petrochemicals. Sinopec is the
second largest crude oil producer in China.
One of the main areas of production for Sinopec
is the Sichuan Province, an area expected to
receive 70 billion Yuan (nearly $9 billion) in new
capital investment over the next three years.

imaging and operational CHALLENGES

While Sichuan 1s a known gas-producing
region, the productivity of individual wells
can vary significantly, even within the same
field and geologic horizan. This variation 1s
often driven by natural fracturing within
the reservoir rocks; increased fracturing
generally correlates with higher well
productivity, while well productiuity falls

as fracturing decrenses.
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In 2008, a full-scals seismic program was acquired over a
529 square kilometer area in the Sichuan Province. It was
one of the largest onshore full-wave imaging programs ever
designad, with 10,400 shots and 3,168 live recording stations.
I/O’s System Four served as the acquisition platform for our
three-component, digital full-wave VectorSeis sensor. Ultimately,

nearly 100 million traces of data were acquired. Since the survey
was designed with high-station density, the recorded full-wave
data was well sampled, which makes it more valuable as an input

in seismic data processing.

in 2008, I/O’s GX Technology subsidiary (GXT) was awarded the
processing contract for XinChang in a competitive tender against

other seismic imaging companies. A full suite of processing and
interpretation steps are currently being applied to extract high-
Subsurface fractures aren't the only challenge in Sichuan. One of the larger resolution seismic images and to resolve subtle properties within
structuras—known as XinChang—sits beneath an area having significant the reservoir zones, including an analysis of shear-wave splitting.
natural and man-made obstructions. The area is denssly populated.
Several highways and railways, as well as a network of pipelines and rivers,
cut across the field. As a result, seismic acquisition systems must be flexible
and reliable to ensure the health, safety, and environmental requirements
of both seismic field workers and nearby residents.

the 1/0 SOLUTION

In 2003, Sinopec tested the viability of full-wave imaging by conducting a
2D pilot test in a small area of the Zhongyuan oil field. Full-wave techniques
are often useful in fracture detection and mapping, since the down-going
acoustic energy will often split when it hits a natural fracture in the subsurface.
Conventional seismic techniques are less effective in fracture detection.
However, by using a three-component, full-wave sensor like VactorSeis,
and by applying specialized seismic data processing technigues like AZIM,
this shear-wave splitting can be characterized and mapped. The results of
the 2003 pilot test were encouraging; areas with significant shear-wave
splitting correlated with existing wells having better historical productivity.




“Wle are convinced of the benefits of
full-wouve imaging in this area. The I/0
family of companies has the type of
cutting-edge toolkit, the experienced
personnel, and the collaborative
opproach we require. The row data
looks promising. | look forward to our
ongoing cooperation on this imaging
program and on octher opportunities

that may emerge in the future.”

XU XIANGRONG,

President of Scuthwest Gos Company ot Sinopec

FULL -WAVE SOLUTIONS FOR SINOFEC 15
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the emerging BESULTS

While the processing and interpretation stage of the project is ongoing,
the early results are exceptionally promising. The seismic data contains
broad bandwidth, which makes it well suited to resolving thin bedding
layers within the reservoir and to detecting subtie structural features in the
subsurface such as faulting. In addition, the shear-wave data recorded by
VectorSeis is proving to be highly useful in detecting natural fracture patterns
and intensity, as well as the distribution of gas saturation in the reservoir.
The combination of these measurements, made possible through an
integrated approach to full-wave seismic survey design, acquisition, and
processing, is allowing I/O and Sinopec personnel to identify the next round
of highly prospective drilling targets in the XinChang structure.

extending the SUCCESS

The XinChang project is proving the value of full-wave imaging in fractured
reservoirs. Given the importance of this reservoir type in China and many
other regions—including the Americas, Middle East, and Russia—we
anticipate being able to conduct a significant number of similar projects for
oil & gas producers throughout the world. In the nearterm, the results have
provided such insight to Sinopec that we have begun discussions with them
about a regional partnership to unlock the resource potential in the

Sichuan Province and at other Sinopec assets worldwide.
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- DIFFERENCE

in the Gulf of Mexico

UectorSeis Ocean [USO]

VectorSeis Ocean is an innovative

system for seismic acquisition using
redeployable, ocean-bottom cable (OBC).
VS0 is designed to minimize acquisition
and data processing costs, improve image
quality, and reduce HSE risk profiles.
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REGIONAL CONTERT

Demand for natural gas in the United States
continues to increase, driven by the desire for
cleaner burning fuels. However, E&P operators

are challenged by an asset base that is declining

at an ever-faster rate, by obstacles to accessing
resource-rich areas, and by the difficulties of imaging
reservoirs that are located deeper in the geologic
column. Fortunately, gas resources in many regions
are being made more economically attractive through
the application of new technologies. Cne such
region is the Gulf of Mexico and its deep sediments
located offshore Louisiana.

The Guif of Mexico Shelf, while being rigorously i
developed over the years, is relatively underexplored  «
deeper in the geclogic section. Fewer than 10% -
of.all wells drilled-in the Gulf of Mexico have
penetrated structures below 15, 000 feet. Yet the
Minerals Management Service (MMS) estimates

there could be up to 55 TCF of recoverable gas in

the deeper reservoirs of the Gulf.

imaging ond operational CHALLENGES

In order to achieve economic success

in deep gas exploration in the Gulf,

o leading E6P producer required step-
change 1mprovements in seismic 1mage
quality and acquisition productivity. As
of e00e, traditional seismic technologies
were inadequate to extract enough usaoble
seismic signal to image ultra-deep sediments,
image complex subsalt structures and
beneath gas clouds, and acquire data

in the vicinity of significant platform

infrastructure.
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Shooting & Deployment Vessel

Recording Buoy

l.oad-in Cable

the 1/0 SOLUTION

The oil & gas company turned to I/O subsidiary GX Technology for an imaging
solution. By the fall of 2004, /O had developed and delivered a cost-
effective seabed acquisition system that met our client’s imaging requirements.
Called VectorSeis Qcean (VSO), this system is centered upon the award-
winning VectorSeis sensor and uses a unique cable system that minimizes
unwanted noise that can obscure relevant seismic signals. VSO is able to

record broadband, full-wave data with signal fidelity unmatched by any other /O tumed to Reservoir Exploration Technology (RXT), a seabed

marine seismic acquisition technique. acquisition specialist headquartered in Norway, as the faunch
partner for the first VSO deployment. RXT developed proprietary

The VSO system incorporates radio-controlled, buoy-based recording methods for deploying the VSO cables and buoys to ensure safe

technology that allows seabed acquisition by a single vessel—a unique and efficient data acquisition. Since going ‘wet’ with the first VSO

capability in the industry that improves productivity and reduces the cost system in 2004, RXT has acquired hath proprietary and multi-client

of data retrieval compared to other methods. VSO also utilizes the Gator® data for a number of companies, purchased two additional VSO

command & control system from /O subsidiary Concept Systems. systems from /O, and placed an order for a fourth system to be

Gator adds to the overall VSO solution as it enables precise navigation delivered in late 2007.

and positioning of the VSO array and source vessels and also serves o

integrate and quality control the numerous data streams that are generated GXT has been involved in processing the acquired data for

from each sub-system in the seismic acquisition operation. several VSO-related projects in the Gulf of Mexico. In each case,

GXT was able to apply a full suite of advanced algorithms and
regional expertise to extract high-resolution seismic images of

both shallow sediments and ultra-deep horizons that were of

interest to its clients.




FULL-WRVE SOLUTIONS IN THE GULF OF MERICO

LR

Frequency (Hz}

the RESULTS

Subsurface images delivered by GXT revealed features throughout
the geologic section with greater clarity and resolution compared
to existing towed streamer seismic data. Additionally, in some
areas, the V50 data showed events that previously had not
been identified. Overall, the frequency spectrum of the VSO
data demonstrates much broader bandwidth, with quality signal
obtained as low as 2-3 Hz and beyond 80 Hz {compared to

7-8 Hz and 60 Hz with nearby towed streamer data). This
added bandwidth directly corresponds to significantly increased
resolving power when interpreting the data, allowing faults

and other subtle structural features to be more clearly defined.
The ability to accurately record low frequencies and data with

a high signal-to-noise ratio enables imaging at depths that are
unachievable with competing marine streamer or ocean-bottom

cable acquisition methods.

In addition to delivering improved image quality, VSO has proven
its ability to acquire data in an efficient manner. The productivity
of RXT crews has continued to increase over time such that the
cost basis of V30-enabled seabed acquisition has begun to

approach that of towed streamer acquisition methods on certain

projects and in certain regions.

“Wle were pleased to place the order for our
fourth US0 system. US0 continues to deliver
improved imaging over traditional seabed
systems. Additionally, the versatility of the
system has enabled us to operate n varying
envirgnments ond has allowed us to go where

our customers need us, reqgardless of the
obstacles or the location.”

MIKE SCOTT
Chief Executive Gfficer at AXT

extending the SUCCESS

The comprehensive VSO solution—spanning a full-wave seabed recording
platform, Concept Systems’ Gator software, GXT's advanced imaging
methods, and RXT’s innovative operational techniques—has changed the
game in seabed seismic imaging. By providing E&P companies with the ability
to image with higher resolution and at greater depths, along with the capability
to acquire the data cost effectively, the VSO solution from I/ and its partners
is proving the value of full-wave imaging from the seabed.

VSO0 is likely to find application in many other regions around the world,
including offshore West Africa, the North Sea, the Caspian, Brazil, and Asia.
Its ability to efficiently acquire high-quality data, including in areas that contain
a large amount of infrastructure-related obstacles, make VSO a viable alternative

and provide a rich pipeline of future expansion opportunities.

VSO may also emerge as a preferred platform for subsalt imaging, at least
for water depths less than 2,000 meters. Because of its ability to be deployed
in a wide-azimuth geometry and to record broadband data, VSO has the
potential to capture the high-quality seismic data the E&P operators require

in areas beset by salt and that are notoriously difficuit to image.




financial HILGHLILH IS

years ended December 31
2006 2005 2004

{in thousands, except
per share data)

ITATEMENT OF OPERRTIONS DRTA

Product revenues $ 354,258 $ 237,359 $ 194,978
Service revenues 149,298 125,323 45,663
Net revenues 503,556 362,682 240,641
Cost of products 257,749 169,688 134,874
Cost of services 81,592 B6,6189 40,075
Gross profit 154,215 106,375 65,692
Operaling expenses (income):
Research and development 32,751 20,266 19,611
Marketing and sales 40,651 33,167 23,491
Seneral and administrative 40,807 28,227 29.748
_oss (gain} on sale of assets 58 99 {3,980)
Total operating expenses 114,267 81,759 68,870
ncome (loss) from operations 39,948 24,616 (3,178)
nterest expense {5,770) (6,134) {6,231)
nterest income 2.040 843 1,276
Other income (expense) {2,161) 820 220
ncome (loss) before income taxes and change in accounting principle 34,057 20,145 (7.913)
ncome tax expense 5.114 1,366 701
Net income (Joss) before change in accounting principle 28.943 18,779 (8.614)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 388 - —
Net income (loss) 29,341 18,779 (8.614)
“referred stock dividends and accretion 2,429 1,635 —
Net income {loss) applicable to common shares $ 28912 $ 17,144 $ (8,614)
\et income {loss) per basic share before change in accounting principle $ 0.33 $ 0.22 $ (0.13}
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.n — —
Net income {loss) per basic share $ 034 $ 0.22 $ (0.13)
Net income (loss) per diluted share before change in accounting principle $ 0.32 % 0.27 $ (0.13)
Zumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.01 — —
Net income {loss) per difuted share $ 0.33 $ 0.2 % Q.13
Neighted average number of common shares outstanding 79,497 78,600 65,759
Meighted average number of diluted shares outstanding 95,182 78,842 65,759

Iolance Sheet Oata {end of yeor]

Norking capital $ 170,342 $ 153,761 $ 101,121
Total assets 655,136 537,861 486,094
Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt 6,566 4,405 6,564
_ong-term debt, net of current maturities 70,974 71,541 79,387
Sumulative convertible preferred stock 25,987 29,838 —
Stockholders” equity 369,668 327,545 308,760
Jther Dota

“apital expenditures $ 13,704 $ 5304 $ 5022
rvastrment in multi-client library 39,087 19,678 4,168
depreciation and amortization (other than multi-client library) 22,036 23,497 18,345
Ameortization of multi-client library 25011 10,707 5,870

he selected consolidated financial data set forth above with respect to our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2
ind with respect to our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, have been derived from our audited consolidated financial stalements
Dur esults of operatiens and financial condition have been affected by acquisiticns of companies and dispositions of assels during the periods presented, which may aff;
he comparability of the financial information. In particular, the selected financial data set forth above reflects our acquisitions of Cancept Systems and GX Technolog
‘ebruary and June 2004, respectively; the occurrence of these acquisitions during 2004 affects the comparability of financial information for fiscal years after 2004
“or mare information on our acquisitions, see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. This informalion should not be considered as being necessarily
wicative of future operations, and should be read in conjunction with ltem 7. “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatid

A tha ~ancalidatad finanrial eiatementc and jha pc tharpin in ad aleawhara in Aanr Annual Renort an En LK dne the upar andpd Decpmber 31 O0R



[

form 10 -K




saaaaae——— .- ]

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)
# ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006
or
O TRANSITICN REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number 1-12691

Input/Output, Inc.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charrer)

Delaware 22-2286646
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
Tncorporation or Qrganizarion) Identification Ne.)

2101 CityWest Blvd
Building I11, Suite 400
Houston, Texas 77042
{Address of Principul Executive Offices, Including Zip Code)

(281) 933-3339
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Securities registered pursuant 10 Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value New York Stock Exchange
Rights to Purchase Series A Preferred Stock New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes [ No &

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required 10 file reports pursuant 1o Section 13 or Section 15{d) of the Exchange Act Yes O No (4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months {or for such shorter peried that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90

days. Yes 1 No [l

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to lem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of
registrant's knowledge. in definitive proxy or information statements incerporated by reference in Part HI of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer, See definition of “accelerated filer and large
accelerated filer” in Rute 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large aceelerated filer {J Accelerated filer [ Nen-accelerated filer O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes O No

As of June 30, 2006, the agpregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $669.5 million based on the closing
sale price as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of cach of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date: common stock. $.01 par value.
80,238,865 shares outstanding as of February 28, 2007.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Document Parts Into Which Incorporated
Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Mecting of Stockholders to be held May 21, 2007 Part ill




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART 1
TEEII 1. BUSITIESS tuerereeeeeteseeeeeetetve st e tasaesbesaessees b orerssosesa s e oo es e emeee e e e emeeub et s besat e L e A RE SRS AR R R RS0 SR e st e R e a2 emeesmemseasnamensnen e et b e s b ebs e b e ss bt 3
£ 1R I WO S 1) Q0 2 T2 10 FO U OO O O PO TS OO UPSP P TPP 14
Itertt 1B. Unresolved Staff COMITENES .........ovvoiviiiiieriieir e eessensseesrae s saseccessmasama e aaeeeiestab e e s o ha s abd s aba s s b se s R e e e T 1A s T an g 2ot 2meeem e nmne nen s 22
e T TR oo 1 =TT OO O OSSO PP PP TN 22
Ttem 3. Leal PrOCEEAINES .ovovveveeiieeeieie et h bbb bbb e E RS e 22
ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders ..o 23
PART 11
Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities......... 23
Item 6.  Selected FINANCIAL DALA......cccoiiiiririers ettt reae s s bt e e s g emas sh s s man e s s e am e b e smnns s emsas s bbb s s essa s s as e 24
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ..., 25
[tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market RisK.......cocooomi, 36
Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ..o 36
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.........ooveiiiiinnnes 36
[term OA. CONIolS And PrOCEAUIES. ... ..oceieeire e iie st ereesre e e eeseesre s e e emseaaesmeeameereeeaes1bsthb s tabeshe e aR e e R e e AR e e R Rea R R e R0 e 1A g s e m e e am e ear e enmmemesns 37
e OB, OUNET I OTIIIATION ¢ eis et s eeeeeeeeeeete et e ett et e ss st s esb e s s e e e smenr e e e e b e e e e e st se s b e sRE e R e e se e e s meea e eme e b e babe 1A e b s s a s e e a A e e T an e erevanasanaasansins 39
PART III
[tem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the REZISIANT..........c.ocoeeieireieiriinicreemrmrrereicicinieremecsmsnenseseseenctenssssssssssssssssaaesns 40
Item L1, EXECUIVE COMIPENSALION ..oveuieirrrrerreariecsier ettt e e e m st s b e b e s e b e e b e b a8 e e E e R e o e 40
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ..., 40
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions ... s 40
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and SeIVICes.....coviiiiiiiiiicice e 40
PART 1V
Jtem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement SCHedules ... ...co.ooiiiiiiiiee et b e s g e eneas 40
SHZMATUIES ...veceeeceeeieietete i tes s sas b es e os a8 b eS8 b L8401 LR 44

Index 10 ConSOlIAaterd Finameia] Slal IS c oo et eeeeeeeeeeeeeetttesaratatstassiassasasatasssasssnssmsseeteassaaasmeeeaeeeesaaanbesatssassassintanntsteissssernranvnnetn F-1




PART 1

Preliminary Note: This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements™ as that term is defined in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements should be read in conjunction with the
cautionary statements and other important factors included in this Form 10-K. See Item 1A. “Risk Factors” for a description
of important factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from thoese contained in the forward-looking
statements.

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “Input/Qutput,” “I/0,” “company,” “we,” “our,” “ours” and “us” refer to Input/Qutput, Inc.
and its consolidated subsidiaries, except where the context otherwise requires or as otherwise indicated.

Item 1. Business
Introduction

We are a leading seismic solutions company, providing the global oil and natural gas industry with a variety of seismic products
and services, including:

* seismic data acquisition equipment,

* navigation and data management software products,
* survey design planning services,

* seismic data processing services, and

¢ seismic data libraries.

We have been a manufacturer of seismic equipment since the late 1960s. In recent years, we have transformed our business from
being solely a seismic equipment manufacturer to being a provider of a full range of seismic imaging products and services —
including providing seismic equipment, designing and planning a seismic survey, oversecing the acquisition of seismic data by
experienced contractors, and processing the acquired seismic data using advanced algorithms and mode workflows. During 2004, we
completed two acquisitions as part of our strategy to expand the range of products and services we provide. This expanded offering,
including seismic data management software and advanced imaging services, has enabled us to broaden our customer base beyond
seismic acquisition contractors to also include oil and natural gas exploration and production (E&P) companies. We do not own
vessels or maintain crews to be used in the field to acquire seismic data.

Our executive headquarters are located at 2101 CityWest Boulevard, Building 111, Suite 400, Houston, Texas 77042, Qur telephone
number is (281) 933-3339. Our home page on the Internet is www.i-o.com. We make our website content available for information
purposes only, It should not be relied upon for investment purposes, nor is it incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.

In portions of this Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference information from parts of other documents filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). The SEC allows us to disclose important information by referring to it in this manner, and you should
review this information. We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
annual reports, and proxy statements for our stockholders” meetings, as well as any amendments to those reports, available free of
charge through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file those materials with, ot furnish them to, the
SEC.

You can learn more about us by reviewing our SEC filings on our website. Our SEC reports can be accessed through the investor
relations page of our website located at www.i-o.com. The SEC also maintains a website at wiww.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy
statements, and other information regarding SEC registrants, including our company.

Seismic Industry Overview

Since the 1930s, oil and gas companies have sought to reduce exploration risk by using seismic data to create an image of the
earth’s subsurface. Seismic data is produced when listening devices on the earth’s surface measure how long it takes for sound




vibrations to echo off rock layers underground. The acoustic energy producing the sound vibrations is usually provided by the
detonation of small explosive charges or by large vibroseis (vibrator) vehicles. The sound propagates through the subsurface as a
spherical wave front, or seismic wave. Interfaces between different types of rocks will both reflect and transmit this wave front. The
reflected signals return to the surface where they are measured by sensitive receivers that may be either analog, coil-spring geophones
or digital accelerometers based on MEMS (micro-electro-mechanical systems) technology. Once the recorded seismic energy is
processed using advanced algorithms and workflows, images of the subsurface can be created to depict the structure, lithology (rock
type), and fluid content of subsurface horizons, highlighting the most promising places to drill for oil and natural gas.

In exploring for oil and natural gas in marine environments, most seismic data is acquired using marine streamer cables that are
towed behind vessels. Marine sensors, calied hydrophones, are contained within the streamer cables and measure reflected seismic
waves when an energy source (such as an airgun) fires a high compression burst of air underwater to create a pressure wave (P-wave).
In recent years, acquisition of data from the seabed has become more cost effective compared to previously available ocean-bottom
cable (OBC) systems and can potentially improve seismic image quality by recording the full seismic wavefield (both pressure waves
and shear-waves (or S-waves)) when receivers are placed directly on the seafloor. See “— Fufl-Wave Digital” below.

Typically, an E&P company engages the services of a geophysical acquisition company to prepare site locations, coordinate
logistics, and acquire seismic data in a selected area. The contractor will often rely on third parties such as /O to provide the
contractor with equipment, navigation and data management software, and field support services necessary for data acquisition. After
the data is collected, the same geophysical contractor, a third-pariy data processing company or the E&P company itself will process
the data using proprietary algorithms and workflows to create a series of seismic images. Geoscientists then interpret the data by
reviewing the images and integrating the geophysical data with other geological and preduction information, such as well logs, where
available.

During the 1960s, digital seismic data acquisition systems (which converted the analog output from the geophones into digital data
for recording) and computers for seismic data processing were introduced. Using the new systems and computers, the signals could be
recorded on magnetic tape and sent to data processors where they could be adjusted and corrected for known distortions. The final
processed data was displayed in a form known as “stacked” data. Computer filing, storage, database management, and algorithms used
to process the raw data quickly grew more sophisticated, dramatically increasing the amount of subsurface seismic information.

Until the early 1980s, the primary commercial seismic imaging technology was two dimensional, or 2-D, technology. 2-D seismic
data is recorded using straight lines of receivers crossing the surface of the earth. The recorded 2-D seismic data allows geoscientists
to see only a thin vertical slice of the earth. A geoscientist using 2-D seismic technology must speculate on the characteristics of the
earth between the slices and attempt to visualize the true 3-D structure of the earth using essentially planar, or 2-D, data.

The commercial development of three-dimensional (3-D) data collection technology in the early 1980s was an important
technological milestone for the seismic industry. Previously, the high cost of 3-D seismic data acquisition techniques and the lack of
computing power necessary to process, display, and interpret 3-D data on a commercially feasible basis had slowed its widespread
adoption. 3-D seismic technology uses a series of closely-spaced seismic lines that collectively provide a more holistic, spatially-
sampled measure of subsurface reflections and geological horizons.

The improved seismic images resulting from 3-D technology allowed the oil and gas industry to discover new reservoirs, reduce
finding and development costs, and lower overall hydrocarbon exploration risk. 3-D seismic data allowed geoscientists to generate
more accurate subsurface maps than could be constructed on the basis of the more widety spaced 2-D seismic lines. [n particular, 3-D
seismic data provided more detailed information about subsurface structures, including the geometry of bedding layers, salt structures,
and fault plancs. Computer-based interpretation and display of 3-D seismic data allowed for more thorough analysis than 2-D seismic
data. Driven by faster computers and more sophisticated mathematical equations to process the data, the technology advanced quickly.

As the pace of innovation in 3-D seismic imaging technology slowed in the late 1990s, E&P companies slowed their pace of
commiissioning new seismic surveys. Also, the business model employed by geophysical contractors in the 1990s impacted demand
for seismic data. In an effort to sustain higher utilization of existing capital assets, such as marine acquisition vessels and land seismic
equipment, geophysical contractors increasingly began to collect speculative seismic data for their own account in the hopes of selling
it later to E&P companies. Contractors typically selected an area, acquired data using generic acquisition parameters and generic
processing algorithms, capitalized the acquisition costs, and sold the survey results to multiple E&P companies. These generic,
speculative, multi-client surveys were not tailored to meet a particular request and caused an oversupply of seismic data in many
regions. Additionally, since contractors incurred most of the costs of this speculative seismic data at the time of acquisition,
contractors lowered prices to recover as much of their fixed investment as possible, which drove operating margins down.




Input/Output’s Business Strategy

Beginning in 2004, we observed increased spending for seismic services and equipment by E&P companies and seismic
contractors, driven in part by an increase in commodity prices. A decline in the number and size of new discoveries, production
declines in known reservoirs, and expanded demand for hydrocarbons have increased the pressure on E&P companies to discover
additional reserves. We expect that these increased exploration demands, increasing demand for oil and natural gas worldwide, and
prevailing commodity price levels will drive increased demand for seismic technology and services. Additionally, E&P companies are
focusing on hydrocarbon reservoirs that are in deeper waters or deeper in the geologic column, and that are more complex or subtle
than the reservoirs that were discovered in prior decades. As a result, the process of finding and developing these hydrocarbon
deposits is proving to be more challenging, which in tum results in escalating costs. Moreover, E&P companies arc increasingly using
seismic data to enhance production from known fields. By repeating a seismic survey over a defined arca, E&P companies can detect
untapped areas of a reservoir and adjust their drilling program to optimize production. These time-lapse seismic images are referred to
as “4-D” (four-dimensional) surveys, in which the fourth dimension is time. 4-D seismic technology benefits seismic companies such
as /O because the technology makes seismic data relevant to the entire tife cycle of a reservoir, extending the utility of seismic
beyond exploration and into production monitoring over multiple decades.

We also believe that E&P companies will increasingly use seismic technology providers who will collaborate with them to tailor
surveys that address specific geophysical problems and to apply advanced digital sensor and imaging technologiés to take into account
the geologic peculiarities of a specific area. We expect that these companies will, in the future, rely less on undifferentiated, mass
seismic studies created using analog sensors and traditional processing technologies that do not adequately identify geologic
complexities.

In February 2004, we acquired all of the share capital of Concept Systems Holdings Limited {Concept Systems), a Scotland-based
provider of integrated planning, navigation, and data management software and solutions for towed streamer and seabed operations. In
June 2004, we acquired all of the capital stock of GX Technology Corporation (GXT), a provider of advanced seismic data imaging
solutions and seismic data libraries for the marine environment. Through these and other acquisitions, and internal research and
development efforts, we are repositioning 1/O from being primarily an equipment provider to offering our customers a comprchensive
portfolio of advanced seismic imaging technology solutions.

Our current growth strategy is predicated on successfully executing six key imperatives:

» Expanding our GXT Integrated Scismic Solutions {ISS) business in new regions with new customers and with new service

offerings, including proprietary services for owners and operators of oil and gas properties (see “— Markets and Customers”
below);

» Globalizing our GXT data processing business by opening advanced imaging centers in new locations, and expanding our
presence in the land seismic processing segment;

¢ Successfully developing and introducing our next-generation of marine towed streamer products;

+ Expanding our seabed imaging solutions business using our VectorSeis® Ocean acquisition platform and derivative products;

* Increasing our market share in cable-based land acquisition systems through the on-going roll-out of our new Scorpion®
acquisition system; and

* Successfully commercializing our FireFly® cableless full-wave land acquisition system.

During 2006, we continued to see increasing interest in our new technologies. For more information regarding our products and
services, see “Products and Services” below.,

In January 2007, we created a new division, the /0O Solutions Division, which combines the established GXT seismic data
processing services business and its ISS business with two new business units — FireFly Solutions and Seabed Solutions. This division
was created to deliver integrated hardware and services solutions for full-wave imaging in both the land and marine environments. The
creation of this new division is not expected to change our business segment classification or reporting.




Full-Wave Digital

Our seismic data acquisition products and services are well suited for traditional 3-D and for 4-D data collection as well as more
advanced multicomponent — or “full-wave digital” — seismic data collection techniques.

Conventional geophone sensors are based on a mechanical coil-spring magnet arrangement. The single component geophone
measures ground motion in one direction, even though reflected energy in the earth travels in multiple directions. This type of
geophone can capture only pressure waves (P-waves), which is merely a portion of the full seismic wavefield since conventional
geophones have limitations in collecting shear waves (S-waves), which involve a more horizontal component of ground motion. In
addition, geophones require accurate placement both vertically and spatially. Inaccurate placement, which can result from unnecessary
surveys or human error, can cause erroneous results and distort the final subsurface image.

Multicomponent seismic sensors are designed to record the full seismic wavefield by measuring reflected seismic energy in three
directions. This vector-based measurement enables multicomponent sensors to record not only P-wave data, but also to record S-
waves. 1/0’s VectorSeis sensor was developed using MEMS accelerometer technology to enable a true vector measurement of all
seismic energy reflected in the subsurface. VectorSeis is designed to capture the entire seismic signal and more faithfully record all
wave fields traveling within the earth. By measuring both P-waves and S-waves, the VectorSeis “full-wave” sensor records a more
complete and accurate seismic dataset having higher frequency content than conventional sensors. When data recorded by VectorSeis
is processed using the advanced imaging techniques offered by our Seismic [maging Solutions group, we are able to deliver higher-
definition images of the subsurface to our oil and gas customers, which cnables geophysicists to better identify subtle structural, rock,
and fluid-oriented features in the earth. In addition, we believe that full-wave technologies should deliver improved operating
efficiencies in field acquisition and reduce cycle times across the seismic workflow, from planning through acquisition and final
image rendering.

VectorSeis acquires full-wave seismic data in both land and marine environments using three of our advanced imaging platforms:
* Scorpion — our cable-based land acquisition system that replaced our former VectorSeis System Four® system in late 2006,
*  VectorSeis Remote Sensor Recorder (VRSR) — our radio-based land acquisition system, and

*  VectorSeis Ocean — our redeployable ocean bottom cable (OBC) system for the seabed.

In addition, our new FireFly cableless land acquisition system, which is anticipated to become commercially available in the
second half of 2007, also incorporates our VectorSeis technology.

Segment Information
We evaluate our results of operations based on four business segments:

*  Land Imaging Systems. Our Land Imaging Systems segment includes our cable-based, cableless, and radio-controlied data
acquisition systems, geophones, vibroseis vehicles (vibrator trucks), and source controllers for detonator and vibrator energy
sources.

*  Marine Imaging Systems. Qur Marine Imaging Systems segment consists of towed streamer seismic data acquisition systems
and shipboard recorders, streamer positioning and control systems, and cnergy sources (such as airguns and airgun controllers).

*  Data Management Solutions. Our Data Management Solutions segment includes our Concept Systems’ software and related
services for navigation and data management involving towed marine streamer and seabed operations.

*  Seismic Imaging Sofutions. The Seismic Imaging Solutions segment consists of our advanced seismic data processing services
for marine and land environments, our marine seismic data libraries, and our ISS offering delivered by GXT.

Our review and evaluation of results of operations using these four business segments have resulted in increased visibility and
accountability of costs and more focused customer service and product development. We measure segment operating results based on
income (loss) from operations. See further discussion of our segment operating results at Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.




Products and Services
Land Imaging Systems Products
Products for our Land Imaging Systems business segment include the following:

Land Acquisition Systems. Our cable-based Scorpion and VRSR land acquisition systems consist of a central recording unit and
multiple remote ground equipment modules that are connected by cable or utilize radio transmission and retrievable data storage. The
central recording unit, which acts as the control center of the system, is typically mounted within a vehicle or helicopter-transportable
enclosure. The central recording unit receives digitized data, stores the data on storage media for subsequent processing, and displays
the data on optional monitoring devices. It also provides calibration, status, and test functionality. The remote ground equipment
consists of multiple remote modules and line taps positioned over the survey area. Seismic data is collected by analog geophones or
VectorSeis digital sensors.

During October 2006, we announced the release and first commercial sale of our Scorpion system for cable-based, land seismic
data acquisition. The Scorpion system builds upon our traditional System Four land acquisition svstem platform and incorporates
several new features that have been designed to improve the system’s recording capacity, reliability, productivity, and ease of use. Ten
Scorpion systems were delivered to customers during the fourth quarter of 2006.

Scorpion and VRSR are capable of recording full-wave seismic data (both P-waves and S-waves), Digital sensors, when compared
with traditional analog geophones, can often provide increased response linearity and bandwidth, which translates into higher
resolution images of the subsurface. In addition, one digital sensor can replace a string of six or more analog geophones, providing
users with significant operating efficiencies. These advantages enable improved location and characterization of reservoir structure
and fluids and more accurate identification of rock properties at reduced total costs.

We began VectorSeis technology land acquisition field tests in 1999, and since that time, VectorSeis technology has been used to
acquire seismic data in North America, Europe, Asia, the Pacific Basin region, the Middle East, and the Commonwealth of
Independent States. In 2002, we introduced our radio-based VectorSeis System Four land acquisition system, and in 2003, we
commercialized a cable-based system. In 2004, we announced the introduction of our new hybrid System Four platform, which gave
seismic companies the flexibility to use both traditional analog geophone sensors and digital full-wave VectorSeis sensors, even on the
same survey. We sold 13 of these System Four Digital-Analog™ systems in 2006. In October 2006, in connection with our
introduction of the Scorpion land acquisition system, we began to phase out production of our System Four platform system. Scorpion
contains numerous enhancements that reduce our manufacturing costs, improve system reliability and productivity, and enable higher
station count acquisition. During December 2006, we announced that we had been awarded a contract with the Qil and Natural Gas
Corporation Limited (ONGC), the nationai oil company of India, to provide 14 land acquisition systems, cach of which will be
capable of recording with either digital, full-wave VectorSeis sensors or analog geophones. The full contract award is expected to be
in excess of $60 million. Deliveries of the 14 systems are expected to occur during the second and third quarters of 2007,

In November 2005, we announced our development of FireFly, a cableless system for full-wave land seismic data acquisition. By
removing the constraints of cables, geophysicists can custom-design surveys for multiple subsurface targets and increase receiver
station density to more fully sample the subsurface. We believe that the cableless design of FireFly will improve field productivity
while reducing health, safety, and environmental liability exposure. FireFly’s benefits also include a reduction in system weight,
improved operational efficiencies, less operational time spent on cable troubleshooting, and more fully sampled seismic data. In
March 2006, I/O and BP America Production Company, a subsidiary of London-based BP p.l.c., commenced a project to deploy and
jointly test a 10,000 station FireFly system in the Wamsutter gas field in Wyoming. Final engineering for this project was completed
in November 2006, and deployment and field testing of the FireFly system began in November 2006. Seismic data acquisition
operations were completed in January 2007. Preliminary evaluations of system performance have indicated that the FireFly system is
capable of efficient, scalable high-resolution seismic recording using an increased number of receiver stations. Data analysis is now in
progress at GXT for image processing and evaluation, In May 2006, Apache Corporation became the second launch partner to agree to
deploy and test the FireFly system with us. FireFly is expected to be deployed on the Apache project in March 2007. We expect {o be
able to commercially introduce FireFly to other customers in 2007,

Geophones. Geophones are analog sensor devices that measure acoustic energy reflected from rock layers in the earth’s subsurface
using a mechanical, coil-spring element. We market a full snite of geophones and geophone test equipment that operate in all
environments, including land, transition zone, ocean-bottom, and downhole. We believe that we are the market share leader in
geophones, holding more than a 50% share of the geophones delivered worldwide each year. We believe our Sensor subsidiary is the




leading designer and manufacturer of precision geophones used in seismic data acquisition, but our analog geophones are used in other
industries as well. Our principal geophone product, the SM-24™, features low distortion and wide bandwidth for seismic recording
systems.

Vibrators and Energy Sources. Vibrators are devices carried by large vibroseis vehicles and, along with dynamite, arc used as
energy sources for land seismic acquisition. We market and sell the AHV-IV™, an articulated tire-based vibrator vehicle, and a
tracked vibrator, the XVib®, for use in environmentally sensitive areas such as the Arctic tundra and desert environments.

Our Pelton division is a provider of energy source control and positioning technologies. Its Vib Pro™ control system provides
vibrator vehicles with digital technology for energy control and integrated global positioning system technology for navigation and
positioning. The Shot Pro™ dynamite firing system is the equivalent technology for seismic operations using dynamite energy
sources. Our newly released Vib Net™ fleet product assists in the proper positioning of vibrator fleets, which enables improved
productivity and enhanced imaging and helps streamline field operations.

Marine Imaging Systems Products
Products for our Marine Imaging Systems business segment include the following:

Marine Acquisition Systems. Our traditional marine acquisition system consists of towed marine streamers and shipboard
electronics that collect seismic data in water depths greater than 30 meters. Marine streamers, which contain hydrophones, electronic
modules and cabling, may measure up to 12,000 meters in length and are towed (up to 16 at a time) behind a solid streamer scismic
acquisition vessel. The hydrophones detect acoustical energy transmitted through water from the earth’s subsurface structures.

During 2004, we introduced VectorSeis Ocean (VSO), an advanced system for seismic acquisition using redeployable ocean
bottom cable, and shipped a system to a Norwegian scismic contractor. This system was put into operation that year, but experienced
some start-up functionality issues. See lItem |A. "Risk Factors — We are exposed to risks related to complex, highly technical
products.” We continued to provide service and support to this project and made significant upgrades and refincments to the system
during 2005. In 2005, we announced that we had entered into an agreement with this contractor for the purchase of up to five
additional VSO systems in 2006 and 2007 in exchange for worldwide exclusivity through 2007. In the second quarter of 2006, we
completed delivery of the second VSQ system, which has performed satisfactorily. During August 2006, we announced the receipt of
an order for approximately $29 million from this contractor for a third VSO system, for which we will complete our delivery
obligations during the first half of 2007. In December 2006, we received an order for a fourth VSO system scheduled for delivery in
the fourth quarter of 2007. This order extended the contractor’s exclusive access to VSO through the end of 2007.

Marine Positioning Systems. Our DigiCourse® marine positioning system includes streamer cable depth control devices,
compasses, acoustic positioning systems (DigiRANGE 1I™), and other auxiliary sensors. Marine positioning equipment controls the
depth of the streamer cables and provides acoustic, compass, and depth measurements to allow processors to tie navigation and
location data to geophysica! data to determine the location of potential hydrocarbon reserves.

During 2005, we announced DigiFIN™, a new product for advanced streamer control. DigiFIN is designed to allow vessel
operators to control the lateral position of streamer cables in the water, allowing streamers to be towed closer together without the
threat of tangling, and enabling faster line changes as each line of a survey is acquired. The tighter streamer spacing should improve
image quality by allowing higher resolution acquisition of seismic data. DigiFIN is currently undergoing beta testing and we expect
that it will be commercially available in the second half of 2007,

Source and Source Control Systems. We manufacture and sell airguns, which are the primary seismic energy source used in marine
environments to initiate the acoustic encrgy transmitted through the earth’s subsurface. An airgun fires a high compression burst of air
underwater to create an energy wave for seismic measurement. We offer a digital source control system (DigiSHOT®), which allows
more precise and reliable control of airgun arrays for 4-D exploration activitics.

Data Management Solutions Products and Services

Through our purchase of Concept Systems in February 2004, we acquired software systems and services for towed marine
streamer and seabed operations. Concept Systems’ software is installed on towed streamer marine vessels worldwide and is a
component of many redeployable and permanent seabed monitoring systems. Products and services for our Data Management
Solutions business segment include the following:




Marine Imaging. SPECTRA® is Concept Systems’ integrated navigation and survey control software system for towed streamer-
based seismic survey operations, including 2-D, 3-D, and 4-D applications. In 2005, VO finalized the development of Orca®, a
successor software product to SPECTRA for towed streamer navigation and integrated data managerment applications. Orca includes
modules designed to better ensure repeatability across time-lapse 4-D surveys by integrating navigation, source control, and streamer
control systems. In late 2005, Orca was installed on the towed streamer vessel of an experienced seismic contractor to undergo field
trials. Trials were completed in early 2006, after which Orca was commercially relcased. Orca’s technology is designed to be
compatible with our new DigiFIN product for advanced streamer control.

Seabed Imaging. Concept Systems also offers GATOR®, an integrated navigation and quality control software system for ocean
bottom cable and transition zone (such as marsh lands) operations. The GATOR system provides real-time, multi-vessel positioning,
and data management solutions for ocean-bottom, shallow-water, and transition zone crews.

Survey Design and Planning. Concept Systems also offers consulting services for planning and designing of 4-D survey
operations. Between 2002 and the end of 2006, Concept Systems completed more than 65 4-D studies for oil and gas company clients.

Post-Survey Analysis Tools. Concept Systems’ integrated navigation systems such as SPECTRA and GATOR also integrate with
its post-survey tools for processing, analysis, and data quality control. These tools include its SPRINT® navigation processing and
quality control software for marine geophysical surveys, REFLEX® software for navigation and seismic data analysis, and SWAT™
software for remote web-based assessments of survey progress and quality assurance of data acquisition operations.

Seismic Imaging Solutions Services
Services for our Seismic Imaging Solutions business segment include the following;

Seismic Data Processing Services. GXT provides a variety of seismic data processing and imaging services to oil and gas
exploration and production companies for both marine and land environments. GXT services include survey planning and design,
project oversight of data acquisition operations, advanced data processing, final image rendering, and geophysical and reservoir
analysis.

GXT offers processing and imaging services through which it develops a series of subsurface images by applying its processing
technology to data owned or licensed by its customers. GXT also provides support services to its customers, such as data pre-
conditioning for imaging and outsourced management of seismic data acquisition and image processing services.

GXT uses parallel computer clusters to process seismic data by applying advanced algorithms and workflows that incorporate
techniques such as illumination analysis, data conditioning and velocity modeling, and time and depth migration. Pre-stack depth
migration involves the application of advanced, computer-intensive processing techniques which convert time-based seismic
information to a depth basis. While pre-stack depth migration is not necessary in every imaging situation, it generally provides the
most accurate subsurface images in arcas of complex geology. It also helps to convert seismic data, which is recorded in the time
domain, into a depth domain format that is more readily applied by geologists and reservoir engineers in identifying well locations. In
December 2005, we announced the commercial release of GXT’s Reverse Time Migration technology. This technology was
developed to improve imaging in areas where complex structural conditions or steeply dipping subsurface horizons have provided
imaging challenges for oil and gas companies.

Following our acquisition of GXT, we aligned the business of our AXIS group with GXT’s operations. AXIS, based in Denver,
Colorado, has traditionally focused on advanced seismic data processing for complex onshore environments. AXIS has developed a
proprietary data processing technique called AZIM™ that better accounts for the anisotropic effects of the earth (i.e., different layers
of geological formations that are not parallel to each other), which tend to distort seismic images. AZIM corrects for anisotropy, which
results in more accurate, higher resolution images in areas where the velocity of seismic waves varies with compass direction (or
azimuth}. The AZIM technique is especially well suited to modeling fracture patterns within reservoirs.

We believe that the application of GXT’s advanced processing technologies and imaging techniques can better identify complex
hydrocarbon-bearing structures and deeper exploration prospects. We believe the combination of GXT’s capabilities in advanced
velocity model building and depth imaging, along with AXIS’ capability in anisotropic imaging, provides [/O with an advantaged
toolkit for maximizing the data measurements obtained by our VectorSeis full-wave sensor.




Integrated Seismic Solution (I15S). GXT’s ISS services are provided to manage the entire seismic process, from survey planning
and design to data acquisition and management through pre-processing and final subsurface imaging. GXT focuses on the
technologically intensive components of the image development process, such as survey planning and design and data processing and
interpretation, and outsources the logistics component to geophysical logistics contractors. GXT offers its ISS services to customers
on both a proprietary and multi-client basis. On both bases, the customers pre-fund a majority of the data acquisition costs. See Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates: Multi-Client Data Library.” With the proprietary service, the customer also pays for the imaging and processing, but has
exclusive ownership of the data after it has been processed. With its multi-client seismic surveys, GXT assumes some of the
processing costs but retains ownership of the data and images and receives on-going license revenue from subsequent license sales.

Seismic Data Libraries. Since 2002, GXT has acquired and processed a growing seismic data library consisting of non-exclusive
2-D and full-wave data from around the world. The majority of the data libraries licensed by GXT consist of ultra-deep 2-D lines that
oil and gas companies use to better evaluate the evolution of petroleum systems at the basin level, including insights inio the
deposition of source rocks and sediments, migration pathways, and reservoir trapping mechanisms. In many cases, the availability of
geoscience data extends beyond seismic information to include magnetic, gravity, well log, and electromagnetic information, which
help to provide a more comprehensive picture of the subsurface. Known as “Spans,” these geophysical data libraries currently exist for
major basins worldwide, including the northern Gulf of Mexico, offshore areas in the southern Caribbean and off the northern coast of
South America, offshore West Africa, offshore Colombia, offshore India, and offshore northern Canada and Alaska. In 2006, we
announced the completion of acquisition of two new basin-scale multi-client seismic surveys for offshore India and the Arctic Sea.
The India library consists of approximately 17,000 kilometers of 2-D marine data along India’s cast, west and southwest coasts, while
the Arctic library consists of approximately 6,500 kilometers of 2-D marine data off the northern coasts of Alaska and Canada.
Additional Spans are planned or under development for other regions of the world.

Product Research and Development

Our research and development efforts have focused on improving both the quality of the subsurface image and the seismic data
acquisition economics for our customers. Our ability to compete effectively in the manufacture and sale of seismic equipment and data
acquisition systems, as well as related processing services, depends principally upon continued technological innovation,
Development cycles of most products, from initial conception through commercial introduction, may extend over several years.

In 2006, we continued our research initiatives to develop applications for GXT's advanced processing techniques for data gathered
through our full-wave and 4-D time-lapse data collection methods. We also developed technologies (packaged under the trade name
Autobahn™) for handling very large, dense land seismic surveys that we expect can be acquired using our new FireFly system.

During 2006, Orca was used in a production mode and as the command control system on two specialized marine towed streamer
surveys; both surveys are currently ongoing, and they will continue into 2007. Several marine seismic contracting companies have
entered into agreements with us for our Orca software product.

During 2006, our DigiFIN advanced streamer command and control system completed a series of alpha and beta tests as part of its
commercialization process. Along with our other Digi products, DigiFIN is designed to provide improved seismic image resolution,
which should result in productivity gains for customers.

In 2006, we principally focused our research and development efforts on FireFly, our next-generation platform for cableless land
recording. Activities included prototyping and field testing key system components, including both hardware and software that were
developed by our Concept Systems group. In the fourth quarter of 2006, we began deployments of our first FireFly sysiem for use on
BP America Production Company’s Wamsutter natural gas ficld in Wyoming. Seismic data acquisition activities on the Wamsutter
field were completed in January 2007, and seismic data processing and interpretation are presently underway. See “Products and
Services — Land Imaging Systems Products.”

During 2007, we expect that our product development efforts will continue across all business lines, and that we will continue to
incur significant future research and development expenditures aimed at the development of our products and technologics. For a
summary of our research and development expenditures during the past five years, see ltem 6. “Selected Financial Data.”

Because many of these new preducts are under development, their commercial feasibility or degree of commercial acceptance, if
any, is not yet known. No assurance can be given concerning the successful development of any new products or enhancements, the
specific timing of their release or their level of acceptance in the market place.




Markets and Customers

Based on historical revenues, we believe that we are a market leader in numerous product lines, such as geophones, MEMS-based
full-wave sensors, navigation and data management software, marine positioning systems, and streamer control hardware.

Our principal customers are seismic contractors and oil and gas companies, Seismic contractors purchase our data acquisition
systems and related equipment and software to collect data in accordance with their oil and gas company customers’ specifications or
for their own seismic data libraries. We also market and sell products and offer services directly to oil and gas companies, primarily
imaging-related processing services and muli-client seismic surveys from our GXT group and consulting services from Concept
Systems. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated net
Tevenues.

Prior to 2005, the seismic industry had been affected by a number of market forces that impacted the demand for our products.
There had been significant consolidation among oil and gas companies, which had tended to focus capital outlays on higher-potential
projects within the combined portfolic. Despite significant consolidation, expenditures for exploration and production activities,
including those related to seismic acquisition and processing, have increased 10%-15% per year since 2003, Earlier in this decade, the
seismic contractor segment had been impacted by the consolidation among the oil and gas companies, excess capacity of seismic
acquisition crews, seismic vessels, and seismic data libraries, and the emergence of low-cost acquisition contractors from rapidly
developing markets, including China, India, and the former Soviet Union. These factors placed financial pressures on many
contractors, prompting bankruptcies and reducing capital expenditures for new seismic acquisition technology. Over the last several
years, worldwide exploration activities have increased in response to increased hydrocarbon demand and diminishing supply from
many regions. As a result, the utilization of both land and marine seismic data acquisition products and services have increased
significantly, leading to increases of 20%-50% in the prices that contractors charge oil and gas companies for their services. The
increased utilization and cash flow have led the contractors to begin expanding their acquisition asset base and to retrofit existing
assets with newer, more efficient technologies.

Approximately 85%-90% of the world’s reserves are controlled by national oil companies. Contractors from China and the former
Soviet Union are increasingly active not only in their own countries, but also in other international mackets. As a result, a significant
part of our marketing effort is focused on areas outside of the United States. Foreign sales are subject to special risks inherent in doing
business outside of the United States, including the risk of armed conflict, civil disturbances, currency fluctuations, embargo and
governmental activities, customer credit risks, as well as risks of non-compliance with U.S. and foreign laws, including tariff
regulations and import/export restrictions.

We sell our products and services through a direct sales force consisting of employees and international third-party sales
representatives responsible for key geographic areas. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, sales to
destinations outside of North America accounted for approximately 68%, 69% and 74% of our consolidated net revenues,
respectively. Further, systems seld to domestic customers are frequently deployed internationally and, from time to time, certain
foreign sales require export licenses. GXT has historically derived a large portion of its revenues from North America, with sales in
the U.S. and Canada accounting for 41% of its 2006 net revenues. During 2006, GXT opened an advanced imaging center in Port of
Spain, Trinidad.

For information concemning the geographic breakdown of our net revenues, see Note 14 of Notes ro Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Sales to customers are normally on standard net 30-day terms. Also, in certain cases, we have provided financing arrangements to
customers through short-term and long-term notes receivable. During 2006, net revenues from sales to customers made on extended
payment terms constituted less than 2% of our total consolidated revenues. Currently outstanding notes receivable, which are
generally collateralized by the products sold, bear interest at contractual rates ranging from 0.0% to 7.9% per year and are due at
various dates through 2008. The weighted average effective annual interest rate at December 31, 2006 was 6.7%. See item 7.
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Credit and Sales Risks.”

GXT’s customers include large oil companies, such as BP, Total, Chevren, ExxonMobil, Statoil, and BHP. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, no single GXT customer accounted for more than 10% of our conseclidated net revenues.




GXT offers its services to customers on both an exclusive and a multi-client basis. Through its processing and imaging services,
GXT develops images by applying its processing technology to data owned or licensed by its customers, Under these arrangements, its
customers separately arrange and pay for survey design, data collection, processing, and imaging and retain ownership of the data after
image development.

GXT's ISS services are offered to customers on both a proprietary and multi-client basis; in both cases, customers generally pre-
fund the data acquisition costs. With the proprietary service, the customer also pays for the imaging and processing and has ownership
of the data after imaging. With its multi-client services, GXT will sometimes assume the processing risk but retains ownership of or
rights to the data and images and receives on-going revenue from subsequent license sales.

Traditionally, our business has been seasonal, with strongest demand in the fourth quarter of the year.
Manufacturing Outsourcing and Suppliers

Since 2003, we have been increasing the use of contract manufacturers in our Land and Marine Imaging Systems business
segments as an alternative to manufacturing our own products. We have outsourced the manufacturing of our vibrator vehicles, our
towed marine streamers, our redeployable ocean bottom cables, various components of VectorSeis Ocean, and certain electronic and
ground components of our land acquisition systems. We may experience supply interruptions, cost escalations, and competitive
disadvantages if we do not menitor these relationships properly.

These contract manufacturers purchase a substantial portion of the components used in our systems and products from third-party
vendors. Certain items, such as integrated circuits used in our systems, are purchased from sole source vendors. Although we and our
contract manufacturers attempt to maintain an adequate inventory of these single source items, the loss of ready access to any of these
items could temporarily disrupt our ability to manufacture and sell certain products. Since our components are designed for use with
these single source items, replacing the single source items with functional equivalents could require a redesign of our components
and costly delays could result.

In 2004, we transferred ownership of our Applied MEMS, Inc. subsidiary and its assets to Colibrys Lid. (Colibrys), a Swiss
MEMS-based technology firm, in exchange for a 10% interest in Colibrys. We also entered into a five-year supply agreement with
Colibrys. Colibrys manufactures micro-electro-mechanical system products, including accelerometers, for our VectorSeis sensors, and
for other applications, including test and measurement, earthquake and structural monitoring, and defense. While we continue to
believe that MEMS-based sensors like our VectorSeis sensors will increasingly be used in seismic imaging, we also believe that
improvements in the design and manufacture of MEMS technology will likely occur, which will require additional financial and
human capital to achieve. By outsourcing our MEMS manufacturing operations to a MEMS-based technology firm such as Colibrys,
we believe that we are better positioned to leverage the research and development of these products and industries, improve gross
margins on our VectorSeis-based products, and reduce our future investment requirements in MEMS technology. We have no further
obligations to fund Colibrys with regard to any mandatory assessments or additional capital contribution requirements but we may
choose to invest further capital into Colibrys from time to time.

Competition

The market for seismic products and services is highly competitive and is characterized by continual changes in technology. Our
principal competitor for land and marine seismic equipment is Societe d’Etudes Recherches et Construction Electroniques (Sercel), an
affiliate of the French seismic contracter, Compagnie General de Geophysique (CGG). Sercel possesses the advantage of being able to
sell its products and services to an affiliated seismic contractor that operates both land crews and seismic acquisition vessels,
providing it with a greater ability to test new technology in the field and to capture a captive internal market for product sales. We also
compete with other seismic equipment companies on a product-by-product basis. Our ability to compete effectively in the manufacture
and sale of seismic instruments and data acquisition systems depends principally upon continued technological innovation, as well as
pricing, system reliability, reputation for quality, and ability to deliver on schedule.

In recent years, there has been a trend among certain seismic contractors to design, engineer, and manufacture seismic acquisition
technology in-house (or through a controlled network of third-party vendors) n order to achieve differentiation versus their
competition. For example, WesternGeco (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schlumberger, a large integrated oil field services company)
relies heavily on its in-house technology development for designing, engineering, and manufacturing its “Q-Technology™ platform,
which includes acquisition and processing systems. Although this technology competes directly with 1/0’s technology for marine
streamer, seabed, and land acquisition, WesternGeco does not provide Q-Technology services to other seismic acquisition contractors.




! Moving forward, there is a risk that other seismic contractors may decide to in-source more seismic technology development, which
‘ would put pressure on the demand for 1/0 acquisition equipment.

GXT competes with more than a dozen processing companies that are capable of providing pre-stack depth migration services to
oil and gas companies. While the barriers to entry into this market are relatively low, the barriers to competing at the high end of the
advanced pre-stack depth migration market, where GXT focuses its efforts, are significantly higher. At the higher end of this market,
Veritas DGC, Inc. (Veritas) and WesternGeco are GXT's two primary competitors for advanced imaging services. In January 2007,
Veritas was acquired by CGG, following approval by the shareholders of both companies. Both of these companies are larger than
GXT in terms of revenues, number of processing locations, and sales and marketing resources. In addition, both Veritas and
WesternGeco possess an advantage of being part of affiliated seismic contractor companies, providing them with access to customer
relationships and seismic datasets that require processing.

Concept Systems is a leader in providing advanced data integration software and services to seismic contractors acquiring data
using either towed streamer vessels or ocean-bottom cable on the seabed. There are few sizeable companies that provide third-party
software and services that compete directly with Concept Systems. Vessels or ocean-bottorn cable crews that do not use Concept
Systems software either rely upon manual data integration, reconciliation, and quality control or, as is the case with WesternGeco,
develop and maintain their own proprietary software packages. There is a risk that other seismic contractors on their own or in
partmership with other contractors may attempt to develop software that competes directly with Concept Systems, or that third-party
software companies attempt to enter the market. During 2006, Sercel announced its intention to iniroduce a competing software
product over the next couple of years.

Intellectual Property
We rely on a combination of patents, copyrnights, trademark, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures, and contractual provisions to

protect our proprietary technologies. Although our portfolio of approximately 300 patents is considered important to our operations,
no one patent is considered essential to our success.

Our patents, copyrights, and trademarks offer us only limited protection. Qur competitors may attempt to copy aspects of our
products despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, or may design around the proprietary features of our products. Policing
unauthorized use of our proprietary rights is difficult, and we are unable to determine the extent to which such use occurs. Our
difficulties are compounded in certain foreign countries where the laws do not offer as much protection for proprietary rights as the
laws of the United States. From time to time, third parties inquire and claim that we have infringed upon their intellectual property
rights and we make similar inquiries and claims to third parties. No material liabitities have resulted from these third party claims to
date.

The information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains references to trademarks, service marks and registered
marks of Input/Output and our subsidiaries, as indicated. Except where stated otherwise or unless the context otherwise requires, the
terms “VectorSeis,” “VectorSeis System Four,” “System Four,” “FireFly,” “DigiSHOT,” “XVib,” “DigiCourse,” “GATOR,”
“SPECTRA,” “Orca,” “Scorpion,” “SPRINT,” and “REFLEX"” refer to our VECTORSEIS®, VECTORSEIS SYSTEM FOUR®,
SYSTEM FOUR®, FIREFLY®, DIGISHOT® , XVIB® , DIGICOURSE®, GATOR®, SPECTRA®, ORCA®, SCORPION®,
SPRINT®, and REFLEX® registered marks, and the terms “AZIM,” “True Digital,” “DigiRANGE 11,” “System Four Digital-
Analog,” “SM-24," “AHV-IV " “Vib Pro,” “Shot Pro,” “DigiFIN,” “Vib Net,” “MSX Solid,” “Autobahn,” and “SWAT” refer to our
AZIM™, True Digital™, DigiRANGE 1I™, System Four Digital-Analog™, SM-24™, AHV-IVT™M_ Vib Pro™, Shot Pro™,
DigiFIN™_ Vib Net™ MSX Solid™, Autobahn™ and SWAT™ trademarks and service marks.

Regulatory Matters

Our operations are subject to laws, regulations, government policies, and product certification requirements worldwide. Changes in
such laws, regulations, policies or requirements could affect the demand for our products or result in the need to modify products,
which may involve substantial costs or delays in sales and could have an adverse effect on our future operating results. Qur export
activities are also subject to extensive and evolving trade regulations. Certain countries are subject to trade restrictions, embargoes,
and sanctions imposed by the U.S. government. These restrictions and sanctions prohibit or limit us from participating in certain
business activities in those countries.

Our operations are subject to numerous local, state, and federal laws and regulations in the United States and in foreign
jurisdictions concerning the containment and disposal of hazardous materials, the remediation of contaminated properties, and the




protection of the environment. We do not currently foresee the need for significant expenditures to ensure our continued compliance
with current environmental protection laws. Regulations in this area are subject to change, and there can be no assurance that future
laws or regulations will not have a material adverse effect on us. Our customers’ operations are also significantly impacted by laws
and regulations conceming the protection of the environment and endangered species. For instance, many of our marine contractors
have been affected by regulations protecting marine mammals in the Gulf of Mexico. To the extent that our customers’ operations are
disrupted by future laws and regulations, our business and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 1,015 regular, full-time employees, 685 of which were located in the U.S. From time to time
and on an as-needed basis, we supplement our regular workforce with individuals that we hire temporarily or as independent
contractors in order to meet certain internal manufacturing or other business needs. Our U.S. employees are not represented by any
collective bargaining agreement, and we have never experienced a labor-related work stoppage. We believe that our employee
relations are satisfactory.

Financial Information by Segment and Geographic Area

For a discussion of financial information by business segment and geographic area, see Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report (as well as certain oral statements made from time to time by authorized representatives on behalf of our company)
contain statements concerning our future results and performance and other matters that are “forward-looking” statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that
may cause our or our industry’s results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future
results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In some cases, you
can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “intend,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” or “continue” or the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. Examples
of other forward-looking statements contained in this report (or in such oral statements) include statements regarding:

» expected revenues, operating profit and net income;

» expected gross margins for our products and services;

* future benefits to our customers to be derived from new products and services, such as FireFly and Orca;
« future growth rates for certain of our products and services;

« expectations of oil and gas company and contractor end-users purchasing our more expensive, more technologically advanced
products and services;

» the degree and rate of future market acceptance of our new products;
+ the timing of anticipated sales;

+ anticipated timing and success of commercialization and capabilities of products and services under development, and start- up
costs associated with their development;

» expected improved operational efficiencies from our Full-Wave Digital products and services;
*  success in integrating our acquired businesses;

» expectations regarding future mix of business and future asset recoveries;

» potential future acquisitions;

« future levels of capital expenditures;




+ future cash needs and future sources of cash, including availability under our revolving line of credit facility;
« the outcome of pending or threatened disputes and other contingencies;

« future demand for seismic equipment and services;

« future seismic industry fundamentals;

» the adequacy of our future liquidity and capital resources;

« future oil and gas commodity prices;

« future opportunities for new products and projected research and development expenses;

« future worldwide economic conditions;

+ expectations regarding realization of deferred tax assets; and

+ anticipated results regarding accounting estimates we make.

These forward-looking statements reflect our best judgment about future events and trends based on the information currently
available to us, Our results of operations can be affected by inaccurate assumptions we make or by risks and uncertainties known or
unknown to us. Therefore, we cannot guarantee the accuracy of the forward-looking statements. Actual events and results of
operations may vary materially from our current expectations and assumptions. While we cannot identify all of the factors that may
cause actual results to vary from our expectations, we believe the following factors should be considered carefuily:

Our operating results may fluctuate from period to period and we are subject to seasonality factors.

Qur operating results are subject to fluctuations from period to period as a result of new product or service introductions, the
timing of significant expenses in connection with customer orders, unrealized sales, levels of research and development activities in
different periods, the product mix sold, and the seasonality of our business. Because many of our products feature a high sales price
and are technologically complex, we generally have experienced long sales cycles for these products and historically incur significant
expense at the beginning of these cycles for component parts and other inventory necessary to manufacture a product in anticipation of
a future sale, which may not ultimately occur. In addition, the revenues from our sales can vary widely from period to period due to
changes in customer requirements. These factors can create fluctuations in our net revenues and results of operations from period to
period. Variability in our overall gross margins for any period, which depend on the percentages of higher-margin and lower-margin
products and services sold in that period, compounds these uncertainties. As a result, if net revenues or gross margins fall below
expectations, our operating results and financial condition will likely be adversely affected. Additionally, our business can be seasonal
in nature, with strongest demand typically in the fourth calendar quarter of each year.

Due to the relatively high sales price of many of our products and seismic data libraries and relatively low unit sales volume, our
quarterly operating results have historically fluctuated from period to period due to the timing of orders and shipments and the mix of
products and services sold. This uneven pattemn makes financial predictions for any given period difficult, increases the risk of
unanticipated variations in our quarterly resuits and financial condition, and places challenges on our inventory management. Delays
caused by factors beyond our control, such as the granting of permits for seismic surveys by third parties and the availability and
equipping of marine vessels, can affect GXT’s revenues from its processing and ISS services from period to period. Also, delays in
ordering products or in shipping or delivering products in a given period could significantly affect our results of operations for that
pertod. Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results may cause greater volatility in the price of our common stock and convertible
notes.

We may not gain rapid market acceptance for our full-wave digital products, which could materially and adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition,

We have spent considerable time and capital developing our full-wave equipment product lines that incorporate our VectorSeis,
FireFly, Scorpion, and associated technologies. Because these products rely on a new digital sensor, our ability to sell these products
will depend on acceptance of our digital sensor and technology solutions by geophysical contractors and exploration and production




companies. [f our customers do not believe that our digital sensor delivers higher quality data with greater operational efficiency, our
results of operations and financial condition will be materiatly and adversely affected.

The introduction of new seismic technologies and products has traditionally involved long development cycles. Because our full-
wave digital products incorporate new technologies, we have experienced slow market acceptance and market penetration for these
products. For these reasons, and despite the fact that industry-wide demand for seismic services and equipment has increased in recent
years, we have continued to be unable to foresee and accurately predict future sales volumes, revenues, and margins for these new
products from period to period with the certainty we have desired.

We are exposed to risks related to complex, highly technical products.

Our customers often require demanding specifications for product performance and reliability. Because many of our products are
complex and often use unique advanced components, processes, technologies, and techniques, undetected errors and design and
manufacturing flaws may occur. Even though we attempt to assure that our systems are always reliable in the field, the many technical
variables related to their operations can cause a combination of factors that can, and has from time to time, caused performance and
service issues with certain of our products. Product defects result in higher product service, warranty, and replacement costs and may
affect our customer relationships and industry reputation, all of which may adversely impact our results of operations. Despite our
testing and quality assurance programs, undetected errors may not be discovered until the product is purchased and used by a customer
in a variety of field conditions. If our customers deploy our new products and they do not work correctly, our relationship with our
customers may be materially and adversely affected.

As a result of our systems” advanced and complex nature, we expect to experience occasional operational issues from time to time.
Generally, until our products have been tested in the field under a wide variety of operational conditions, we cannot be certain that
performance and service problems will not arise. Customers do occasionally experience issues and therefore there is a possibility that
our new products may also suffer from similar issues. In that case, market acceptance of our new products could be delayed and our
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We rely on highly skilled personnel in our businesses, and if we are unable to retain or motivate key personnel or hire qualified
personnel, we may not be able to grow effectively.

Qur performance is largely dependent on the talents and efforts of highly skilled individuals. Qur future success depends on our
continuing ability to identify, hire, develop, motivate, and retain skilled personnel for all areas of our organization. We require highly
skilled personnel to operate and provide technical services and support for our businesses. Competition for qualified personnel
required for GXT’s data processing operations and our other segments’ businesses has intensified as worldwide seismic activity and
oil and nawral gas exploration and development have increased. Rapid growth presents a challenge to us and our industry to recruit,
train, and retain our employees while managing the impact of potential wage inflation and the potential lack of available qualified
labor in some markets where we operate. In recent periods, the demand from E&P companies for GXT’s services has increased
dramatically, putting pressures on GXT’s workforce to meet this demand. A well-trained, motivated, adequately-staffed work force
has a positive impact on our ability to attract and retain business. Our continued ability to compete effectively depends on our ability
to attract new employees and to retain and motivate our existing employees.

We derive a substantial amount of our revenues from foreign aperations and sales, which pose additional risks.

Sales to customers outside of North America accounted for 68% of our consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31,
2006, and we believe that export sales will remain a significant percentage of our revenue. United States export restrictions affect the
types and specifications of products we can export. Additionally, to complete certain sales, United States laws may require us to
obtain export licenses, and we cannot assure you that we will not experience difficulty in obtaining these licenses.

Like many energy service companies, we have operations in and sales into certain international areas, including parts of the
Middle East, West Africa, Latin America, the Asia Pacific region, and the Commonwealth of Independent States, that are subject to
risks of war, political disruption, civil disturbance, possible economic and legal sanctions (such as possible restrictions against
countries that the U.S. government may deem to sponsor terrorism), and changes in global trade policies. Our sales or operations may
become restricted or prohibited in any country in which the foregoing risks occur. In particular, the occurrence of any of these risks
could result in the following events, which in turn, could materially and adversely impact our results of operations:

« disruption of oil and natural gas exploration and production activities;




« restriction of the movement and exchange of funds;

« inhibition of our ability to collect receivables;

« enactment of additional or stricter U.S. government or international sanctions;

» limitation of our access to markets for periods of time;

« expropriation and nationalization of our assets;

+ political and economic instability, which may include armed conflict and civil disturbance;
» currency fluctuations, devaluations, and conversion restrictions;

» confiscatory taxation or other adverse tax policies; and

+ governmental actions that may result in the deprivation of our contractual rights.

Our international operations and sales increase our exposure to other countries’ restrictive tariftf regulations, other import/export
restrictions, and customer credit risk.

In addition, we are subject to taxation in many jurisdictions and the final determination of our tax labilities involves the
interpretation of the statutes and requirements of taxing authorities worldwide. Qur tax returns are subject to routine examination by
taxing authorities, and these examinations may result in assessments of additional taxes, penalties, and/or interest.

If we do not effectively manage our transitions inte new products and services, our revenues may suffer.

Products and services for the seismic industry are characterized by rapid technological advances in hardware performance,
software functionality and features, frequent introduction of new products and services, and improvement in price characteristics
relative to product and service performance. Among the risks associated with the introduction of new products and services are delays
in development or manufacturing, variations in costs, delays in customer purchases or reductions in price of existing products in
anticipation of new introductions, write-offs or write-downs of the carrying costs of inventory and raw materials associated with prior
generation products, difficulty in predicting customer demand for new product and service offerings and effectively managing
inventory levels so that they are in line with anticipated demand, risks associated with customer qualification, evaluation of new
products, and the risk that new products may have quality or other defects or may not be supported adequately by application
software. The introduction of new products and services by our competitors also may result in delays in customer purchases and
difficulty in predicting customer demand. If we do not make an effective transition from existing products and services to future
offerings, our revenues and margins may decline.

Furthermore, sales of our new products and services may replace sales, or result in discounting of some of our current offerings,
offsetting the benefit of a successful introduction. In addition, it may be difficult to ensure performance of new products and services
in accordance with our revenue, margin, and cost estimates and to achieve operational efficiencies embedded in our estimates. Given
the competitive nature of the seismic industry, if any of these risks materializes, future demand for our products and services, and our
future results of operations, may suffer.

Technological change in the seismic industry requires us to make substantial research and development expenditures.

The markets for our products and services are characterized by changing technology and new product introductions. We must
invest substantial capital to develop and maintain a leading edge in technology, with no assurance that we will receive an adequate rate
of return on those investments. If we are unable to develop and produce successfully and timely new and enhanced products and
services, we will be unable to compete in the future and our business, our results of operations, and our financial condition will be
materially and adversely affected.




We invest significant sums of money in acquiring and processing seismic data for GXT's multi-client data library.

We invest significant amounts in acquiring and processing new seismic data to add to our GXT multi-client data library. A portion
of these investments (generally, all third party data acquisition costs) is funded by our customers, while the remainder is sought to be
recovered through future data licensing fees. For 2006, we invested $39.1 million in our multi-client data library. Our customers
generally commit to licensing the data prior to our initiating a new data library acquisition program. However, the aggregate amounts
of future licensing fees for this data are sometimes uncertain and depend on a variety of factors, including the market prices of oil and
gas, customer demand for seismic data in the library, and the availability of similar data from competitors. We may not be able to
recover all of the costs of or earn any return on these investments. In periods in which sales do not meet onginal expectations, we may
be required to record additional amortization and/or impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of our data library, which
charges may be material to our operating results in any period.

Weak demand or technological obsolescence could impair the value of our multi-client data library.

We have invested significant amounts in acquiring and processing multi-client seismic survey data and expect to continue to do so
for the foresecable future. There is no assurance that we will recover all the costs of such surveys. Technological, regulatory or other
industry or general economic developments could render all or portions of our multi-client data library obsoclete or reduce its value.
Additionally, our individual surveys have a book life of four years, so particular surveys may be subject to significant amortization
even though sales of licenses associated with that survey are weak or non-existent, thus reducing our profits.

The loss of any significant customer could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We have traditionally relied on a relatively small number of significant customers. Consequently, our business is exposed to the
risks related to customer concentration. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately 8% and 9%, respectively, of
our consolidated net revenues related to one Chinese customer. For the years ended December 31, 2006, approximately 8% of our
consolidated net revenues, related to a single marine customer. The loss of any of our significant customers or deterioration in our
relations with any of them could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Historically, a relatively small number of customers has accounted for the majority of our net revenues in any period. During the
last ten years, our traditional seismic contractor customers have been rapidly consolidating, thereby consolidating the demand for our
products. In Jannary 2007, the French seismic contractor, Compagnie General de Geophysique (CGG) acquired Veritas DGC, Inc., a
large U.S. seismic contractor and a traditional customer for our products. CGG is the owner of our principal competitor for land and
marine seismic equipment, Sercel. While we do not believe the Veritas acquisition by CGG will have a material impact on us, the loss
of any of our significant customers to further consolidation could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

GXT and Concept Systems increase our exposure to the risks experienced by more technology-intensive companies.

The businesses of GXT and Concept Systems, being more concentrated in software, processing services, and proprietary
technologies than our traditional business, have exposed us to the risks typically encountered by smaller technology companies that
are more dependent on proprietary technology protection and research and development. These risks include:

« future competition from more established companies entering the market;

* product obsolescence; .

» dependence upon continued growth of the market for seismic data processing,;

+ the rate of change in the markets for GXT’s and Concept Systems’ technology and services;

« research and development efforts not proving sufficient to keep up with changing market demands;

- dependence on third-party software for inclusion in GXT’s and Concept Systems’ products and services;
+ misappropriation of GXT’s or Concept Systems’ technology by other companies;

» alleged or actual infringement of intellectual property rights that could result in substantial additional costs;




+ difficulties inherent in forecasting sales for newly developed technologies or advancements in technologies;

* recruiting, training, and retaining technically skilled personnel that could increase the costs for GXT or Concept Systems, ot
limit their growth; and

+ the ability to maintain traditional margins for certain of their technology or services.

Certain of our facilities could be damaged by hurricanes and other natural disasters, which could have an adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition,

Certain of our facilities are located in regions of the United States that are susceptible to damage from hurricanes and other
weather events, and, during 2005, were impacted by hurricanes or weather events. Qur Marine Imaging Systems segment leases
57,000-square feet of facilities located in Harahan, Louisiana, in the greater New Orleans metropolitan area. In late August 2005, we
suspended operations at this facility and evacuated and locked down the facility in preparation for Hurricane Katrina. This facility did
not experience flooding or significant damage during or afier the hurricane. However, because of employee evacuations, power
failures, and lack of related support services, utilities, and infrastructure in the New Orleans area, we were unable to resume full
operations at the facility until late September 2005,

Future hurricanes or similar natural disasters that impact our facilities may negatively affect our financial position and operating
results for those periods. These negative effects may include reduced production and product sales; costs associated with resuming
production; reduced orders for our products from customers that were similarly affected by these events; lost market share; late
deliveries; additional costs to purchase materials and supplies from outside suppliers; uninsured property losses; inadequate business
interruption insurance and an inability to retain necessary staff.

We are exposed to risks relating to the effectiveness of our internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures.

Since our management has been required to report on the evaluation and assessment of our internal control over financial reporting
(beginning with our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004), we have reported a number of material weaknesses in
our internal control over financial reporting. Because of these material weaknesses, our management concluded that as of December
31, 2004 and 2005, we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in /nternal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

The existence of these material weaknesses as of the end of certain fiscal quarters also caused our management to determine that
we did not have, at such dates, effective disclosure controls and procedures in place to ensure that the information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms at a reasonable assurance level. For further information regarding these material
weaknesses identified in our internal control over financial reporting as of specified dates, see ltem 9A. “Controls and Procedures”
contained in this Form 10-K.

We believe that the internal control weaknesses were remediated during 2006. However, we may continue to experience control
deficiencies or material weaknesses in the future, which could adversely impact the accuracy and timeliness of our future financial
reporting and reports and filings that we make with the SEC.

Disruption in vendor supplies may adversely affect our results of operations.

Our manufacturing processes require a high volume of quality components, Certain components used by us are currently provided
by only one supplier. We may, from time to time, experience supply or quality control problems with suppliers, and these problems
could significantly affect our ability to meet production and sales commitments. Reliance on certain suppliers, as well as industry
supply conditions, generally involve several risks, including the possibility of a shortage or a lack of availability of key components
and increases in component costs and reduced control over delivery schedules; any of these could adversely affect our future results of
operations.

We have putsourcing arrangements with third parties to manufacture some of our products. If these third parties fail to deliver
quality products or components at reasonable prices on a timely basis, we may alienate some of our customers and our revenues,
profitability, and cash flow may decline.



We have increased our use of contract manufacturers as an alternative to our own manufacturing of products. We have outsourced
the manufacturing of our vibrator vehicles, our towed marine streamers, our redeployable ocean bottom cables, our Applied MEMS
components, various components of VectorSeis Ocean, and certain electronic and ground components of our land acquisition systems.
If, in implementing any outsource initiative, we are unable to identify contract manufacturers willing to contract with us on
competitive terms and to devote adequate resources to fulfill their obligations to us or if we do not properly manage these
relationships, our existing customer relationships may suffer, In addition, by undertaking these activities, we run the risk that the
reputation and competitiveness of our products and services may deteriorate as a result of the reduction of our control over quality and
delivery schedules. We also may cxperience supply interruptions, cost escalations, and competitive disadvantages if our contract
manufacturers fail to develop, implement, or maintain manufacturing methods appropriate for our products and customers.

[f any of these risks are realized, our revenues, profitability, and cash flow may decline. In addition, as we come to rely more
heavily on contract manufacturers, we may have fewer personnel resources with expertise to manage problems that may arise from
these third-party arrangements,

Our outsourcing relationships may require us to purchase inventory when demand for products produced by third-party
manufacturers is low.

Under some of our outsourcing arrangements, our manufacturing outsourcers purchase agreed-upon inventory levels to meet our
forecasted demand. At times when we are operating without a significant backlog of orders for our products, our manufacturing plans
and inventory levels will be principally based on sales forecasts. If demand proves to be less than we originally forecasted and we
cancel our committed purchase orders, our outsourcers generally will have the right to require us to purchase inventory which they had
purchased on our behalf. Should we be required to purchase inventory under these terms, we may be required to hold inventory that
we may never utilize.

Under our five-year supply agreement with Colibrys Ltd., we have commitied to purchase a minimum number of MEMS
accelerometers with an agreed upon cost of between $7.0 million to $8.0 million per year through 2009. If demand for our VectorSeis
products, which MEMS accelerometers are a component of, prove to be less than we originally forecasted, we could be required to
purchase MEMS accelerometers that we may never utilize,

We may be unable to obtain broad intellectual property protection for our current and future products and we may become
involved in intellectual property disputes.

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, and trademark laws, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures, and contractual
provisions to protect our proprietary technologies. We believe that the technological and creative skill of our employees, new product
developments, frequent product enhancements, name recognition, and reliable product maintenance are the foundations of our
competitive advantage. Although we have a considerable portfolio of patents, copyrights, and trademarks, these property rights offer
us only limited protection. OQur competitors may attempt to copy aspects of our products despite our efforts to protect our proprietary
rights, or may design around the proprietary features of our products. Policing unauthorized use of our proprietary rights is difficult,
and we are unable to determine the extent to which such use occurs. Our difficulties are compounded in certain foreign countries
where the laws do not offer as much protection for proprietary rights as the laws of the United States.

Third parties inquire and claim from time to time that we have infringed upon their intellectual property rights. Any such claims,
with or without merit, could be time consuming, result in costly fitigation, result in injunctions, require product modifications, cause
product shipment delays or require us to enter into royalty or licensing arrangements. Such claims could have a material adverse affect
on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our outstanding Series D-1 Preferred Stock and 5.5% convertible senior notes are convertible into shares of our common stock,
Under certain circumstances, the conversion of these securities could result in substantial dilution to existing stockholders, and
sales in the open market of the shares of common stock acquired upon conversion may have the effect of reducing the then-current
market prices for our common stock.

Our outstanding Series D-1 Preferred Stock and 5.5% convertible senior notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at
initial conversion prices of $7.869 and $4.32 per share, respectively. The conversion prices per share of common stock under the
Series D-1 Preferred Stock and the 5.5% convertible senior notes are substantially below currently prevailing market prices for our
common stock. Converting all of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock and 5.5% convertible notes would result in an additional 17,701,318
shares of common stock issued and outstanding (representing 22.1% of our outstanding shares as of February 28, 2007). This could
result in significant dilution to our stockholders. The 5.5% convertible notes mature in December 2008. Assuming that market prices
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for our common shares continue through December 2008 at levels that are significantly greater than the conversion price per share for
the convertible senior notes, it is fikely that at or prior to that time, these convertible senior notes will be converted into shares of our
common stock. The shares of common stock issuable upon conversion under the convertible senior notes and the Series D-1 Preferred
Stock are currently covered under effective registration statements that we previously filed with the SEC, and accordingly, these
shares should be available for immediate resale in the open market upon conversion. The sale of shares of our common stock into the
open market at one time by persons who acquire shares upon such conversion may have the effect of decreasing the market price for
our shares due to there being additional shares in the market and downward pressures on market prices from the pending sales. In
addition, these effects from conversion of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock and 5.5% convertible senior notes at one time could limit our
ability to raise additional capital. Our common stock has historically been subject to significant fluctuations in price and volume,
which could cause rapid losses in its market value.

Future technologies and businesses that we may acquire may be difficult to integrate, disrupt nur business, dilute stockholder
value or divert management attention,

An important aspect of our current business strategy is to seek new technologies, products, and businesses to broaden the scope of
our existing and planned product lines and technologies. While we believe that these acquisitions complement our technologies and
our general business strategy, there can be no assurance that we will achieve the expected benefit of these acquisitions. In addition,
these acquisitions may result in unexpected costs, expenses, and liabilities.

Acquisitions expose us to:

» increased costs associated with the acquisition and operation of the new businesses or technologies and the management of
geographically dispersed operations;

» risks associated with the assimilation of new technologies, operations, sites, and personnel;

» the possible loss of key employees and costs associated with their loss;

* risks that any technology we acquire may not perform as well as we had anticipated,

+ the diversion of management’s attention and other resources from existing business concerns;
* the potential inability to replicate operating efficiencies in the acquired company’s operations;
» potential impairments of goodwill and intangible assets;

» the inability to generate revenues to offset associated acquisition costs;

» the requirement to maintain uniform standards, controls, and procedures;

+ the impairment of relationships with employees and customers as a result of any integration of new and inexperienced
management personnel; and

» the risk that acquired technologies do not provide us with the benefits we anticipated.

Integration of the acquired businesses requires significant efforts from each entity, including coordinating existing business plans
and research and development efforts. Integrating operations may distract management’s attention from the day-to-day operation of
the combined companies. If we are unable to successfully integrate the operations of acquired businesses, our future results will be
negatively impacted.

Our operations, and the operations of our customers, are subject to numerous government regulations, which could adversely limit
our operating flexibility.

Our operations are subject to laws, regulations, government policies, and product certification requirements worldwide. Changes in
such laws, regulations, policies or requirements could affect the demand for our products or result in the need to modify products,
which may involve substantial costs or delays in sales and could have an adverse effect on our future operating results. Qur export
activities are also subject to extensive and evolving trade regulations. Certain countries are subject to restrictions, sanctions, and
embargoes imposed by the United States government. These restrictions, sanctions, and embargoes also prohibit or limit us from
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participating in certain business activities in those countries. Qur operations are subject to numerous local, state, and federal laws and
regulations in the United States and in foreign jurisdictions concerning the containment and disposal of hazardous materials, the
remediation of contaminated properties, and the protection of the environment. These laws have been changed frequently in the past,
and there can be no assurance that future changes will not have a material adverse effect on us. In addition, our customers’ operations
are also significantly impacted by laws and regulations concerning the protection of the environment and endangered species.
Consequently, changes in governmental regulations applicable to our customers may reduce demand for our products. For instance,
regulations regarding the protection of marine mammals in the Gulf of Mexico may reduce demand for our airguns and other marine
products. To the extent that our customers’ operations are disrupted by future laws and regulations, our business and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Note: The foregoing factors pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 should net be construed as
exhaustive. In addition to the foregoing, we wish to refer readers to other factors discussed elsewhere in this report as well as
other filings and reports with the SEC for a further discussion of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the
result of any revisions to any such forward-looking statements, which may be made to reflect the events or circumstances after
the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item2. Properties

Qur primary operating facilities at December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Square .

Operating Facilities F(?ulagc Segment
SHAFTOT, TEXAS e ettt b 184,000 Land and Marine Imaging Systems
HOUSION, TEXAS .evvieiis sttt ettt e sb e s r b e 100,000 Seismic [maging Solutions
Harahan, LouwiSiana ...t s 57,000 Marine imaging Systems
Jebel Ali, Dubai, United Arab EMIrates.........cocoovieeieeiieecieeeeeceeeeesvsinene 47,000 Land Imaging Systems
Voorschoten, The Netherlands.............ccoiio 30,000 Land Imaging Systems
Denver, Colorado ... s 21,000 Seismic Imaging Solutions
Edinburgh, Scotland ... ... 12,000 Data Management Solutions

451,000

Each of these operating facilities is leased by us under a long-term lease agreement. These lease agreements have terms that expire
ranging from 2007 to 2017. See Note 16 of Notes ro Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, we lease sales and support offices in Cranleigh, Egham, and Norwich, England; Bahrain; Aberdeen, Scotland; Calgary,
Canada; Beijing, China; and Moscow, Russia to support our global sales force. We also lease seismic data processing centers in La
Castellana, Venezuela; Port Harcourt, Nigeria; and Luanda, Angola; and we lease an advanced imaging center in Port of Spain,
Trinidad. Our executive headquarters (utilizing approximately 23,100 square feet) is located at 2101 CityWest Blvd, Building IlI,
Suite 400, Houston, Texas. The machinery, equipment, buildings, and other facilities owned and leased by us are considered by our
management to be sufficiently maintained and adequate for our current operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Legal Matters. In October 2002, we filed a lawsuit against Paulsson Geophysical Services, Inc. (PGSI) and its then-owner in the
286th District Court for Fort Bend County, Texas, seeking recovery of approximately $0.7 million that was unpaid and due to us
resulting from the sale of a custom-built product that PGSI had asked us to construct in 2001. After we filed suit to recover the PGSI
receivable, PGSI alleged that the delivered custom product was defective and counter-claimed against us, asserting breach of contract,
breach of warranty and other related causes of action. The case was initially tried to a jury during May 2004. The jury retumed a
verdict in June 2004, the results of which would not have supported a judgment awarding damages to either us or the defendants. In
August 2004, the presiding judge overruled the jury verdict and ordered a new trial. The new trial commenced in March 2006 and the
jury in the new trial returned a verdict in April 2006 finding that both parties had breached their contract but that PGSI did not suffer
any damages in connection with our breach. In September 2006, the Court issued a final judgment awarding us $732,074 in damages




on our breach of contract claim, $365,000 in attorneys’ fees, $166,431 in prejudgment interest, plus post-judgment interest and our
recoverable legal costs, while issuing a take-nothing judgment against PGSI. PGSI did not appeal the judgment, On December 22,
2006, the judgment became final, nonappealable and binding on both us and PGSI. In December 2004, PGSI and its current majority
owner confirmed to us their intention to pay the judgment in full. As a result, we recorded the benefit of $1.3 million as a credit to its
legal expenses (general and administrative expense) during the fourth quarter of 2006. See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

We have been named in various lawsuits or threatened actions that are incidental to our ordinary business. Such lawsuits and
actions could increase in number as our business expands and we grow larger. Litigation is inherently unpredictable. Any claims
against us, whether meritorious or not, could be time consuming, cause us to incur costs and expenses, require significant amounts of
management time and result in the diversion of significant operational resources. The results of these lawsuits and actions cannot be
predicted with certainty. We currently believe that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse impact on
our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable,
PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our commeon stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “10.” The following table sets forth the
high and low sales prices of the common stock for the periods indicated, as reported in NYSE composite tape transactions.

Price Range

Period High Low
Year ended December 31, 2007:
First Quarter (through March 9, 2007) ........oooom et s e s et et tas e sateb e st sasenesanen s easesteas $ 1482 % 1147
Year ended December 31, 2006:
FOURTI QUUAITET ... e e e st b e st bt e b et e eba b et b od e b eb s s ent b s e enbeb s e amb b e s e $ 1405 8% 9.50
THIEA QUAIET ...ttt e et bt ebe e h s b bes s o205 b e eeeemeesemeemseneneemsenssemsennsemsennesann 10.20 8.38
SECOMH QMUAMET ... re et bt ettt s s es et s 4405 b 041 me s e s e e e emeaesensmnmns s amsnn s emsnnesamsees s e 11.10 819
FIFSE QUATTET ... ccctee e et e b e e e b ae bt e sasbs b e eeen e e e essmsnsetensen s eanasesnseseesessmsnsnesseenenn 10.04 6.95
Year ended December 31, 2005;
FOUNTI QUARIET.....c.eiec ettt b s et base st s oo e s me e ee e eaeeeeaenensenesnenemssanssoe e sana e sananenen 5 B57% 675
THITE QUATTET ...ttt ettt et ae s ss s e e s e s s e emsmemsrsrenss e e e e enesssssassns s s s s st snsnsnssas e 8.80 6.10
SECOTI (QUATTET ...ttt e et te et e e ee e e e es s tesrter e s mteaeantaneaseereaseesenseseaatesaeersaresseent sesetenaeresarenanan 7.07 5.28
FATSE QUATIET ...ttt a et et s et ea s s et easebaresasssesssn s s asessantensabe s ansab e b s e b s e ssssb s s sntsbenrsnesesseas 8.82 5.90

We have not historically paid, and do not intend to pay in the foreseeable future, cash dividends on our common stock. We
presently intend to retain cash from operations for use in our business, with any futurc decision to pay cash dividends on our common
stock dependent upon our growth, profitability, financial condition and other factors our board of directors consider relevant. In
addition, the terms of our revolving line of credit facility agreement prohibit us from paying dividends on or repurchasing shares of
our common stock without the prior consent of the lenders.

In February 2005 we issued 30,000 shares of our newly designated Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (Series D-1
Preferred Stock), which accrues cumulative dividends at a minimum rate of 5% per annum, payable quarterly. These dividends may be
paid, at our election, in cash or shares of registered common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we declared and paid
$2.3 million in cash dividends on these outstanding shares of Series D-1 Preferred Stock. So leng as any shares of Series D-1
Preferred Stock are outstanding, we may not pay any dividends in cash or property to holders of our commeon stock, and may not
purchase or redeem for cash or property any common stock, unless there are no arrearages in dividends paid on the Series D-1
Preferred Stock and sufficient cash has been set aside to pay dividends on the Series D-1 Preferred Stock for the next four quarterly
dividend periods. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity
and Capital Resources.”
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On December 31, 2006, there were 682 holders of record of our common stock.

During the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, we made no repurchases (within the meaning of Item 703 of
Regulation S$-K) of any shares of our common stock.

In January 1997, our board of directors adopted a stockholder rights plan having a ten-year term. The plan was designed and
implemented in order to give our board of directors increased power to negotiate in our company’s best interests and to discourage
appropriation of control of I/O at a price that was unfair to stockholders. The stockholder rights plan involved the distribution of one
preferred share purchase “right™ as a dividend on each outstanding share of our common stock to all holders on record on January 27,
1997. Each right entitled the holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of our Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of
$200 per one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, subject to adjustment. The rights traded in tandem with our
common stock until, and would become exercisable following, the occurrence of certain triggering events, On January 27, 2007, our
board of directors determined not to renew the stockholders rights plan, and the plan and the rights issued under the plan expired in
accordance with the terms of the plan,

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below with respect to our consolidated statements of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003, and 2002, and with respcct to our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2006,
2005, 2004, 2003, and 2002 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. Our results of operations and
financial condition have been affected by acquisitions of companies and dispositions of assets during the periods presented, which
may affect the comparability of the financial information. In particular, the selected financial data set forth below reflects our
acquisitions of Concept Systems and GXT in February and June 2004, respectively; the occurrence of these acquisitions during 2004
affects the comparability of financial information for fiscal years after 2004. For more information on our acquisitions, see Note 2 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. This information should not be considered as being necessarily indicative of future
operations, and should be read in conjunction with Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2008 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except for per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Product FEVENLES .......oviviiecerieesre e e st e et srs s $ 354,258 $ 237,359 § 194978 § 150,033 5 118,583
SErVICE TEVEMUES ...o.vvsieiiii e err e eneie e st s 149,298 125,323 45,663 — —
NEL TEVETIUES. ....c.eeeeeeteir et seeis st ess et sreenen e e e sreereene e e e b s as 503.556 362,682 240,641 150,033 118,583
Cost Of PrOdUCES ......oveeecee e 257,749 169,688 134,874 122,192 101,018
COSE OF SEIVICES ..eoneieieeeeece ettt eae et en s e e e e e re e 91,592 86,619 40.075 — —
GFOSS PrOfIL cuoveieei e 154215 106.375 65,692 27.841 17.565
Operating expenses (income):
Research and development ... 32,751 20,266 19,611 18,696 28,756
Marketing and Sales .........oveeverereiiieicee e 40,651 33,167 23,491 12,566 11,218
General and adminiStraAIVE ........oovvvviiiverereeerecerne e rer e seee e 40,807 28,227 29,748 16,753 19,760
Loss {gain) on sale of 855€t5.......coceveceeceieiciiiciniie e 58 99 (3,980) (291) 425
Impairment of long-lived assets........cccoveveviiiiiiniiine e — — — 1,120 6,274
Goodwill IMPAIrMENT ..o — — — — 15.122
Total Operating eXPenseS. ..o oeeereiceiii i 114,267 81.759 68.870 48.844 81.555
Income (loss) from OPErations ..........ccoveeciiiiininicni e 39,648 24,616 (3,178) (21,003) (63,990)
IOEEIESE EXPEINSE ..t reerecrrearenrererenrereamearersiasntsessensmsesne e ae e (5,770) (6,134) (6,231) (4,087) (3,124)
IREETEST IICOME. ... i iiireerarereee e irteeesiareeeesenrsesinraessareeeeaareeeeanannenannneeens 2,040 843 1,276 - 1,903 2,280
Other INCOME (EXPENSE) ..ovvciviviiviiiinisininisisieerersie e (2,161) 820 220 685 (373)
Fair value adjustment and exchange of warrant obligation.............. — — — 1,757 3,252
Impairment of INVESIMENt ... — — -_ (2,059) —
Income (loss) before income taxes and change in accounting
PHNCIPIE 1.t e 34,057 20,145 (7.913) (22,804) {61,955)
INCOME 1aX EXPENSE..coeriiiiiiiiiinii e 5,114 1.366 70! 348 56,770

Net income (loss) before change in accounting principle ............. 28,943 18,779 (8,614) (23,152)  (118,725)




Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except for per share data)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.........ocvvveienenee 398 — — — —
Net income (L0SS) wuoeicieeivninevri e e e 29,341 18,779 (8,614)  (23,152)  (118,723)
Preferred stock dividends and aceretion ........oovvvvcvvvvnvivinnininninnenes 2,429 1,635 — — 947
Net income {loss) applicable to common shares...........co.occveveeee. $ 26912 § 17144 § (8,614) § (23,152) § (119,672)

Net income (loss) per basic share before change in accounting

PIINCIPIE cooievieciee ettt e r s 8 033 3% 022 $ (0.13) § (045 % (2.3%)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.........occoovvrereene. 0.01 — — — —
Net income (loss) per basic share ........coccoeviieiiiccccneie e ) 034 % 022 §  (013) 8 (045 3 (2.35)
Net income (loss) per diluted share before change in accounting

PEICIPIE coeviiiictete ettt et r e en st a s e te s ansens 5 032 § 021 § (0.13) % (045 3 (2.35)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........oorvevierene. 0.01 — — — —
Net income (loss) per diluted share...............coo.oooeeeeeeccivcvee e, $ 033 % 021 $__ (01N S (045 % (2.35)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding................. 79,497 78,600 65,759 51,080 50,879
Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding................... 95,182 79,842 65,759 51,080 50,879
Balance Sheet Data (end of year):
Working capital..... ..o, $ 170342 $ 153,761 § 101,121 § 133467 $ 114,940
TOLA] ASSEIS.coiveieiieeee et et ev bt 655,136 537,861 486,094 249,204 249,594
Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt.................... 6,566 4,405 0,564 2,687 2,142
Long-term debt, net of current maturities .........ccoocoeeevieinsvcissiieenns 70,974 71,541 79,387 78,516 51,430
Cumulative convertible preferred stock......ovvevivv v, 29,987 29,838 — — —
Stockholders” eqUILY .....occoiviiivie v ese s es 369,668 327,545 308,760 133,764 152,486
Other Data:
Capital eXPenditlres........ccocvivirrecieiccrereseeaa et siee s eeserees $ 13,704 § 5304 § 5,022 § 43587 § 2,230
Investment in multi-client library ..........ccoooiiiiiiiii e 39,087 19,678 4,168 — —
Depreciation and amortization (other than rulti-client library) ....... 22,036 23,497 18,345 11,444 13,237
Amortization of multi-client library........cccoccooiioiieee 25,011 10,707 5,870 — —

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Note: The following should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes that appear
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Executive Summary

We are a leading seismic solutions company, providing the global oil and natural gas industry with a variety of seismic products
and services, including seismic data acquisition equipment, survey design planning services, navigation and data management
software products, seismic data libraries, and seismic data processing services. In recent years, we have transformed our business from
being solely a seismic equipment manufacturer to being a provider of a full range of seismic imaging products and services, During
2004, we completed two acquisitions as part of our strategy to expand the range of products and services we provide. This expanded
offering, including seismic data management software and advanced imaging services, has enabled us to broaden our customer base
beyond seismic acquisition contractors to also include oil and natural gas exploration and production companies,

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, our equipment and systems sales revenues and our services revenues increased
significantly over those for the comparable periods in 2005. Each of our four operating business segments experienced strong
percentage increases in their annual revenues compared to their revenues for 2005, Income from operations for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2006 was significantly higher in our Marine Imaging Systems, Seismic Imaging Soluttons, and Data
Management Solutions business segments, compared to income from operations for 2005. Income from operations for our Land
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Imaging Systems segment declined for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005, primarily because of
increased research and development expenses associated with FireFly and continued competitive pricing pressures.

Cash flows provided by our operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $58.0 million, due principally to
increases in net income and increases in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred revenue, partially offset by an increase in
our inventory primarily in our Marine Imaging Systems segment and an increase in accounts receivable. The increase in our deferred
revenue was primarily the result of (i) increased underwriting commitments from our customers for GXT’s new seismic data
acquisition projects for which we have not yet recognized the related revenue (see “— Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates”
below) and (ii) advanced payments for our new FireFly cableless full-wave land seismic data acquisition system. At December 31,
2006, we had $17.1 million in cash and cash equivalents, and there were no outstanding borrowings under our revolving line of credit.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, we continued to see increasing interest in our new technologies. During the fourth
guarter of 2006, we completed final engineering and began deployment and field testing of our new FireFly cableless full-wave land
seismic data acquisition system for a project in the Wamsutter gas fields in Wyoming. In the first quarter of 2007, we expect FireFly
to be deployed for a project with Apache Corporation. During August 2006, we announced the receipt of an order for approximately
$29 million from Reservoir Exploration Technology, a marine seismic contractor headquartered in Oslo, Norway, for a third
VectorSeis Ocean redeployable ocean-bottom cable system. This system was partially delivered in the fourth quarter of 2006, with the
remainder scheduled for delivery in the first quarter of 2007. In October 2006, we announced the release and first commercial sale of
our Scorpion system for cable-based, land seismic data acquisition. The Scorpion system builds upon our traditional System Four land
acquisition system platform and incorporates several new features designed to improve the system’s recording capacity, reliability,
productivity, and ease of use.

We operate our company through four business segments: Land Imaging Systems, Marine Imaging Systems, Data Management
Solutions, and Seismic Imaging Solutions. The following table provides an overview of key financial metrics for our company as a
whole and our four business segments during the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004:

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Net revenues:
Land IMAgIng SYSIEMIS .......rvrrrierese s erss s sssssas e s § 205,779 § 155,172 § 126,041
Maring IMaging SYSLEIMIS ....ovuuimrriririiirnsei e s 127,927 69,604 54,680
Data Management SOIITIONS ......oviiviiiinii b 23,198 15,966 14,797
Seismic IMaging SOILHONS. ..o 146,652 121,940 44,015
Corporate and ORET.........c.ciiiiiiii b — — 1.108
B 1 ROV OO OO OU P PP PTOPPP PP PUP $ 503,556 § 362,682 § 240,641
Income (loss) from operations:
Land IMaging SYSIEIMIS.......c.ovemereiriiiiirissinsnsrrs st $ 13463 § 18413 § 17,643
Maring IMaging SYSLEIMS ....covvcirieiiiicsiriiartnn e e s s 30,258 15,895 4,596
Data Management SOIUHIOMNS .....o.vcuiuicciasi e s 7,461 3,430 3,200
Seismic Imaging SOIIHONS. ..o e 28,648 15,265 (8,003)
Corporate and OLHEI™ ..ot e (39,882} (28,387) (20.614)
TOUAL 1ovvveseeeeeeeeeeee s et eeesaeseaaeareststeressamseaeemeabebes b b ertes b nare s ne e ennemeee A SIS AR AR AR SRRt § 39948 $ 24616 § (3,178)
Net income (10ss} applicable 10 COMITION SHATES ...cvruirueisirieeiesseess e $§ 26912 $ 7,144 § (8.614)
Net income (1088) Per basic SHATE ..........ccooirreciii s 3 034 § 022 § (0.13)
Net income (1088) per diluted SRAre...........coooeeeiiiiiii s $ 0.33 § 021 §  (0.13)

* Represents corporate general and administrative expenses not allocated to any segment.

The impact of our adoption in 2006 of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (SFAS 123R), resulted in the recognition of $6.1 million of stock-based compensation expense related to our employees’
outstanding stock-based awards. The total expense is comprised of $1.2 million reflected in cost of sales, $0.8 million in research and
development expense, $1.4 million in marketing and sales expense, and $2.7 million in general and administrative expense.
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We intend that the discussion of our financial condition and results of operations that follows will provide information that will
assist in understanding our consolidated financial statements, the changes in certain key items in those financial statements from year
to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes.

For a discussion of factors that could impact our future operating results and financial condition, see Item |A. “Risk Factors™
above.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net Revenues: Net revenues of $503.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $140.9 million, compared to the
corresponding period last year principally due to increased activity and demand for seismic services. Land Imaging Systems’ net
revenues increased by $50.6 million, to $205.8 million compared to $155.2 million during the twelve months ended December 31,
2006. This increase was due to an increase in sales of our land acquisition systems, vibrator trucks, and our Sensor geophones. Marine
Imaging Systems’ net revenues increased $58.3 million to $127.9 million, compared to $69.6 million during the year ended December
31, 2006 due to the significant upturn in demand for towed marine seismic equipment as well as deliveries of our VectorSeis Ocean
systems to our customer, Reservoir Exploration Technology.

Seismic Imaging Solutions’ net revenues increased $24.8 million, to $146.7 million compared to $121.9 million in 2005. This
increase was related to higher proprietary processing revenues and pre-funded multi-client seismic surveys primarily off the coasts of
India, northern Canada and Alaska partially offset by a decrease in off-the-shelf seismic data sales. Data Management Solutions’ net
revenues increased $7.2 million, to $23.2 million compared to $16.0 million in 2005, reflecting the increased demand for marine
seismic work.

Grass Profit and Gross Prafit Percentage: Gross profit of $154.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $47.8
million compared to the prior year. Gross profit percentage for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 was 31% compared to
29% in the prior year. The improvement in our gross margin percentages is primarily due to an increase in revenues from pre-funded
multi-client seismic surveys, which represent higher margins, offset by continued pricing pressures on our land acquisition system
sales and Sensor geophone sales as well as a higher mix of lower margin vibrator truck sales during 2006 compared to 2005. We have
developed several cost control initiatives to address the pricing pressures on our land acquisition system sales, and we expect to see
the positive impact of these initiatives beginning in 2007.

Research and Development: Research and development expense of $32.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased
$12.5 miltion compared to the corresponding period last year. We incurred significant research and development expenses in 2006 and
expect to continue to incur significant research and development expenses in 2007 at or above these levels, as we continue to invest
heavily in our next generation of seismic acquisition products and services, including products such as FireFly and DigiFIN. For a
discussion of our product research and development programs in 2007, see [tem 1. “Business — Product Research and Development.”

Marketing and Sales: Marketing and sales expense of $40.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $7.5 million
compared to the prior year. The increase is primarily a result of an increase in commissions to employees and our non-employee sales
force associated with our overall increase in sales during 2006, in addition to the impact of adopting SFAS 123R. We intend to
continue investing significant sums in our marketing efforts as we seek to penetrate markets for our new products.

General and Administrative: General and administrative expense of $40.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased
$12.6 million compared to the prior year. The increase in general and administrative expense is primarily related to additional
management and corporate personnel, increased audit and consulting fees, and an increase in bonuses for 2006 related to our improved
results of operations, in addition to the impact of adopting SFAS 123R.

Income Tax Expense: Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $5.1 million compared to income tax
expense of $1.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Inciuded in the 2005 income tax expense is a $1.4 million
tax benefit resulting from a reduction in our tax reserves due to closure of a foreign tax matter. Excluding the reduction for tax
reserves, the increase in tax expense during 2006 primarily relates to improved results of our foreign operations and state income
taxes. We continue to maintain a valuation allowance for substantially all of our net deferred tax assets. The Company’s effective tax
rate for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 15.0% as compared to 6.8% for the similar period during 2005. The increased
effective tax rate for the current year relates to improved results of operations of our foreign divisions and the reduction in our tax
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reserves during the prior year. The 2006 effective tax rate was lower than the statutory rate due to the utilization of previously
reserved domestic deferred tax assets.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Accretion: Preferred stock dividends and accretion of $2.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 relate to our Series D-1 Preferred Stock that we issued in 2005. Dividends are paid at a rate equal to the greater of (i) five percent
per annum or (i1) the three month LIBOR rate on the last day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter plus two and one-half
percent per annum. All dividends paid on the Series D-1 Preferred Stock have been paid in cash. The preferred stock dividend rate was
7.87% at December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net Revenues: Net revenues of $362.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $122.0 million, compared to the
corresponding period last year principally due to the acquisition of GXT. Land Imaging Systems’ net revenues increased by $29.2
million, to $155.2 million compared to $126.0 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, This increase was due to
an increase in sales of our land acquisition systems, vibrator trucks, and our Sensor geophones. Marine Imaging Systems’ net revenues
increased $14.9 million to $69.6 million, compared to $54.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2004. In 2004, we sold our
first VectorSeis Ocean acquisition system, representing $16.0 million of revenues in 2004, and $6.8 million in revenues in 2005,
Excluding the impact of VectorSeis Ocean, Marine Imaging Systems’ net revenues significantly increased in 2005 due to a stronger
marine seismic market compared to 2004.

Seismic Imaging Solutions’ net revenues increased $77.9 million, to $121.9 million compared to $44.0 million in 2004, due to our
acquisiion of GXT in June 2004, GXT contributed $114.6 million to our net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005,
compared to $37.6 million for the prior year. Concept Systems, which we acquired in February 2004, contributed $16.0 million to our
net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $14.8 million in 2004,

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Percentage: Gross profit of $106.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $40.7
million compared to the prior year. Gross profit percentage for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 was 29% compared to
27% in the prior year. The increase in our gross margin percentages is primarily due to an increase in multi-client data library sales,
which represent higher margins, offset by continued pricing pressures on land acquisition systems related to entering new markets and
a higher mix of lower margin vibrator truck sales during 2005, compared to 2004.

Research and Developmeni: Research and development expense of $20.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased
$0.7 million compared to the corresponding period last year. We incurred significant research and development expenses in 2005 and
expect to continue to incur significant research and development expenses as we continue to invest heavily in the next generation of
seismic acquisition products and services, such as FireFly.

Marketing and Sales: Marketing and sales expense of $33.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $9.7 million
compared to the prior year. The increase is primarily a result of the acquisition of GXT in June 2004. Excluding these expenses of
GXT, our sales and marketing expenses reflect additional sales personnel, an increase in business development personnel within our
product groups, an increase in corporate marketing and advertising expenses, and expenses related to our sales representative offices
in Moscow and Beijing. We intend to continue investing significant sums in our marketing efforts as we seek to penetrate markets for
our new products,

General and Administrative: Qeneral and administrative expense of $28.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
decreased $!1.5 million compared to the prior year. The decrease in general and administrative expense is primarily related to our
Marine Imaging Systems’ 2004 provision of $5.2 million for doubtful accounts and notes associated with sales receivables due from a
former Russian customer. This decrease is partially offset by a full year of GXT’s operations (acquired in June 2004), an increase in
fees and expenses associated with the continued requirements under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and an increase in
bonuses.

Income Tax Expense: Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $1.4 million compared to income tax
expense of $0.7 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. The increase is primarily related to increased operating
results within our foreign Sensor geophone and Concept Systems divisions. Included in the 2005 income tax expense is a $1.4 million
tax benefit resulting from a reduction in our tax reserves due to closure of a foreign tax matter. We continue to maintain a valuation
allowance for substantially all of our net deferred tax assets.
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Preferred Stock Dividends and Accretion: Preferred stock dividends and accretion of $1.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 relates to the Series D-1 Preferred Stock which was issued in February 2005. Dividends are paid at a rate equal to the greater of
(i) five percent per annum or {ii) the three month LIBOR rate on the last day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter plus two
and one-half percent per annum.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Capital

In May 20035, we obtained a $25.0 million revolving line of credit facility having a maturity date of May 24, 2008; there were no
outstanding borrowings under this line of credit at December 31, 2006. We can periodically elect to use either the lender’s Base Rate
(as defined in the credit agreement) or the three-month LIBOR Rate plus 2.25% to 2.75% (depending on our Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio, as defined in the credit agreement) as the interest rate on outstanding borrowings under the revolving line of credit. Had we
drawn on the facility at December 31, 2006, the annual interest rate in effect would have been 8.25%. In addition, we can issue letters
of credit totaling up to $5.0 million under this facility, which, if issued, reduces our borrowing availability under the line of credit. We
currently are planning to replace this revolving credit facility during 2007 with a new revolving credit facility having greater
borrowing capacity.

A portion of our assets are pledged as collateral for outstanding borrowings under the line of credit. Total borrowings are subject to
a borrowing base limitation based on a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and inventories. As of December 31, 2006, the
borrowing base calculation permitted total available borrowings of $25 million. Our borrowing base could decrease if our Eligible
Collateral (as defined in the credit agreement) falls below $25 million. The credit agreement prohibits us from paying dividends on
common stock and limits certain capital expenditures (as defined), incurring additional debt, selling significant assets, acquiring other
businesses, and merging with other entities without the consent of the lenders. The credit agreement requires compliance with certain
financial and non-financial covenants, including quarterly requirements related to a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (not less than 1.25
1o 1), as defined in the agreement. The credit agreement includes a contingent lockbox arrangement which is triggered upon an event
of default or if our availability under the line of credit falls below $5.0 million. If this arrangement is triggered, all available funds
would be used to pay down the outstanding principal balance under the line of credit. We currently classify the outstanding balance, if
any, under the line of credit as long-term; however, if the contingent lockbox arrangement is triggerzd, we would be required to reflect
the outstanding borrowings, if any, under this line of credit as short-term. Except for the limits on certain 2006 capital expenditures
(which limits were waived by the lender), we were in compliance with all of the covenants under the credit agreement as of December
31, 2006,

In February 2005, we issued 30,000 shares of a newly-designated Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (Series D-1
Preferred Stock) in a privately-negotiated transaction, and received $29.8 million in net proceeds. The conversion price per share for
common stock under the Series D-1 Preferred Stock is $7.869 per share (subject to adjustment under certain circumstances). We also
granted to the Series [)-1 Preferred Stock purchaser the right, expiring on February 16, 2008, to purchase up to an additional 40,000
shares of Series D-1 Preferred Stock, having a conversion price equal to 122% of the then-prevailing market price of our common
stock at the time of issuance, but not less than $6.31 per share.

The terms of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock provide that if we fail to pay dividends, or if a change of control of our company is
announced, the holder of the preferred stock has the right to redeem all or part of his Series D-1 Preferred Stock. We may satisfy our
redemption obligations either in cash or by the issuance of our common stock, calculated based upon the prevailing market price of
our common stock at the time of redemption, but which conversion price cannot be iess than $4.45 per share subject to adjustment (the
“Minimum Price”). If the 20-day average price of the our common stock is less than the Minimum Price during that time, we may
satisfy our redemption obligation by resetting the conversion price to the Minimum Price, and thereafter, all dividends must be paid in
cash. In the event we cannot deliver registered shares upon a redemption and to the extent we cannot deliver cash, the dividend rate
will increase to 15%. Also, if an effective registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission covering
potential resale of the common stock underlying the Series D-1 Preferred Stock is not available for selling stockholders, we will be
required to pay an additional dividend equal to 1/15 % multiplied by the number of days (this equates to 2% per month) that an
effective registration statement is not available.

We have outstanding $60.0 million of 5.5% convertible senior notes that mature on December 15, 2008. These notes are not
redeemable prior to their maturity, and are convertible into the Company’s common stock at an initial conversion rate of 231.4815
shares per 81,000 principal amount of notes (a conversion price of $4.32 per share), which represents 13,888,890 total shares of
common stock. We are considering various alternatives with regard to the repayment or refinancing of the indebtedness under these
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notes. It is possible that any replacement of the debt capital represented by these notes in new debt capital may have the effect of
increasing our overall borrowing costs.

The conversion price per share of common stock under the Series D-1 Preferred Stock and the 5.5% convertible senior notes are
substantially below the currently prevailing market prices for our common stock. Converting all of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock and
the 5.5% convertible senior notes at one time would result in significant dilution to our stockholders that could limit our ability to raise
additional capitat.

Cash Flow from Operations

We have historically financed our operations from internally generated cash and funds from equity and debt financings. Cash and
cash equivalents were $17.1 million at December 31, 2006, an increase of $1.2 million compared to December 31, 2005. Net cash
provided by operating activities was $58.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to net cash provided by operating
activities of $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in net cash provided in our operating activities was
primarily due to an increase in our profitability, particularly in the second and fourth quarters of 2006, and increases in our accounts
payable (the level of outstanding accounts payable was reduced after December 31, 2006 by our payments to vendors in the beginning
of 2007), cash receipts related to deferred revenues, and accrued expenses. These increases were partially offset by increases in our
receivables due to our higher sales volumes and an increase in our inventory due to our forecasted increase in demand for our products
in 2007.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $49.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $28.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005. The principal uses of our cash for investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2006
were $13.7 million of equipment purchases, a $39.1 million investment in our multi-client data hbrary, and $2.0 million in proceeds
from the note receivable associated with our prior sale of a facility in Alvin, Texas. We expect to spend approximately $60 million on
investments in our multi-client data library during 2007, and anticipate that a majority of this investment will be underwritten by our
customers. The level of our investment in our multi-client data could fluctuate significantly based upon the level of customer
underwriting obtained. In addition, capital expenditures for 2007 are anticipated to be approximately $25 mitlion. The majority of
these expenditures, approximately $i5 million, relate to GXT computer equipment purchases, which are generally financed through
capital leases. The remaining sums are anticipated to be funded from internally generated cash.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash flow used in financing activities was $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $27.9 million of
cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2005. We paid $2.3 million of cash dividends on our Series D-1
Preferred Stock during 2006. We made scheduled payments of $6.9 million on our notes payable, long-term debt and lease obligations
and had net repayments under our revolving line of credit of $3.0 million. Our employees exercised stock options and purchased
common stock, resulting in proceeds to us of $4.4 million during the peried.

Inflation and Seasonality

Inflation in recent years has not had a material effect on our costs of goods or labor, or the prices for our products or services.
Traditionally, our business has been seasonal, with strongest demand in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year.




Future Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth estimates of future payments of our consclidated contractual obligations, as of December 31, 2006
(in thousands):

Less Than 1-3 35 More Than
Contractual Ob]i?ations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Notes payable and long-term debt .. ......oovriivnrncrnicccccccen S 66471 % 1458 § 60836 % 1,131 $ 3,046
Interest on notes payable and long-term debt obligations..............ccocce. 9,824 3,931 4,349 854 690
Equipment capital lease obligations........ccoveeeeeereeiiieeecceieee e 11,069 5,108 5,961 — —
OPErating JEASES ..ot ee e sr e ee et 56,188 8,969 14,875 13,892 18,452
Product WAITANEY ..ottt 6,255 6,255 —_ _— —
Purchase obligations ... 96.794 82.004 14,790 — —
1) 1 PO $ 246,601 $ 107,725 § 100,811 $§_ 15877 § 22,188

The long-term debt and lease obligations at December 31, 2006 included $60.0 million indebtedness under our outstanding
convertible senior notes that mature in December 2008. The remaining amount of these obligations consists of $5.3 million related to
our sale-leaseback arrangement and $1.2 million of short-term notes payable. The $11.1 million of capital lease obligations relates to
GXT’s financing of computer equipment purchases. For further discussion of our notes payable, long-term debt and capital lease
obligations, see Note 11 of Noves to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The operating lease commitments at December 31, 2006 relate to our leases for certain equipment, offices, processing centers, and
warehouse space under non-cancelable operating leases.

The liability for product warranties at December 31, 2006 relate to the estimated future warranly expenditures associated with our
products. Qur warranty periods generally range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the
product. We record an accrual for product warranties and other contingencies at the time of sale, which is when the estimated future
expenditures associated with those contingencies become probable and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. We generally
receive warranty support from our suppliers regarding equipment they manufactured.

Our purchase obligations primarily relate to our committed inventory purchase orders for which deliveries are scheduled to be
made in 2006, In December 2004, we entered into a five-year supply agreement with Colibrys Ltd. for the purchase of MEMS
accelerometers, which includes annual minimum commitments ranging between $7 million to $8 million per year through 2009.

In February 2003, we issued 30,000 shares of Series D-1 Preferred Stock receiving $29.8 million in net proceeds. Commencing on
February 17, 2007, the holder has the right to redeem all or part of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock. Because we may satisfy our
redemption obligations either in cash or by issuance of our common stock, we have excluded the Series D-1 Preferred Stock from the
above table. Dividends, which are paid quarterly, may be paid, at our option, either in cash or by the issuance of our common stock.
The dividend rate was 7.87% at December 31, 2006. To date, we have paid only cash dividends and expect that we will only pay cash
dividends for the foreseeable future. See further discussion of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock at Item 7. “Management’s Discussion
and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguidity and Capital Resources.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States requires management to make choices between acceptable methods of accounting and to use judgment in making estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses. The following accounting policies are based on, among other things, judgments and assumptions
made by management that include inherent risk and uncertainties. Management’s estimates are based on the relevant information
available at the end of each period. We believe that all of the judgments and estimates used to prepare our financial statements were
reasonable at the time we made them, but circumstances may change requiring us to revise our estimates in ways that could be
materially adverse to our results of operations and financial condition. Management has discussed these critical accounting estimates
with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed our disclosures relating to the estimates in
this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

*  Revenue Recognition and Product Warranty — We derive revenue from the sale of (i) acquisition systems and other seismic
equipment within our Land Imaging Systems and Marine Imaging Systems segments; (11) imaging services, multi-client surveys

31




and licenses of “off-the-shelf” data libraries within our Seismic Imaging Solutions segment; and (iii) navigation, survey and
quality control software systems within our Data Management Solutions segment.

For the sales of acquisition systems and other seismic equipment, we follow the requirements of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104
“Revenue Recognition” and recognize revenue when (a) evidence of an arrangement exists; (b) the price to the customer is fixed
and determinable; (c) collectibility is reasonably assured; and (d) the acquisition system or other seismic equipment is delivered to
the customer and risk of ownership has passed to the customer, or, in the limited case where a substantive customer-specified
acceptance clause exists in the contract, the later of delivery or when the customer-specified acceptance is obtained.

Revenues from all imaging and other services are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed
or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from contract services performed on a day-rate basis are
recognized as the service is performed.

Revenues from multi-client surveys are recognized as the seismic data is acquired and/or processed on a proportionate basis as
work is performed. Under this method, we recognize revenues based upon guantifiable measures of progress, such as kilometers
acquired or days processed. Upon completion of a multi-client seismic survey, the survey data is considered “off-the-shelf™ and
licenses to the survey data are sold to customers on a non-exclusive basis. The license of a completed multi-client survey is
represented by the license of one standard set of data. Revenues on licenses of completed multi-client data surveys are recognized
when a signed final master geophysical data license agreement and accompanying supplemental license agreement are returned by
the customer, the purchase price for the license is fixed or determinable, delivery or performance has occurred, and no significant
uncertainty exists as to the customer’s obligation, willingness or ability to pay. In limited situations, we have provided the
customer with a right to exchange seismic data for another specific seismic data set. In these limited situations, we recognize
revenue at the earlier of the customer exercising its exchange right or the expiration of the customer’s exchange right.

When separate elements (such as an acquisition system, other seismic equipment and/or imaging services) are contained in a single
sales arrangement, or in related arrangements with the same customer, we follow the requirements of EITF 00-21 “Accounting for
Multiple-Element Revenue Arrangement,” and allocate revenue to each element based upon objectively determined fair value, so
long as each such element meets the criteria for treatment as a separate unit of accounting. We limit the amount of revenue
recognition for delivered elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services. We generally
do not grant return or refund privileges to our customers. When undelivered elements, such as training courses, are inconsequential
or perfunctory and not essential to the functionality of the delivered elements, we recognize revenue on the total contract and make
a provision for the costs of the incomplete elements.

For the sales of navigation, survey and quality control software systems, we follow the requirements of SOP 97-2 “Software
Revenue Recognition”, because in those systems the software is more than incidental to the arrangement as a whole. Following the
requirements of EITF 03-05 “Applicability of AICPA Statement of Position 97-2 to Non-Saftware Deliverables in an Arrangement
Containing Morve-Than-Incidental Sofiware”, we consider the hardware within these systems to be a software-related item because
the software is essential to the hardware’s functionality. As a result, we recognize revenue from sales of navigation, survey and
quality control software systems when (a) evidence of an arrangement exists; (b) the price to the customer is fixed and
determinable; (c) collectibility is reasonably assured; and (d) the software and software-related hardware is delivered to the
customer and risk of ownership has passed to the customer, or, in the limited case where a substantive customer-specified
acceplance clause exists in the contract, the later of delivery or when the customer-specified acceptance is obtained. These
arrangements generally include us providing related services, such as training courses, engineering services and annual software
maintenance. We allocate revenue to each element of the arrangement based upon vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value
of the element or, if vendor-specific objective evidence is not available for the delivered element, we apply the residual method.

We generally warrant that our manufactured equipment will be free from defects in workmanship, material and parts. Warranty
periods generally range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. We provide for
cstimated warranty as a charge to costs of sales at the time of sale.

Multi-Client Data Library — Our multi-chient data library consists of seismic surveys that are offered for licensing to customers
on a non-exclusive basis. The capitalized costs include the costs paid to third parties for the acquisition of data and related
activities associated with the data creation activity and direct internal processing costs, such as salaries, benefits, computer-related
expenses, and other costs incurred for seismic data project design and management. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004, we capitalized, as part of our multi-client data library, $3.1 million, $1.7 million, and $2.0 million, respectively, of direct
internal processing costs.




Our method of amortizing the costs of a multi-client data library available for commercial sale is the greater of (i) the percentage
of actual revenue to the total estimated revenue multiplied by the total cost of the project (the szles forecast method) or (ii) the
straight-line basis over a four-year period.

The sales forecast method is our primary method of calculating amortization. The total amortization period of four years represents
the minimum period over which benefits from these surveys are expected to be derived. We have determined the amortization
period of four years based upon our historical experience that indicates that the majority of our revenues from multi-client surveys
are derived during the acquisition and processing phases and during four years subsequent to survey completion.

Estimated sales are determined based upon discussions with our customers, our experience, and our knowledge of industry trends.
Changes in sales estimates may have the effect of changing the percentage relationship of cost of services to revenue. In applying
the sales forecast method, an increase in the projected sales of a survey will result in lower cost of services as a percentage of
revenue, and higher earmnings when revenue associated with that particular survey is recognized, while a decrease in projected sales
will have the opposite effect. Assuming that the overall volume of sales mix of surveys generating revenue in the period was held
constant in 2006, an increase in 10% in the sales forecasts of all surveys would have decreased our amortization expense by
approximately $2.1 million.

We estimate the ultimate revenue expected to be derived from a particular seismic data survey over its estimated usctul economic
life to determine the costs to amortize, if greater than straight-line amortization. That estimate is made by us at the project’s
initiation. For a completed multi-client survey, we review the estimate quarterly. [f during any such review, we determine that the
ultimate revenue for a survey is expected to be more or less than the original estimate of total revenue for such survey, we decrease
or increase (as the case may be) the amortization rate attributable to the future revenue from such survey. In addition, in
connection with such reviews, we evaluate the recoverability of the multi-client data library, and if required under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 144 “Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” record an
impairment charge with respect to such data. There were no significant impairment charges during 2006, 2005, and 2004,

Reserve for Excess and Obsolete Inventories — Our reserve for excess and obsolete inventories is based on historical sales trends
and various other assumptions and judgments including future demand for our inventory and the timing of market acceptance of
our new products. Should these assumptions and judgments not be realized, such as delayed market acceptance of our new
produets, our valuation allowance would be adjusted to reflect actual results. Qur industry is subject to technological change and
new product development that could result in obsolete inventory. Our valuation reserve for inventory at December 31, 2006 was
$9.9 million compared to $10.6 million at December 31, 2005. The reduction in our reserves primarily related to reserved
inventory either being sold or scrapped during the year,

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets —We completed our annual goodwill impairment testing as of December 31, 2006 and
determined that there were no impairment losses related to goodwill. In making this assessment we rely on a number of factors
including operating results, business plans, internal and external economic projections, anticipated future cash flows and external
market data. [f these estimates or related projections change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges.

For purposes of performing the impairment test for goodwill as required by SFAS 142, we established the following reporting
units: Land Imaging Systems, Sensor Geophone, Marine Imaging Systems, Data Management Solutions, and Seismic Imaging
Solutions. To determine the fair value of our reporting units, we use a discounted future returns valuation method. If we had
established different reporting units or utilized diffcrent valuation methodologies, the impairment test results could differ.

SFAS 142 requires us to compare the fair value of our reporting units to their carrying amount on an annual basis to determine if
there is potential goodwill impairment. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recorded to the extent that the fair value of the goodwill within the reporting units is Jess than its carrying value.

Our intangible assets other than goodwill reiate to computer software, proprietary technology, patents, customer relationships,
trade names, and non-compete agreements that are amortized over the estimated periods of benefit (ranging from 2 to 20 years).
We review the carrying values of these intangible assets for impairment if events or changes in the facts and circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment determined is recorded in the current period and is
measured by comparing the fair value of the related asset to its carrying value.
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Accounts and Notes Receivable Collectibility — We consider current information and circumstances regarding our customers’
ability to repay their obligations, such as the length of time the receivable balance is outstanding, the customers’ credit worthiness
and historical experience, and consider an account or note impaired when it is probable that we will be unable to collect all
amounts due. When we consider an account or note as impaired, we measure the amount of the impairment based on the present
value of expected future cash flows or the fair value of collateral. We include impairment losses {recoveries) in our allowance for
doubtful accounts and notes through an increase (decrease) in bad debt expense.

We record interest income on investments in notes receivable on the accrual basis of accounting. We do not accrue interest on
impaired loans where collection of interest according to the contractual terms is considered doubtful. Among the factors we
consider in making an evaluation of the collectibility of interest are: (i) the status of the loan; (ii) the fair value of the underlying
collateral; (iii} the financial condition of the borrower; and {iv) anticipated future events.

Stock-Based Compensation — Prior to January 1, 2006, our equity compensation plans were accounted for under the recognition
and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “dccounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related Interpretations, as
permitted by SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” We did not recognize stock-based compensation expense
associated with our stock options in our statement of operations for periods prior to January 1, 2006 because all of our stock
options granted had an exercise price equal to or in excess of the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of
grant.

On January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, using the modified prospective method.
Under this transition method, stock-based compensation cost recognized in the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 includes:
(a) compensation cost for all unvested stock-based awards as of January 1, 2006 that had been granted prior to January 1, 2006,
based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, and (b) compensation cost for
all stock-based awards granted after January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123R.

With our adoption of SFAS 123R, we began estimating the value of stock option awards on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the values of our stock-based awards were estimated as of the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes model for the pro forma information required to be disclosed under SFAS 123. The
determination of the fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing mode! is affected by
our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to,
our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors,
risk-free interest rate, and expected dividends.

Our estimates of expected volatility for our stock price used in calculating fair value of our stock-based compensation under SFAS
123R for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 were based on assumptions involving a combination of historical volatility
and market-based implied volatility derived from traded options on our common stock. Prior to 2006, our calculation of expected
volatility was based solely on historical volatility. See Note 13 “Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compensation” of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We currently recognize stock-based compensation expense on the straight-line basis over the service period of each award
(generally the vesting period of the award). We had recognized compensation expense in our pro forma disclosures under SFAS
123 on the straight-line basis for our stock options. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we recognized compensation expense
related to our restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards using the accelerated method of amortization and will continue to
apply the accelerated method to all outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock units awards granted prior to January 1, 2006.
Also, prior to our adoption to SFAS 123R, we accounted for forfeitures of our restricted stock and restricted stock unit grants as
the forfeitures actually occurred. We estimated forfeitures on our unvested restricted stock outstanding as of January 1, 2006, and
recorded a $0.4 million cumulative effect of change in accounting principle to reflect the compensation cost that would not have
been recognized in prior periods had forfeitures been estimated during these periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (SFAS 109). FIN 48 clarifies the application of
SFAS 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet for any part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in
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the financial statements. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on the measurement, derecognition, classification, and disclosure of
tax positions, along with accounting for the related interest and penalties. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to
beginning retained earnings. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Vulue Meusurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007. We are
currently evaluating the impact, if any, of this statement.

Credit and Sales Risks

Historically, our principal customers have been seismic contractors that operate seismic data acquisition systems and related
equipment to collect data in accordance with their customers” speciftcations or for their own seismic data libraries. However, through
the acquisition of GXT, we have diversified our customer base to include major integrated and independent oil and gas companies.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately 8% and 9% of our consolidated net revenues were
attributable primarily to land equipment sales to one customer headquartered in China. Approximately $7.9 million, or 5%, of our total
accounts receivable at December 31, 2006 related to this same customer. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 8% of our
consolidated net revenues, were aitributable to marine equipment sales to a single customer. At December 31, 2006, $12.9 million, or
8% of our total accounts receivable and $7.2 million of our total notes receivable, related to this same customer. The loss of these
customers or a deterioration in our relationship with either customer could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, we recognized $119.4 million of sales to customers in Europe, $86.2 million of
sales to customers in Asia Pacific, $31.3 million of sales to customers in Africa, $51.8 million of sales to customers in the Middle
East, $15.3 million of sales to customers in Latin American countries, and $37.3 million of sales to customers in the Commonwealth
of Independent States, or former Soviet Union (CIS). The majority of our foreign sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. In recent
years, the CIS and certain Latin American countries have experienced economic problems and uncertainties. To the extent that world
events or economic conditions negatively affect our future sales to customers in these and other regions of the world or the
collectibility of our existing receivables, our future results of operations, liquidity, and financial condition may be adversely affected.
We currenily require customers in these higher risk countries to provide their own financing and in some cases assist the customer in
organizing international financing and Export-Import credit guarantees provided by the United States government. We do not
currently extend long-term credit through notes to companies in countries we consider to be inappropriate for credit risk purposes.

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

James M. Lapeyre, Jr. is chairman of our board of directors. He is also the chairman and a significant equity owner of Laitram,
L.L.C. (Laitram) and has served as president of Laitram and its predecessors since 1989. Laitram is a privately-owned, New Orleans-
based manufacturer of food processing equipment and modular conveyor belts. Mr. Lapeyre and Laitram together owned
approximately 11.5% of our outstanding common stock as of February 20, 2007,

We acquired DigiCourse, Inc., our marine positioning products business, from Laitram in 1998 and renamed it 1/O Marine
Systems, Inc. In connection with that acquisition, we entered into a Continued Services Agreement with Laitram under which Laitram
agreed to provide us certain accounting, software, manufacturing, and maintenance services. Manufacturing services consist primarily
of machining of parts for our marine positioning systems. The term of this agreement expired in September 2001 but we continue to
operate under its terms. In addition, when we have requested, the legal staff of Laitram has advised us on certain intellectual property
matters with regard to our marine positioning systems. Under a lease of Commercial Property dated February 1, 2006, between
Laitram and 1/Q, we agreed to lease certain office and warehouse space from Laitram until January 2011. During 2006, we paid
Laitram a total of approximately $3.6 million, which congisted of approximately $2.7 million for manufacturing services, $0.8 million
for rent and other pass-through third party facilities charges, and $0.1 million for other services. For the 2005 and 2004 fiscal years,
we paid Laitram a total of approximatety $2.7 million and $1.8 million for these services. In the opinion of our management, the terms
of these services are fair and reasonable and as favorable to us as those that could have been obtained from unrelated third parties at
the time of their performance.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not participate in transactions that generate material relationships with unconsolidated
entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities (“SPEs”), which
would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited
purposes.

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of our business, we enter into contractual arrangements with our customers, suppliers, and other parties
under which we may agree to indemnify the other party to such arrangement from certain losses it incurs relating to our products or
services or for losses arising from certain events as defined within the particular contract. Some of these indemnification obligations
may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments we have made related to these indemnification obligations have
becn immaterial.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
We are exposed to various market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates,
Interest Rate Risk

In February 2005, the Company issued 30,000 shares of a newly designated Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
(Series D-1 Preferred Stock). Dividends, which are contractually obligated to be paid quarterly, may be paid, at the option of the
Company, either in cash or by the issuance of the Company’s common stock. Dividends are paid at a variable rate, equal to the greater
of (i) five percent per annum or (ii) the three month LIBOR rate on the last day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter plus
two and one-half percent per annum. The dividend rate for the Series D-1 Preferred Stock was 7.87% at December 31, 2006. Each 100
basis point increase in the LIBOR rate would have the effect of increasing the annual amount of dividends to be paid by approximately
$0.3 million.

With respect to our fixed-rate long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006, the fair market value of the Company’s notes
payable and long-term debt was $193.8 million and $105.0 million at December 31, 2006 and 20085, respectively. The large increase is
due to the nature of the debt being convertible and the significant increase in the market value of the Company throughout 2006 when
compared to 2005.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Through our subsidiaries, we operate in a wide variety of jurisdictions, including the Netherlands, United Kingdom, China,
Venezuela, Canada, India, Russia, the United Arab Emirates, and other countries. Qur financial results may be affected by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. Qur consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2006 reflected approximately $17.2 million of net
working capital related to our foreign subsidiaries. A majority of our foreign net working capital is within the Netherlands and United
Kingdom. The subsidiaries in those countries receive their income and pay their expenses primarily in Euros and British pounds
(GBP), respectively. To the extent that transactions of these subsidiaries are settled in Euros or GBP, a devaluation of these currencies
versus the U.S. doltar could reduce the contribution from these subsidiaries to our consolidated results of operations as reported in
U.S. dollars. We have not historically hedged the market risk related to fluctuations in foreign currencies.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The financial statements required by this item begin at page F-1 hereof.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.




Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls
and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures.
Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control
objectives. '

Our management carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2006. Based upon that evaluation, our principal
executive officer and our principal financial officer believe that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December
31, 2006.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency (within the meaning of PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 2), or combination of
significant deficiencies, that results in there being more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on
criteria established m fnrernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS0). Management’s assessment concluded that the following three material weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting that existed as of December 31, 2005 had been fully remediated as of December 31, 2006.

Revenue Recognition from Multi-Client Seismic Survey Data Licenses. In 2005, a material weakness was identified in the design
and operation of our internal controls over monitoring of the timing of revenue recognition of multi-client seismic survey data
transactions. Revenues from certain GXT multi-client data transactions in 2004 and the first three quarters of 2005 were recognized by
GXT upon the signing of customer letter agreements and delivery of the multi-client data, but prior to the receipt from the customer of
a signed final master geophysical data license agreement and accompanying license supplement. As a result, management determined
the revenue from these licenses should not have been recognized by GXT until delivery of the data to the customer and receipt from
the customer of a signed final master geophysical data license agreement and accompanying license supplement representing the
evidence of the final agreement.
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The resultant accounting errors were found to have had a material impact on the timing of recognition of revenues from certain
multi-client data license transactions during 2004 and the first three quarters of 2005. As a result of the discovery of this incorrect
revenue recognition, we restated, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, and restated consolidated financial statements for interim quarterly
periods between July 1, 2004 and September 30, 2005. These restatements impacted net revenues, costs of services, marketing and
sales expenses, accounts receivable, deferred revenue, accrued expenses, and multi-client data library.

In response to the material weakness described above, we enhanced our revenue recognition policy to include a detailed checklist
describing the evidence to be obtained to show persuasive evidence of an arrangement for multi-client seismic survey data
transactions. In addition, we increased the level of management review at GXT to ensure that this enhanced policy is followed and that
adequate evidence is obtained for each multi-client seismic survey data transaction. We continue to monitor compliance with our
revenue recognition policy and conduct periodic training to develop the knowledge and awareness of our accounting and sales
personnel,

Fraudulent Activities Conducted by the Former Chief Information Qfficer. A material weakness was identified in the design and
operation of controls to prevent unauthorized purchases by members of senior management. In January 2006, as a result of
information discovered by our senior management, the Audit Committee, assisted by a forensic investigation firm engaged by the
Audit Committee, began an investigation into unauthorized payments made by our Company for assets that were not delivered to our
Company. The Audit Committee determined unauthorized payments totaling approximately $150,000 for computer and electronic
equipment during 2004 and 2005 were made by our Company’s former Chief Information Officer for his personal use. The
misappropriation of the Company’s assets did not result in material Company expenditures or a material misstatement to the financial
statements, However, PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 2 indicates that fraud of any magnitude on the part of senior management is a
strong indicator of a material weakness. Given this misappropriation of assets involved a former member of cur senior management,
management has concluded that this deficiency represents a material weakness.

In response to the material weakness described above, we terminated the employment of our former Chief Information Officer
upon learning of the unauthorized purchases and referred the matter to appropriate law enforcement authorities for prosecution. The
individual in question has repaid a portion of the unauthorized payments, and our insurance covered most of the remaining
unauthorized payments and a portion of the investigation costs. We have implemented certain controls on the purchasing of computer
and electronic equipment, such as requiring additional levels of management approval on such purchases.

Limited Size of Accounting Department. A material weakness was identified relating to the Company’s oversight and monitoring
controls over financial reporting that resulted from the limited number of experienced accounting staff at the Company and its
subsidiaries, including the absence of a chief financial officer after the resignation of the Company’s previous chief financial officer
announced in December 2005,

During 2006, we hired a new chief financial officer, a treasurer and vice president of tax, an assistant controller, a director of
corporate finance, a manager of tax, a manager of treasury, a manager of financial reporting, a manager of internal audit, and a senior
financial analyst, As a result, as of December 31, 2006, we had concluded that this material weakness no longer existed. We will
continue to assess the adequacy of our accounting structure and organization, both in terms of size and U.S. GAAP expertise.

Because of our significant efforts expended to remediate the material weaknesses described above, management believes that, as
of December 31, 2006, we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting based on the COSO framework criteria.

QOur management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 has
been audited by Ernst & Young, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on page 39,
which expresses an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls, Other than as described above, there was not any change in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

We believe that the actions taken to remediate these weaknesses and the resulting improvement in controls have strengthened our
disclosure controls and procedures, as well as our internal control over financial reporting.




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Input‘Output, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that Input/Output, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). lnput/Qutput, [ne.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
teliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Input/Output, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Input/Output, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Input/Output, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the two years in the period
ended December 31, 2006 and our report dated March 14, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thercon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
March 14, 2007

Item 9B. Orher Information

Not applicable,
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PART I1l
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Reference is made to the information appearing in the definitive proxy statement for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held
on May 21, 2007 (the “2007 Proxy Statement™) to be filed with the SEC with respect to Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate
Governance, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof in response to the information required by Item 10.

Item 1E. Executive Compensation

Reference is made to the information appearing in the 2007 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC with respect to Executive
Compensation, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof in response to the information required by ltem i1,

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Reference is made to the information appearing in the 2007 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC with respect to Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, which is incorporated herein by
reference and made a part hereof in response to the information required by Item 12.
1tem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Reference is made to the information appearing in the 2007 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC with respect to Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof
in response to the information required by Item 13.
Item L4, Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Reference is made to the information appearing in the 2007 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC with respect to Principal
Accountant Fees and Services, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part hercof in response to the information
required by Ttem 14.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) List of Documents Filed

(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed in the “Index to Consclidated Financial Statements™ on page F-1
hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedule is listed in the “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements™ on page F-1 hereof,
and is included as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Al other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the requested information is shown in the financial statements or
noted therein.




(3) Exhibits
|

31 — Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated August 31, 1990 filed on March 19, 2001 as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Transition Report an Form 10-K for the seven months ended December 31, 2600 and incorporated herein by reference.

32 — Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated QOctober 10, 1996, filed on March 12, 2003 as
Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2003, and incorporated
herein by reference,

33 — Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated May 4, 2005, filed on May 6,
2005 as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to its Registration Statement on Form S-3 {Registration No.
333-123632), and incorporated herein by reference.

34 — Amended and Restated Bylaws, filed on March 8, 2002 as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 — Indenture dated as of December 10, 2003, filed on January 27, 2004 as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 5-3 (Registration No. 333-112263), and incorporated herein by reference.

42 — Certificate of Rights and Designations of Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock of Input/Quitput, [nc., dated
February 16, 2005 and filed on Febrvary 17, 2005 as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and
incorporated herein by reference.

**10.1 — Amended and Restated 1990 Stock Option Plan, filed on June 9, 1999 as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-80299), and incorporated herein by reference.

10.2 — Office and Industrial/Commercial Lease dated June 2005 by and between Stafford Office Park II, LP as Landlord and
[nput/Output, [nc. as Tenant, filed on March 31, 2006 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.3 — Office and Industrial/Commercial Lease dated June 2003 by and between Stafford Office Park District as Landlord and
Input/Qutput, Inc. as Tenant, filed on March 31, 2006 as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on From 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.4  — Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, filed on June 9, 1999 as
Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-8 (Registration No. 333-80299), and incorporated herein
by reference.

**10.5 — Employment Agreement dated effective as of May 22, 2006, between Input/Output, Inc. and R. Brian Hanson filed on
May 1, 2006 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference,

**10.6 — Input/Output, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, filed on March 28, 1997 as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 8-8 (Registration No. 333-24125), and incorporated herein by reference,

**10.7 — Second Amended and Restated Input/Output, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan filed as Appendix A to the definitive
proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company, as filed on April 12, 2006, and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.8 — Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 16, 1998, by and among the Company and The Laitram
Corporation, filed on March 12, 2004 as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

**109 — Input/Output, Inc. 1998 Restricted Stock Plan dated as of June 1, 1998, filed on June 9, 1999 as Exhibit 4.7 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on 8-8 (Registration No. 333-80297), and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.10 — Input/Output Inc. Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, filed on April 1, 2002 as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.11 — Amendment No. 1 to the Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan
dated September 13, 1999 filed on November 14, 1999 as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.12 — I[nput/Qutput, Inc. 2000 Restricted Stock Plan, effective as of March 13, 2000, filed on August 17, 2000 as Exhibit 10.27
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by
reference.

10.13  — Input/Output, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan, filed on November 6, 2000 as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s
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**0.14 —

**10.15 —

10.16 —

10,17 —

10.18 —

**10.19 —

**10.20 —-

**10.2] —

**1022 —

**10.23 —

10.24 —

1025 —

**10.26 —

1027 —

10.28 —

**10.29 —

**10.30 —

1031 —

Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-49382), and incorporated by reference herein.

Employment Agreement dated effective as of March 31, 2003, by and between the Company and Robert P. Peebler, filed
on March 31, 2003, as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated September 6, 2006, between Input/Output, Inc. and Robert P.
Peebler, filed on September 7, 2006, as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated
herein by reference,

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated February 16, 2007, between Input/Output, Inc. and Robert P.
Peebler, filed on February 16, 2007 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of May 10, 2004 by and among the selling shareholders, GX Technology
Corporation and the Company, filed on May 10, 2004, as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form
S-3 (Reg. No. 333-115345), and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of June 11, 2004, by and among the selling shareholders, GX
Technology Corporation and the Company, filed on June 15, 2004 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 3-K/A (Registration No. 001-12691), and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement dated effective as of June 15, 2004, by and between the Company and David L. Roland, filed on
August 9, 2004 as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of March 26, 2004, by and between GX Technology Corporation and
Michael K. Lambert, filed on August 9, 2004 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement dated as of June 14, 2004, by and between GX Technology
Corporation and Michael K. Lambert, filed on August 9, 2004 as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement dated as of June 14, 2004, by and between GX Technology
Corporation and Michael K. Lambert, filed on August 9, 2004 as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

GX Technology Corporation Employee Stock Option Plan, filed on August 9, 2004 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

Concept Systems Holdings Limited Share Acquisition Agreement dated February 23, 2004, filed on March 5, 2004 as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference.

Concept Systems Holdings Limited Registration Rights Agreement dated February 23, 2004, filed on March 5, 2004 as
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Employment Inducement Stock Option Agreement for the Input/Output, Inc. — Concept Systems Employment
Inducement Stock Option Program, filed on July 27, 2004 as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S$-8 (Reg. No. 333-117716), and incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement dated as of February 15, 2005, between Input/Output, Inc. and Fletcher International, Ltd., filed on February
17, 2005 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment to Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2005, between the Company and Fletcher International, Ltd., filed on
May 10, 2005 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference.

Input/Output, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan, dated March 27, 2003, filed as Appendix B of the Company’s definitive
proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30, 2003, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Input/Output, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan, dated May 3, 2004, filed as Appendix B of the Company’s definitive
proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securitics and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Revolving Credit and Security Agreement dated as of May 24, 2005 by and among [nput/Output, Inc. and certain of its
subsidiaries, and PNC Bank, National Association, as a Lender and as Agent for the Lenders, filed on May 27, 2005 as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference.
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**10.32 — Input/Output, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan, filed on June 9, 2005 as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-125655), and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.33 — Form of Empioyment Inducement Stock Option Agreement for the Input/Output, Inc. — GX Technelogy Corporation
Employment inducement Stock Option Program, filed on April 4, 2005 as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-123831), and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.34 — Consulting Services Agreement dated as of October 19, 2006, by and between GX Technology Corporation and Michael
K. Lambert, filed on October 24, 2006 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form §8-K, and incorporated
herein by reference.

**10.35 — First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement dated as of January 5, 2007, by and between GX Technology
Corporation and Michael K. Lambert, filed on January 8, 2007 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.36 — Letter agreement dated October 19, 2006, by and between the Company and Michael K. Lambert, filed on October 24,
2006 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference.

*21.1 — Subsidiaries of the Company.

*23.1 — Consent of Emnst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,

*23.2  — Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
*24.1  — The Power of Attorney is set forth on the signature page hereof.

*31.1  — Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a}).
*31.2  — Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).
*32.1 — Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350.

*32.2  — Cerntification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1330.

* Filed herewith.
** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(b) Exhibits required by ftem 60! of Regulation S-K.

Reference is made to subparagraph (a) (3) of this Item 15, which is incorporated herein by reference.

(¢) Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Houston, State of Texas, on
March 15, 2007.

INPUT/OUTPUT, INC.
By /s/ R. Brian Hanson

R. Brian Hanson
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Robert P,
Peebler and David L. Roland and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents with full power of
substitution and re-substitution for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all
documents relating to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, including any and all amendments and
supplements thereto, and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully as to all intents and purposcs as he or she might or
could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming al! that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or their or his substitute or substitutes
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Capacities Date

/s/ ROBERT P. PEEBLER President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 15, 2007
Robert P. Peebler (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ R. BRIAN HANSON Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 135, 2007
R. Brian Hanson {Principal Financiai Officer)

/sf MICHAEL L. MORRISON Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief March 13, 2007

Michael L. Morrison Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)
/st JAMES M. LAPEYRE, JR. Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director March 15, 2007

James M. Lapeyre, Jr.

/s/ BRUCE S. APPELBAUM Director March 15, 2007
Bruce S. Appelbaum

/s/ THEODORE H. ELLIOTT, JR. Director March 15, 2007
Theodore H. Elliott, Jr.

/s FRANKLIN MYERS Director March 15, 2007
Franklin Myers

/s/' S, JAMES NELSON, JR. Director March 15, 2007
S. James Nelson, Jr.

/s/ JOHN N. SEITZ Director March i35, 2007
John N. Seitz

fs/ SAM K. SMITH Director March 15, 2007
Sam K. Smith
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Input/Output, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Input/Output, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006
and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash
flows for each of the two vears in the period ended December 31, 2006, Our audits also included the financial statement schedule for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006 listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial staternent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Input/Output, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note | to the consclidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of Input/Output, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 14, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
March 14, 2007




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

[n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index, present fairly, in alt material respects, the
resuits of Input/Output, Inc. and its subsidiaries’ operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2004 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule for the year ended December 31, 2004 listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements, and the financial statement schedule based upon our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonablc basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas

March 16, 2005, except for the restatement
described in Note 1 to the consolidated

financial statements included in the 2005 Form 10-K
(not presented herein) as to which the date is

March 30, 2006.
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2006 2005

(In thousands,
except share data)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash eqQUIVALENTS .. ... ..o e ettt e s sean s eaeeeaeaereens § 17,056 § 15,853
RESIICIEA CASN ...ttt ettt et e et e et e et e et e easeeneeaneebessseonbesrererens 1,044 1,532
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADLE, MEL.... . oot et e e e e ettt e et e e e e e et e e e s e e e e seanseesesneraratasssnsatsessnseen 167,747 120,880
Current portion nOtes TeCEIVADLIE, MIEL.........ociiiiiiiti st e et ere st e s e e s eetesre st aresens 6,299 8,372
UNBIIEd TEORIVADIES .ottt ettt st e et eae e e e e s e e steeste s r e st e seeeeeaneenneeneeeneenreeas 28,599 15,070
e R (0 o 1 SO 115,520 81,428
Prepaid expenscs and Other CUTTENE ASSEIS ... i riuiiiirisiirisirissssssr s s teerirrresrsrsressesrsssesrteressssssrsessssnsssnsnssses 9,854 10919
TOLA] CUTTEME ASSEES 1.uvviieiereiesvieieiaieteiaissesssssnsessssreessassses s s baeasastessshbases s seas s aasasesasabe s sataessnareteeaemneeeeanmenens 346,119 254,054
INOLES TECEIVADIE. ..o ettt e st e e e a1t s e et e e s m e e e e e et s e e ee e s e ee e e e e e eeameeeeeeeneeenaneneeeemees 4,968 6,508
Deferred INCOME LAX ASSEL.....iciiiiiieiiiieitieiietit et ei e tes e s esse e eseesssseesee s eeteemesseasensseses e s seseassenseseenseseaseenseseens 6,197 3,183
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt, NEE ... e ee s eecre et re s e e s s es 38,129 28,997
Multi-client data TBEATY, MEL ... ettt e e s sba b bbb are s 33,072 18,996
LRy 1) 11 R LR 1Y A 4,254 4,000
GOOAWILL L.ttt ettt et e re e e er e e re sres b essees s s s teateeatesssesasasanssreernsernesrnerseerberaraanranss 156,091 154,794
Intangible and Other @SSELS, NET......cciiciiicieiceice ettt et et e ent e ensese e eaeeeseaebeesteesbeessesssentaensanneens 66,306 67,329
IO AT ASBEUS oot eee ettt et eee e e et e e e ee e e e e e e e ee e e e e e e eee et e e eeeeneeeeemeeee et eeneee e e e eanee e aeeae et e e e emnenne $_655136 § _537.861

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt...........cccoooiiiiiii e $ 6,566 § 4.405
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE L...ceiieiie et e e ettt e r e st se et be s e et ek e se st n st et eteneane et 47,844 31,938
ACCTUBH BXPEMSES . vicvitiiiariieaiarteetas e etasea et st bt s smtes b enebsessabnssbesbe et s a5t ebsam b s b5bess bt e seesmesseemmseenseseensesnennernes 30,819 29,867
Accrued multi-client data lbrary royalties ... e e 27,197 18,961
D T TEVEIIUE ..ttt et ettt e e s e ot et e s ebab e e e sttt s s e b ts b e e bms s smem s s smt s ee e tnteamameeeeannesenan 37,442 11,939
Deferred income tax HaBILIEY .....oo.ooiiiiee ettt sttt 5.909 3,183
Total CUITENt HADIIHES.......oivvi ittt sttt oottt e et e e e eteeeteeeeamenent 175,777 100,293
Long-term debt, net of CUrteNt MAUITTIES ...oociacieiiiiit ettt e est s s e et ee b e aeesaesneesresenis 70,974 71,541
Non-current deferred income tax Hability ....co.ooioiiiioe e et e e e 4,142 4,304
Other long-term HabilIIes ......oooooiri e s e s s st e s 4,588 4,340
TOtAl DTS ...ttt e e bbb e bt b eme st et et e b et e sd s e naeneets et s e atsers e 253,481 180,478
Cumulative convertible preferred STOCK ..ot 29,987 29,838

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; outstanding 80,123,486 and

79,764,338 shares at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, net of treasury stock........ccovvcverrveennn. 810 807
Additional paid-in CAPIAL........cooriiee e e e e e e 493,605 487,232
ACCUMUIATE AETICIT ..o ettt ekttt e b s st es s en s s ebe e e anenbeanenees (123,095)  (150,007)
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME (LOSS) ...ovoiviieiiioicii ettt et et bbenas 4,859 (728)
Treasury stock, at cost, 850,428 and 801,558 shares at December 31, 2006 and 20035, respectively......... (6,511) (5,968)
Unamortized restricted StOck ComMPensSation. .....coiov ettt ettt e b s b s bt ens s — (3,791}

Total stockholders” BQLITY ..o sttt 369,668 327.545
Total liabilities and stockholders” EQUITY .....ccoooiieiri et e s S 655,136 § 537,861

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

PrOTUCT FEVETILES......eeiiiiiieeiecee ettt e et e e e e st s e e e e e e e et ee e e e e et e e e e e e e e e s eeeeeaamennns $ 354258 § 237,359 § 194978
SEIVICE FEVEIIES 1...iiuiieeeiericeesesrsns it ee st ese e s s eeee s essems e sesess st emsnsesssessseaeeseasaenennsseessnns 149,298 125,323 45,663

TOtAl BT TEVEMUES L..viiiiiieiiie ettt e ts ettt seteetesetsseeaserssrsstessensntorsonsnnesesnsnsrrens 503,556 3162.682 240,641
COSE OF PLOAUCES ...t ettt er st et e ventsenenneaneasesaeere st srneresns 257,749 169,688 134,874
08 OF SEIVICES ..ttt ettt et s bt e bbb s e b st st e bbb een bbb eas b b 01.592 86.619 40,075

GTOSS PIOTIL. vt e ettt ettt en e ee s ee s eeeseen s sae s ntnssse s eanns s semsnens 154215 106.375 65,692
Operating expenses (income):
Research and develOPIMEnt ... et sa st a s an s saat s 32,751 20,266 19,611
Marketing and SAIES ........vovviieieie e sttt st te et e e e see e et et st ene 40,651 33,167 23,491
General and adMINISITATIVE .....oocoi ittt e e e e e e e eenaneas 40,807 28,227 20,748
L0sS (Z22IN) ON 8818 OF BSSES....c.eii ittt et e et e et e e te e eae e ere et e enenreens 58 99 (3,980

Total OPEFAtINE EXPEISES ...eiiiivriiieerreee et et b e b e e be b e e abe b asete 815 smeeeeemeeeeneemeee 114,267 81.739 68.870
Income (108S) from OPEIAIONS ........ooiieieeeeeeee et et ee et erasansaneare e 39,948 24,616 (3,178)
IEETEST X PEISE o .ttt et et er e e e et e e eaa e e e e et erae et e s e e s s re b e e b e b e e ebbes e st b enteste st s ee b e snenba s (5,770 (6,134) (6,231)
TR AIICOITIC. ..ot ceeeee et e e e e e eesessmrre st aeeeststaes vessestesensaeesassssenssseeasasserasnseessesnaes 2,040 843 1,276
Other INCOME (EXPENSEY ....ceiiiiiiiiiei vttt are v ese et as e ese s et et s s et s aeararebasseeeseasaberarsses (z.161) 220 220

Income (loss) before income taxes and change in accounting principal.........cocococoeveeennn.. 34,057 20,145 (7.913)
INCOME TAX EXPEIISE. ... virieeieeerereiae ettt et e e st een e et eees e s ssesteeessseenseseeaseaeasereenens 5,114 1,366 701

Net income (loss) before change in accounting principal..........ccococomomeeveeceeiccceeee 28,943 18,779 (8,614)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiice e, 398 — —

Net INCOME (0SS} ..ottt et st en e e b snresne e 29,341 18,779 (8,614)
Preferred stock dividends and aCCretion ... s 2.429 1,635 —

Net income (loss) applicable t0 COmMMON SKATES .. ...ovevvieeieeec et eeesnsrese e . 26912 §_172,144 $__(8,614)
Basic camings per share:

Net income (loss) per basic share before change in accounting principle...............cocc........ $ 033 § 022 § (0.13)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principal ........c.oocoooiiiiiiiiiiieiiieceee e 0.01 — —

Net income (1088) per basic SHATE ... e et $§ 03 § 022 § (01
Diluted earnings per share:

Net income (loss) per diluted share before change in accounting principle.......coceeveennnn, $ 032 § 021§ (0.13)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principal........c.ccoevevvveiviiecie e 0.01 — —

Net tncome (1055) per dHuted SRATE ...........ccooovii et §_ 033 §__ 021 § (0.13)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding;

BaSIC ittt e b ettt et et e st eabne 19,497 78,600 65,759

DHIUIEA ...ttt b ettt s et et s st b s 95,182 79,842 65,759

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

NELINCOIME (LOSS) cevevieiereeit ettt ns e ne e st ra b e b s s b s s aasereseananes $ 29341 35 18779 § (8,619
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..., (398) — —
Depreciation and amortization (other than multi-client library) ... 22,036 23,497 18,345
Amortization of multi-client data HBrary ... 25,011 10,707 5,870
Stock-based compensation expense refated to stock options, nonvested stock, and
employee Stock Purchases......ii i 6,121 2,500 925
Reduction Of taX TESEIVES....iiiit it cr et e e e e ettt st st srassraatnean — (1,441) —
DEfETTEH IMEOTE BAX oottt ettt et b e e b et e s r e e e n e (1,014) (718) (521)
Bad debt @XPEnSEe ..c.eiveiie e e 577 600 6,346
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed aSSELS ..o 58 99 (3,980)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes reCeIVADIE ... ..oociiviiiii s e e nae s (45,243  (59,489) (27,849)
Unbilled reCeivables .......ooev i e e em ek e (13,529) (7,762) 1,406
IIVEIEOLIES L..oeiivevieiiici et e s b s st em st se st eesa s e na e sn e e (32,697 7.999 (40,508)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and accrued royalties ..., 43,235 10,684 20,999
DEfEITEU FEVENUE ..o eeeeiseieieirert e csrrre e s et s errsseressraeaessaaseesssssasesmeaeaseeeeeamsseaaasneneaaansneeemnnees 25,386 (3,382) 6,535
Other assets and HabilItIes .....ocoevveeeee e s (910) (198} 1,003
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ............cocerverirresioie e 57974 1.875 {20.043)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipmMent...........cc.covivincrnimen s (13,704) (5,304) (5,022)
Investment in multi-client data HBrary. ... (39,087 (19,678) (4,168}
Proceeds from the sale of fIXed @S5S ... iiiiiiiiiiiirie et bre e e e ree s eanes 311 234 4762
Proceeds from collection of long-term note receivable associated with the sale of a
FACHIIEY ¢ R s 2,000 — 5,800
Non-interest bearing customer (advance) Tepayment .......occovvviiiiniii e, 909 {909) —
BUSINESS ACQUISTHIONS -occvieieiiiei ettt et s s — — (176,850)
Cash of acquIred DUSIIESSES ..o s — — 2,193
Disposition of Applied MEMS ...t — — (513)
Increase in or liquidation of INVESIMENS ... (254) (500) 117
Acquisition of intellectual property fghts ..o — (1.850) —
Net cash used in INVESHINE BCHVIHIES.....eivviiieiicrce e s e (49.825) __ (28.007) _ (173.681)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on notes payable and long-term debt............oo (6,940) (7,144) (6,341)
Net (repayments) borrowings under revolving line of credit. ..., (3,000} 3,000 —
Net proceeds from preferred stock offering........cccoviiii e, — 29,762 —
Payment of preferred dividends .........coveeeriirciccincn et (2,280) (1,635) —
Return of deposit to secure a letter of credit — 1,500 —
Purchases of Ireasury SLOCK ... s (615) (272) (98)
Proceeds from employee stock purchases and exercise of stock options...........ccccocei. 4,435 2,640 5,482
Net proceeds from issuance of cOMMON SOTK.....ovvrer i — — 150.066
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ..., (8.400) 27,851 149.109
Effect of change in foreign currency exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ................... 1,454 (801) 43
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ... e 1,203 918 (44,572)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ... e 15,853 14,935 59.507
Cash and cash equivalents at end of PEMOd .......covoviiiieeinieieie et s £ 17,056 § 15853 §_ 14935

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




| INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
' COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accumuliated
Orther Unamortized

Additional Compreheasive Restricted Total
Commaon Stock Paid - In Accumulated Income Treasury Steck Stockholders®

Shares Amount Capiral Deficit Lossp Stock Compensation Equity

{[n thousands. except per share data)
Balance at January 1, 2009 ..o e e e 51,390,334 § 522 $ 296663 § (158531 0§ 1292 5 (5826) 8§ (350) § 133,764
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss applicable to common shares ... et e — — — {8.614) - _ — (8.614)
Onher comprehensive income:

Translation adjustment — — — — 1.040 — — 1,040
Total comprehensive L0SS ..o e {1.574)
Amortization of restricted stock compensation.. —_ —_ —_ — - — 80t 801
Issuance of restricted stock awards ....ooveervneenn 290,500 3 2,770 — — — (2.773) —
Issuance of restricted stock units —_ — 48 — — — _ 48
Cancellation of restricted stock awards {24,562) —_ (134) — — —_ 1035 29
Purchase treasury stock ...ovveienceiieeennens . (16,651) — — — —_ (98) — (98)
Exercise of StOCK OPLIONS .o.covi oot semememems e semessemes sememememeemes semersemne 2,120,674 23 5138 — — -_ —_ 3,161
Modification of stock opuon awards related 1o the dl.S]'K)Slll()n of App]md

MEMS... . o - SR — — 795 — — — — 795
Assumption of GXT stock options.. — — 14,637 — — —_ —_ 14,637
[ssuance of commen stock..... 22,928,700 229 149,837 — — — —_ 150,066
Issuance of common stock in business acquisition .. 1,680,000 17 10,746 — —_ —_ —_ 10,763
{ssuance of stock for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) 82,615 1 320 — —_ —_ — 321
Is5uance Of reasury SIOCK....ocoiu e e e e e " 10,065 — 25 — — 20 — 105

Balance at December 31, 2004 o 78,561,675 793 480,845 (167,151) 2332 (5.844) 2,217 308,760
Comprehensive income:

Net income applicable t0 commOn Shares ... e — — — 17,144 — - — 17,144
Other comprehensive L08s: .o

Translation adjustTient ..o e ceeereerecanns — — — — {3,060) — — {3.060)
Total comprehensive income 14,084
Amortization of restricted stock compensation..... — — — — — — 2410 2410
Issuance of restricted stock awards 619,000 6 4,531 —_ - — (4.537) —
Cancellation of restricted StOck AWANS ... iceee et e et (108,416) ) (835) — — — 553 (283)
Purchase treasury stock (36,071) — — — — 272) — (272)
Excreise of stock options... 571,426 6 1,651 — — _ —_ 1,657
Amortization of restricted slock units .. —_ — 119 — — —_ —_ 1e
Vesting of restricted stock units ... 8.007 — —_ — — —_ _ —
Amortization of stock options awards.... —_ — 142 — —_ —_ _ 142
Issuznce of stock for the ESPP..... 130,200 1 818 — — — — 819
Issuance of treasury StocK ..o 18517 {39 — — 148 e 109

Balance at December 31, 2005 ..o e e e 79,764,338 807 487,232 (150,007) (728) {5,968) (3,791) 327,545
Comprehensive income:

Net income applicable to commOn Shares .........ocu.cceee e eesreecmssmensiereins — —_ — 26,912 — — — 16912
Other comprehensive income: .

Translation adjustment... —_ —_ — _ 5,587 — -_— 5,587
Total comprehensive income 32,499
Stock—based compensation cxpense... — — 6,121 — — — —_ 6,121
Impact of adoption of SFAS 123R on rcslncmd slock (743,238) (N (4,182) — — —_ 391 (398)
PUrchase Ieastiry SOCK ... e e (62,883) (N — — — (615) — (616)
Exercise of stock options 778921 8 3,788 - — — - 3,796
Vesting of restricted stock units/awards..... 263,787 2 2) — —_ — — -
Issuance of stock forthe ESPP ..o 113,582 1 540 — — — — 641
Issuance of treasury stock.. 5,979 — 3 — — 12 —_ 30

Balance at December 31, 2006 .... 80,1234R86 § Bl0 § 493605 $ (123.095) & 4850 § (6511) § __ —  3_369.668

Sce accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General Description and Principles of Consolidation. Input/Output, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries offer a full suite of
related products and services for seismic data acquisition and processing, including products incorporating traditional analog
technologies and products incorporating the proprietary VectorSeis, True Digital™ technology. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Input/Output, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Company” or “I/0”).
[nter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant estimates are made at discrete points in time based on relevant market information. These estimates may be subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with exact precision, Arcas involving
significant estimates include, but are not limited to, accounts and notes receivable, inventory valuation, sales forecast related to multi-
client data libraries, goodwill valuation, deferred taxes, and accrued warranty costs. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents. The Company considers alt highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were $1.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of short-term
restricted cash and $6.2 million and $0.9 million, respectively, of long-term restricted cash (included in Intangible and other assets,
net), that are used to secure standby and commercial letters of credit.

Accounts and Notes Receivable. Accounts and notes receivable are recorded at cost, less the related allowance for doubtful
accounts and notes. The Company considers current information and events regarding the customers’ ability to repay their obligations,
such as the length of time the receivable balance is outstanding, the customers’ credit worthiness and historical experience. The
Company considers an account or note to be impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms. When an account or note is considered impaired, the amount of the impairment is measured based
on the present value of expected future cash flows or the fair value of collateral. Impairment losses (recoveries) are included in the
allowance for doubtful accounts and notes through an increase (decrease) in bad debt expense.

Notes receivable are generally collateralized by the products sold and bear interest at contractual rates ranging from 0.0% to 7.9%
per year. For non-interest bearing notes with a maturity greater than one year, or those notes which the stated rate of interest is
considered a below market rate of interest, the Company imputes interest using prevailing market rates at the note’s origination. Cash
receipts on impaired notes are applied to reduce the principal amount of such notes until the principal has been recovered and are
recognized as interest income thereafier. The Company records interest income on investments in notes receivable on the accrual basis
of accounting. The Company does not accrue interest on impaired loans where collection of interest according to the contractual terms
is considered doubtful. Among the factors the Company considers in making an cvaluation of the collectibility of interest are: (i) the
status of the loan; (ii) the fair value of the underlying collateral; (iii} the financial condition of the borrower; and (iv} anticipated future
events.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (primarily standard cost, which approximates first-in, first-out method) or
market. The Company provides reserves for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference between cost of
inventory and its estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand for the Company’s products and market
conditions.

Praperty, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation expense is provided straight-line
over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Machinery and eqQUEPITIENT ...t et et 3-8
Buildings....occoeeeeeire e 10-20
Leased equipment and other 1-10




Expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized; repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. The cost
and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected
in operating expenses.

The Company periodically evaluates the net realizable value of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, relying
on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, and anticipated future cash flows.
Impairment in the carrying value of an asset held for use is recognized whenever anticipated future cash flows (undiscounted) from an
asset are estimated to be less than its carrying value. The amount of the impairment recognized is the difference between the carrying
value of the asset and its fair value. There were no significant impairments to the Company’s property, plant and equipment during the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,

Multi-Client Data Library. The multi-client data library consists of seismic surveys that are offered for licensing to customers on a
non-exclusive basis. The capitalized costs include costs paid to third parties for the acquisition of data and related activities associated
with the data creation activity and direct internal processing costs, such as salaries, benefits, computer-related expenses, and other
costs incurred for seismic data project design and management. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, the
Company capitalized, as part of its multi-client data library, $3.1 million, $1.7 million, and $2.0 million, respectively, of direct internal
processing costs. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, multi-client data library creation and accumulated amortization consisted of the
following:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
Gross costs of multi-client data Creation ... ..o.cvevreerreriee sttt see st estnsessassssssn ras $ 73,240 $ 35573
Less accumulated amortization (40.168) (16,577}
TOUAL. ..ttt ettt e et e vt e e e s re s tesate s saesshbsase s sherabe st et e e st e et e e et e enearneerrsranareen $_ 33,072 5 18,996

The Company’s method of amortizing the costs of a multi-client data library available for commercial sale is the greater of (i) the
percentage of actual revenue to the total estimated revenue multiplied by the total cost of the project (the sales forecast method) or (ii)
the straight-line basis over a four-year period. The greater of the sales forecast method or the straight-line amortization policy is
applied on a cumulative basis at the individual survey level. Under this policy, the Company first records amortization using the sales
forecast method. The cumulative amortization recorded for each survey is then compared with the cumulative straight-line
amortization. If the cumulative straight-line amortization is higher for any specific survey, additional amortization expense is
recorded, resulting in accumulated amortization being equal to the cumulative straight-line amortization for such survey.

The Company estimates the ultimate revenue expected to be derived from a particular seismic data survey over its estimated useful
economic life to determine the costs to amortize, if greater than straight-line amortization. That estimate is made by the Company at
the project’s initiation. For a completed multi-client survey, the Company reviews the estimate quarterly. If during any such review,
the Company determines that the ultimate revenue for a survey is expected to be more or less than the original cstimate of total
revenue for such survey, the Company decreases or increases (as the case may be) the amortization rate attributable to the future
revenue from such survey. In addition, in connection with such reviews, the Company evaluates the recoverability of the multi-client
data library, and, if required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 144 “dccounting for the Impairment and
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” records an impairment charge with respect to such data. There were no significant impairment
charges during 2006, 2005, and 2604.

Computer Software. In February 2004, the Company acquired Concept Systems Holding Limited (Concept Systems). A portion of
the purchase price was allocated to software available-for-sale and included within Intangible and other assets, net. The capitalized
costs of computer sofiware are charged to costs of sales in the period sold, using the greater of (i) the percentage of actual sales to the
total estimated sales multiplicd by the total costs of the software or (ii} a straight-line amortization rate equal to the software costs
divided by its remaining estimated economic life. At December 31, 2006, the total costs of software were $14.3 million, less
accumulated amortization of $5.8 million. Amortization expense was $1.9 million for both the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, and $1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Investments. The Company’s investments are accounted for under the cost method. The Company has determined that it is not
practicable to estimate the fair value of these investments, as quoted market prices are not available. Therefore, the cost method
investments are recorded at cost and reviewed periodically if there are events or changes in circumstances that may have a significant
adverse effect on the fair value of the investments, During 2006, 2003, and 2004, there were no events or changes in circumstances
that would indicate a significant adverse cffect on the fair value of the Company’s investments. The aggregate carrying amount of cost
method investments was $4.3 million and $4.0 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Financial Instruments. Fair value estimates are made at discrete times based on relevant market information. These estimates may
be subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with
precision. The Company believes that the carrying amount of its cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, and
accounts payable approximate the fair values at those dates. The fair market value of the Company’s notes payable and long-term debt
was $193.8 million and $105.0 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The large increase is due to the nature of the
debt being convertible and the significant increase in the market value of the Company’s common stock throughout 2006 when
compared to 2005.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The Company performs an annual impairment test at its fiscal year end for goodwill. For
purposes of performing the impairment test for goodwill as required by SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”, the
Company established the following reporting units: Land Imaging Systems, Sensor Geophone, Marine Imaging Systems, Data
Management Solutions, and Seismic Imaging Solutions.

SFAS 142 requires the Company to compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount on an annual basis to
determine if there is potential goodwill impairment. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairment
loss is recorded to the extent that the fair value of the goodwill within the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. To determine
the fair value of their reporting units, the Company uses a discounted future returns valuation method. The annual impairment
assessment performed at December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 resulted in no impairment of the Company’s goodwiil,

Intangible assets other than goodwill relate to proprietary technology, patents, trade names, non-compete agreements, customer
relationships, and intellectual property rights and are included in Intangible and other assets, net. The Company reviews the carrying
values of these intangible assets for impairment if events or changes in the facts and circumstances indicate that their carrying value
may not be recoverable. The carrying value of an intangible asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash
flows expected to result from use of the intangible asset. Any impairment deternined is recorded in the current period and is measured
by comparing the fair value of the related asset to its carrying value. There were no impairments to the Company’s intangible assets
during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Intangible assets amortized on a straight-line basis are:
Estimated Useful Life

{Years)
Proprietary teCRMOLOBY ......c.o ettt b e b 4-7
PALEIIES. ..ottt eem e e e me e e e e emc e et e er e et e e e e e e e e e e s n e £an e e Re e R e e e e e e e e e e sn e ane e hes s et s r e 5-20
TTAE MAMES.......eoiiiieie e s s s s st s e e aens 5
NON-COMPELE AZTEEMIEIS ..ottt e s s e b s b s s s e e 2

Intangible assets amortized on an accelerated basis are:
Estimated Econemic Life

{Years)
Customer relationsShiPs ..o e e rens 15
[ntellectual property FIERIS ... s e 5

Revenue Recognition and Product Warranty. The Company derives revenue from the sale of (i) acquisition systems and other
seismic equipment within its Land Imaging Systems and Marine Imaging Systems segments; (ii) imaging services, multi-client
surveys and licenses of “off-the-shelf” data libraries within its Seismic Imaging Solutions segment; and (iii) navigation, survey and
quality control software systems within its Data Management Solutions segment,

For the sales of acquisition systems and other seismic equipment, the Company follows the requirements of Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104 “Revenue Recognition” and recognizes revenue when (a) evidence of an arrangement exists; (b} the price to the
customer is fixed and determinable; (¢) collectibility is reasonably assured; and {d) the acquisition system or other seismic equipment
is delivered to the customer and risk of ownership has passed to the customer, or, in the limited case where a substantive customer-
specified acceptance clause exists in the contract, the later of delivery or when the customer-specified acceptance is obtained.

Revenues from all imaging and other services are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed
or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from contract services performed on a day-rate basis are
recognized as the service is performed.




Revenues from multi-client surveys are recognized as the seismic data is acquired and/or processed on a proportionate basis as
work is performed. Under this method, the Company recognizes revenues based upon quantifiable measures of progress, such as
kilometers acquired or days processed. Upon completion of a multi-client seismic survey, the survey data is considered “off-the-shelf”
and licenses to the survey data are sold to customers on a non-exclusive basis. The license of a completed multi-client survey is
represented by the license of one standard set of data. Revenues on licenses of completed multi-client data surveys are recognized
when a signed final master geophysical data license agreement and accompanying supplemental license agreement are returned by the
customer, the purchase price for the license is fixed or determinable, delivery or performance has occurred, and no significant
uncertainty exists as to the customer’s obligation, willingness or ability to pay. In limited situations, the Company has provided the
customer with a right to exchange seismic data for another specific seismic data set. In these limited situations, the Company
recognizes revenue at the earlier of the customer exercising its exchange right or the expiration of the customer’s exchange right.

When separate elements (such as an acquisition system, other seismic equipment and/or imaging services) are contained in a single
sales arrangement, or in related arrangements with the same customer, the Company follows the requirements of EITF 00-21
“Accounting for Multiple-Element Revenue Arrangement,” and allocates revenue to each element based upon objectively determined
fair value, so long as each such element meets the criteria for treatment as a separate unit of accounting. The Company limits the
amount of revenue recognition for delivered elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or
services. The Company generally does not grant return or refund privileges to its customers. When undelivered elements, such as
training courses, are inconsequential or perfunctory and not essential to the functionality of the delivered elements, the Company
recognizes revenue on the total contract and makes a provision for the costs of the incomplete elements.

For the sales of navigation, survey and quality control software systems, the Company follows the requirements of SOP 97-2
“Software Revenue Recognition,” because in those systems the software is more than incidental to the arrangement as a whole.
Following the requirements of EITF 03-05 “Applicability of AICPA Statement of Position 97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an
Arrangement Containing More-Than-Incidental Software,” the Company considers the hardware within these systems to be a
software-related item because the software 1s essential to the hardware’s functionality. As a resuit, the Company recognizes revenue
from sales of navigation, survey and quality control software systems when (a) evidence of an arrangement exists; (b} the price to the
customer is fixed and determinable; (c) collectibility is reasonably assured; and (d) the software and software-related hardware is
delivered to the customer and risk of ownership has passed to the customer, or, in the limited case where a substantive customer-
specified acceptance clause exists in the contract, the later of delivery or when the customer-specified acceptance is obtained. These
arrangements generally include the Company providing related services, such as training courses, engineering services and annual
software maintenance, The Company allocates revenue to each element of the arrangement based upon vendor-specific objective
evidence of fair value of the element or, if vendor-specific objective evidence is not available for the delivered element, the Company
applies the residual method.

The Company generally warrants that its manufactured equipment will be free from defects in workmanship, material and parts.
Warranty periods generally range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. The
Company provides for estimated warranty as a charge to costs of sales at the time of sale.

Research and Development. Research and development costs primarily relate to activities that are designed to improve the quality
of the subsurface tmage and overall acquisition economics of the Company’s customers. The costs associated with these activities are
expensed as incurred. These costs include prototype material and ficld testing expenses, along with the related salaries and stock-based
compensation, facility costs, consulting fees, tools and equipment usage, and other miscellaneous expenses associated with these
activities.

fncome Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under the liability method. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. The Company reserves for substantially all net deferred tax assets and will continue to reserve for
substantially all net deferred tax assets until there is sufficient evidence to warrant reversal (see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated
Financia! Statements). The Company’s net non-current deferred tax liability relates primarily to the difference in the carrying amount
and the tax bases of the acquired intangible assets of Concept Systems. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.



Comprehensive Net Income (Loss). Comprehensive net income (loss), consisting of net income (loss) and foreign currency
translation adjustments, is presented in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The
balance in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {Loss) consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Net Income (Loss) per Common Share. Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss)
applicable to common shares by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income
per common share is determined based on the assumption that dilutive restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards have vested
and outstanding dilutive stock options have been exercised and the aggregate proceeds were used to reacquire common stock using the
average price of such common stock for the period. The total number of shares issuable under anti-dilutive options at December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 were 3,734,050, 3,242,050, and 7,313,600. The Company has outstanding $60.0 million of convertible senior
notes, for which 13,888,890 common shares may be acquired upon their full conversion. The convertible notes were dilutive for the
year ended December 31, 2006. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the convertible notes were anti-dilutive and have
been excluded from the diluted net income per common share for those periods. In February 2005, the Company issued the Series D-1
Preferred Stock, which may be converted, at the holder’s election, into 3,812,428 total common shares. The Series D-i Preferred
Stock was anti-ditutive for all periods outstanding and has been excluded from the diluted net income per common share for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The following table summarizes the calculation of the weighted average number of common shares and weighted average number
of diluted common shares outstanding for purposes of the computation of basic net income (loss) per common share and diluted net
income (loss) per common share (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Net income (loss) applicable to common SHATES ......cooooiiivieiieineceee e $ 269125 17,144 § (8,614)
Income impact of assumed convertible debt conversion..............cnn 4,027 — —
Net income (loss) after impact of assumed convertible debt conversion ... $.30939 8 17,144 § (8,614)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding .........c.ccoovveiiniricieinecnonenns 79,497 78,600 65,759
Effect of dilutive SOCK aWards ........oooveeeeveiceeeeeeeeeette ittt eaa s e e ren e sras 1,796 1,242 —
Effect of convertible debt cONVErsion.............cccooiiiii e 13,889 — —
Weighted average number of diluted common shares outstanding ..., 95182 _ 75842 _ 65,759
Net income (loss) per basic share before change in accounting principle...........ccoeeen $ 0338% 022% (0.13)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting prinCiple ... 0.0] — —
Net income {[055) Per basic ShATE ... ....cocooioieie et $ 03§ 02285 (0.13)
Net income {loss) per diluted share before change in accounting principle ..o $§ 0328% 021% (0.13)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..o 0.01 — —
Net income (loss) per diluted share ... § 0338 __021% (013

Foreign Currency Gains and Losses. Assets and liabilities of the Company’s subsidiaries operating outside the United States
which account in a functional currency other than U.S. dollars have been translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at
the balance sheet date. Results of foreign operations have been translated using the average exchange rate during the periods of
operation. Resulting translation adjustments have been recorded as a component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Foreign currency transaction gains and
losses are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as they occur, Total foreign currency transaction losses were $(2.3)
million, $(0.2) million, and $(0.1) million, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Concentration of Credit and Foreign Sales Risks. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, approximately 8%, 9%
and 15%, respectively, or $38.4 million, $30.9 miilion, and $36.2 million, respectively, of the Company’s consolidated net revenues
were attributable to primarily land product sales to one customer headquartered in China. Approximately $7.9 million, or 5%, of the
Company’s total accounts receivable at December 31, 2006 related to this same customer. For the years December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004, approximately 8%, 2%, and 7%, respectively, or $39.6 million, $7.5 million, and $17.7 million, respectively, of the
Company’s consolidated net revenues, were attributable to marine product sales to a single customer. At December 31, 2006 and
2005, $12.9 million, or 8%, and $6.9 million, or 6%, respectively, of the Company’s total accounts receivable and $7.2 miilion and
$10.2 million, respectively, of the Company’s total notes receivable, related to this same customer. The loss of these customers or a




deterioration in the Company'’s relationship with either customer could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations and financial condition.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized $119.4 million of sales to customers in Europe, $86.2
million of sales to customers in Asia Pacific, $31.3 million of sales to customers in Africa, $51.8 million of sales to customers in the
Middle East, $15.3 million of sales to customers in Latin American countries, and $37.3 million of sales to customers in the
Commonwealth of Independent States, or tormer Soviet Union (CIS). The majority of the Company’s foreign sales are denominated in
U.S. dollars, In recent years, the CIS and certain Latin American countries have experienced economic problems and uncertainties. To
the extent that world events or economic conditions negatively affect the Company’s future sales to customers in these and other
regions of the world or the collectibility of the Company’s existing receivables, the Company’s future results of operations, liquidity,
and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Stock-Based Compensation — On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”
(SFAS 123R), that addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services
in exchange for either equity instruments of the enterprise or liabilitics that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity
instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. The statement requires that such transactions be
accounted for using a fair-value-based method and recognized as expense in the Company’s consotidated statement of operations.
Prior to the adoptions of SFAS 123R, the Company used the intrinsic value method as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees. "

The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method which requires the application of the accounting
standard as of January 1, 2006. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflect the impact of
adopting SFAS 123R. In accordance with the modified prospective method, the consolidated financial statements for prior periods
have not been restated to reflect and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R. See Note 13 “Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based
Compensation” for further details.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of stock-based payment
awards that is ultimately expected to vest. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statement of operations
during the year ended December 31, 2006 includes the compensation expense for stock-based payment awards granted prior to, but
not yet vested, as of December 31, 2005 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of
SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123
(issued 12/02)" (SFAS 148), and compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted subsequent to December 31,
2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with SFAS 123R. As stock-based compensation expense recognized
in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it
has been reduced for estimated forfeitures.

SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. When estimating forfeitures, the Company considers voluntary termination experience as well
as trends of actual forfeitures. In the pro forma information required under SFAS 148 for the periods prior to 2006, the Company
accounted for forfeitures as they occurred. Also, prior to adoption to SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for forfeitures of its
restricted stock and restricted stock units as the forfeitures occurred. The Company has estimated forfeitures on its unvested restricted
stock and restricted stock units outstanding as of January 1, 2006, and recorded a $0.4 million cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle to reflect the compensation cost that would not have been recognized in prior periods had forfeitures been
estimated during these periods.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation on the straight-line basis over the service period of
each award (generally the award’s vesting period). The Company had recognized compensation expense in its pro forma disclosures
under SFAS 123R on the straight-line basis related to its stock options. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company recognized
compensation expense related to its restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards using the accelerated method of amortization and
will continue to apply the accelerated method to all outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards granted prior to
January 1, 2006.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncerrainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48), which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “dccounting for Income Taxes” (SFAS
109). FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet for any part of the
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benefit of that position to be recognized in the financial statements, Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on the measurement,
derecognition, classification, and disclosure of tax positions, along with accounting for the related interest and penalties. The
provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, of this statement.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts previously reported in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to the current year presentation. These include net revenues and cost of sales being presented to reflect the total of product and service
revenues and their related costs. The net revenues and cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and other certain
amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

(2) Acquisitions

In June 2004, the Company purchased all the capital stock of GX Technology Corporation (GXT), headquartered in Houston.
Texas. GXT is a leading provider of seismic imaging technology, data processing, and subsurface imaging services to oil and gas
companies. The purchase price was approximately $152.5 million, consisting of $137.9 million in cash, including acquisition costs,
and the assumption of GXT indebtedness and GXT stock options, which, effective upon the acquisition date, became fully vested
stock options to purchase up to 2,916,590 shares of 1/O common stock, at a weighted average exercise price of $1.98 per share. These
assumed options had an approximate fair value of $14.6 million. The Company acquired GXT as part of its strategy to expand the
range of offerings it can provide to its customers. As a result of the acquisition, the combined company is better positioned to offer a
range of seismic imaging solutions that integrate both seismic acquisition equipment and seismic imaging and data processing
services.

In February 2004, the Company purchased all the share capital of Concept Systems. Concept Systems, based in Edinburgh,
Scotland, is a provider of software, systems and services for towed streamer, and seabed and land seismic operations. The purchase
orice was approximately $49.8 million, consisting of $39.0 million in cash, including acquisition costs, and 1,680,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, valued at $10.8 million. The Company acquired Concept Systems as part of its strategy to develop
solutions that integrate complex data streams from multiple seismic sub-systems, including source, source control, positioning, and
recording in all environments, including land, towed streamer, and seabed acquisition.

The acquisitions were accounted for by the purchase method, with the purchase price allocated to the fair value of assets purchased
and liabilities assumed. The allocations of the purchase prices, including related direct costs, for the acquisitions are as follows (in
thousands):

Concept
GXT Systems
Fair values of assets and liabilities:
Net current assets (LHabilIHES) ..vevoiri e $ (640§ 3,102
Property, plant and eQUIPIMENT .....coovoririririiiec i 11,304 548
Multi-client data HBIArY ........o.oo oot e 11,727 —
INEANZIDIE ASSELS ...eoemeieieiiiniii iSRS 52,877 21,361
L0 TaT e A 11 FOUUUT O O O T OO OO 89,090 30,679
D EITEA INCOMIE LAXES ..o o eiiieeeiaresrerisssiarsesannesareaseesabeaeneneaaee e enesbrssibas s s b s e R bE s b e sben s eanamnt ey eamse s — (5,932)
Capital lease ObHZAtIONS. ..o (6.099) —
Total allocated PUrchase Price ... s 152,492 49,758
Less non-cash consideration — issuance of common StocK.......cccoviiin e — (10,763)
Less non-cash consideration — fair value of fully vested stock options issued........cocovvevrcirienns (14,637) —
Less cash of acquired DUSITESS ... (2,193) —
Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acquired ... $_ 135662 §_ 38995

The intangible assets of GXT relate to customer relationships, proprietary technology, non-compete agreements, and its trade
name, which are being amortized over their estimated useful and economic lives ranging from two to 15 years. The intangible assets
of Concept Systems relate to computer software, customer relationships, and its trade name, which are being amortized over their
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estimated useful and economic lives ranging from five to 15 years. See further discussion of goodwill and intangible assets at Notes 8
and 9 of Netes ro Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following summarized unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement information for the year ended December 31,
2004, assumes that the GXT and Concept Systems acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of the period presented. The
Company has prepared these unaudited pro forma financial results for comparative purposes only. These unaudited pro forma
financial results may not be indicative of the results that would have occurred if the Company had completed the acquisitions as of the
beginning of the period presented or the results that will be attained in the future.

Year Ended
December 31, 2004
TN B TEVRTILES L1vveeereeeeee e e e e trrssietssssteesesm s oo entreeeremer s sabmeesasabessasbabase s antrars s besasnbasesassbbeseabaeasssntesssrrrerrren $ 274,704
L0SS fTOM OPETALIONS ..ot e s s se s e s e s e e s e s et eseasasatesesesenrererrees $  (5,208)
Net loss applicable to COMMON SRATES ...t 3 (12,659)
Basic and diluted net 10ss per cOmmOn Share ...........ovoeeeeeeeeeeieccee it ares 3 (0.16)

{3) Accounts and Notes Receivable
A summary of accounts receivable is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
Accounts receivable, principally trade.......ccoooeiiieeee et ear e $ 170,548 S 123,961
Less allowance for doubtful CCOUNTS ..........o.oviueveeecceececcvree e ces st e en e e (2.801) (3.081)
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE, MEL. ... oot s et e ses e se e e e e et sresessnesreereanternaaennan 3 167,747 § 120,880

Notes receivable are generally collateralized by the products sold, bear interest at contractual rates ranging from 0.0% to 7.9% per
year, and are due at various dates through 2008. For non-interest bearing notes with a maturity greater than one year, or those notes for
which the stated rate of interest is considered a below market rate of interest, the Company imputes interest using prevailing market
rates at the notes origination. The weighted average effective interest rate at December 31, 2006 was 6.7%. A summary of notes
receivable, accrued interest, and allowance for doubtful notes is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

Notes receivable and ACCIUE INTETES ... ..o ceirirer e reere e e s eesesste e s s eseeeraseeesssenessasneessssraesonns $ 15,797 $ 19,410
Less allowance for dOubtful MOES ........c..oeeecevireere ettt s sar s s esbsntes {4.530) {4,530)
INGUES TECRIVADIE, NEL....eeeiiiiiiieiree et eee et e e crttaeesaneeeaasssesasssseereasesesareesrastasssssbaeassntesasnees 11,267 14,880
Less current portion notes receivable, NEl.....c.covviiiiiiii it aeaes s 6,299 8372
Long-term notes TeCeIVADIE .........cooviieee e § 4968 $_6.508

The activity in the allowance for doubtful notes receivable is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Balance at begintting of Period .........oooeeceeeiiieiic et $4530 % 5893 § 2,613
Additions charged to bad debt eXpense..........oovviivniiiiccc e s — — 4,730
Recoveries reducing bad debt @Xpense .......c.oovvvvervncccieiiciscecr e — (500 (1,450}
Write-offs charged against the allowance ..ot — (1.313) —
Balance at end of PENOd ..ot 34530 § 4,530 § 5893

(4) Inventories
A summary of inventories is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, De¢cember 31,

2006 2005
Raw materials and subassemblies . ..........ocoiiiioiiiiiie ettt ettt e e e e reee e as e et s $ 52,628 $ 45946
WOTK-IM-PTOCESS c.veiviiriiiiiietieeitttie e e st e e et e et b e e et tesee s e enees s e s ensanbemeeseensessenseresnsesseereerssneenesnnens 13,324 9,047
FIISNEA BOOMS ..ottt ettt e et eees e s e emees e s esnnsas et e enteresrerennes 59,448 37.031
Reserve for excess and ObDSOlEte INVEMEOTIES .. oot e eebe e e eeeeemeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeereeerresneenen (9.880) {10,596)
TOUALL vt 8 e s R res e $ 115520 §_81,428
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The Company provides for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and
its estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand for the Company’s products and market conditions. For the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, the Company recorded inventory obsolescence and excess inventory charges of
approximately $1.5 million, $1.0 million, and $0.7 million, respectively. The reduction in reserves in the current year was due to
reserved inventory which was either sold or scrapped.

The Company has increased its use of contract manufacturers as an alternative to in-house manufacturing. Under some of the
Company’s outsourcing arrangements, its manufacturing outsourcers first utilize the Company’s on-hand inventory, then directly
purchase inventory at agreed-upon quantities and lead times in order to mect the Company’s scheduled deliveries. If demand proves to
be less than the Company originally forecasted (therefore allowing the Company to cancel its committed purchase orders with its
manufacturing outsourcer), its outsourcers generally have the right to require the Company to purchase inventory which they had
purchased on the Company’s behalf.

(5) Supplemental Cash Flow Information and Non-Cash Activity
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Net cash paid during the period for:
TTMETESE 1o eeeeeeeesee e esessseseseesbasaaabebebebe et e et em s eeessrmrees e bR A e A e bR $ 2,047 $ 5510 § 5394
TICOITIE LAXES . vveeeeeerrrrssseeeesaasesssasassssssmessesssaessssssasesssassreare s semeaesonneeeen b s 4 s 4 iababss s aasnan e peeesnnneas 5,314 1,814 1,825

In June 2005, the owner of the Company’s facilities located in Stafford, Texas, sold the facilities to two unrelated parties. See
further discussion of certain effects of this transaction on the Company at Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2006 and 2005, the Company purchased $9.8 million and $4.1 million, respectively, of computer equipment, which were
financed through capital leases. Also, in 2005, the Company transferred $3.6 million of inventory at cost, to property, plant, and
equipment.

(6) Property, Plant and Equipment

A summary of property, plant and equipment is as follows {in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2006 2008
LI 1o eee et eee ettt et e e e sa e s et e r et e aeee e ene e e seese et b b e oAb et e e eR e e e et R R R R e sn ks e as R b e s $ 34 h) 51
BUIAINES ..o bbb bbb et 11,134 10,481
Machinery and @QUIPIIEIT ... ..ot ittt 78,808 60,595
Leased SQUIPITIETIL .......ocvreieerercrireererestoressseiecanssteseerese oo ebsbe st ar s e e r e r s b s s a b e 6,912 10,218
L0111 1=) (O U OO OO U U UUURU OO PPPOPOPPPPRN 4,737 2.909
101,625 84,254
Less accumulated depreCiation ...t s (63.496) (55257
Property, plant and eqUIPTIENE, N .....c.ouriiriiirriie e § 38,126  §_ 28,997

Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $13.4 million, $15.2 million, and $129
million, respectively, At December 31, 2006, a building of $6.7 million at cost, less accumulated depreciation of $3.7 million, is
recorded pursuant to a ten-year non-cancelable lease agreement (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and is
being depreciated over its useful life.

(7) Cost Method Investments

In December 2004, the Company sold all of the capital stock of Applied MEMS, a wholly-owned subsidiary, to Colibrys Ltd.
(Colibrys), a privately-held firm based in Switzerland. Colibrys manufactures micro-clectro-mechanical-systems. (MEMS)




accelerometers used in the Company’s VectorSeis digital, full-wave seismic sensors, as well as products for applications that include
test and measurement, eatrthquake and structural monitoring, and defense. In exchange for the stock of Applied MEMS, the Company
received shares of Colibrys equal to approximately 10% of the outsianding equity of Colibrys (valued at $3.5 million), and the right to
designate one member of the board of directors of Colibrys. The investment is accounted for under the cost method.

To protect the Company’s intellectual property rights, the Company retained ownership of its MEMS intellectual property, and has
licensed that intellectual property to Colibrys on a royalty-free basis. Additionally, the Company received preferential rights to
Colibrys™ MEMS technology for seismic applications involving natural resource extraction. The Company also entered into a five-
year supply agreement with Colibrys and Applied MEMS, which provides for them to supply the Company with MEMS
accelerometers at agreed prices that are consistent with market prices. The five-year minimum commitment ranges between $7.0
million to $8.0 mitlion per year through 2009.

(8) Goodwill

The following is a summary of the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005;

Land Marine Data Seismic
Imaging  Imaging Management Imaging
Systems Svystems Solutions Solutions Total
Balance at January 1, 2005 ... $ 3478 % 26984 §$ 30,775 $ 91,721 § 152,958
Purchase price adjustments.........c.covveeiiiiicccininni s — — (96) 1,932 1.836
Balance at December 31, 2005 ..o 3478 26,984 30,679 93,653 154,794
Impact of foreign currency translation adjustments.............ccocecvnee — — 1,297 — 1,297
Balance at December 31, 2006 ... 53478 8 26984 § 31,976 $_93,653 $.156,091
(9) Intangible Assets
A summary of intangible assets, net, is as follows (in thousands):
As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Proprietary technology........coocvveviiiiinins $ 14242 5§ (5899 § 8343 3 14242 § (3,860) $ 10,382
Patents.......coooiiie e 3,689 (2,276) 1,413 3,789 (2,146) 1,643
Intellectual property rights.......ccococeeinenenn. 3,050 (375) 2,675 1,850 (60) 1,790
Customer relationships ......ccooeveviriennnnn. 42.053 (7,469) 34,584 41,206 (4,202) 37,006
Non-compete agreements ........ocoevevvcereenns 700 (700) — 700 (540) 160
Trade MAMES...cocee e eeeeeeane 4.161 {2,140} 2,021 4.096 (1,285) 2,811
TOMAL ettt £ 67,895 5 _(18,859) 5 49,036 § 65,8335 § (12,093) 3§ 53,792

Total amortization expenses for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $6.7 million, $6.4
miilion, and $3.9 million, respectively. A summary of the estimated amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

20T e bbb bbb bbbttt $ 8,507
2008 e bbb bbbk bbb 5 8,019
2000 e bk ek ks st b bbb bbb s $ 6485
ZOLO e £ bbbt bbb bbb b $ 5,848
0T e bbb R h bbbt bbb bbb bbb et es $ 6,617
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(10) Accrued Expenses

A summary of accrued expenses is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
Compensation, including compensation-related taxes and commissions ..., $ 24,084 $ 11,686
PrOQUCE WATTANTY ...evveveveriivsessenecreemeeceeeeeecseeaeeecseemesecamemesseaneameaeeseomeneeseoseb et s tasaa et s saabesba e abasbaaanans 6,255 3,896
Accrued taxes (primarily inCOme taXes) ....ocoviiiimeiiii s 5,798 4,129
Accrued multi-client data library acquUISItION COSIS.......oovviorioioriieseeee e 5,378 2,944
L0132 OOV U U U OO YO U TO USROS P RO 9.304 7,212
Total 20CTUEH EXPENSES ..veveeeieieieieie sttt et reae e s eas s e amenens e sa s e racoreser s it e r s r e essenanenn $ 50819 § 29,867

The Company generally warrants that all manufactured equipment will be free from defects in workmanship, materials, and parts.
Warranty periods generally range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. The
Company provides for estimated warranty as a charge to cost of sales at time of sale, which is when estimated future expenditures
associated with such contingencies become probable and reasonably estimated. However, new information may become available, or
circumstances (such as applicable laws and regulations) may change, thereby resulting in an increase or decrease in the amount
required to be accrued for such matters (and therefore a decrease or increase in reported net income in the period of such change). A

summary of warranty activity is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$ 389 § 3,832 § 3433

Balance at beginning of period ...
Accruals for warranties issued during the period.........oiniiiiiini 6,784 5,317 4,606
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period..........c.ccooin e, (4425) _ (5,253) __{4.207)
Balance at end of Period ... § 6,255 % 3896 § 3832

{11) Notes Payable, Long-term Debt and Lease Obligations

A summary of the Company’s notes payable, long term debt, and lease obligations as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, are as
follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

Obligations 2006 2005

$25.0 million revolving ling of Credit ..ot $ — $ 3.000
Facility 16a5€ ODHGAION .......ccooi ittt e s se st sn e 5,276 5,521
$60.0 million convertible SEMIOT MOIES ... ..covue i ivieic et ireccisrsirerse e e esrmrr e s s arareasessseeeeeineeeanarnensannes 60,000 60,000
Equipment capital I0a8€S5. ........coi e s 11,069 6,354
Other NOLES PAYADIE ...voii ettt 1,195 1,071
TOMAL. e e e eeeeee e e e en e e s s b s b e bk Rebea bbb Rk et $ 77,540 $ 75946

Revolving Line of Credit. In May 2005, the Company obtained a $25.0 million revolving line of credit with a maturity date of May
24, 2008. There was no outstanding balance of indebtedness under this credit facility at December 31, 2006. The Company can elect
to apply either the lender’s Base Rate (as defined in the agreement) or the three month LIBOR rate plus 2.25% to 2.75% (depending
on the Company’s Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio, as defined in the agreement) as interest on outstanding borrowings under the
revolving line of credit. Had the Company drawn on the facility, the annual interest rate in effect at December 31, 2006 would have
been 8.25%. The Company is obligated to pay a commitment fee of 0.25% per annum on the unused portion of the revolving credit
facility. In addition, the Company can issue letters of credit totaling up to $5 million under this facility, which, if issued, reduces the

Company's borrowing availability under this revolving line of credit.

A portion of the Company’s assets is pledged as collateral for outstanding borrowings under this revolving line of credit. Total
borrowings are subject to a borrowing base limitation based on a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and inventories. As of
December 31, 2006, the borrowing base calculation permitted total borrowings of $25.0 million, which all remained available. The
credit agreement prohibits the Company from paying common stock dividends and limits certain capital expenditures, incurring
additional debt, selling significant assets, acquiring other businesses, and merging with other entities without the consent of the
lenders. The credit agreement requires compliance with certain financial and non-financial covenants, including quarterly
requirements related to a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (not less than 1.25 to 1), as defined in the agreement. Except for the limits on




certain 2006 capital expenditures (which limits were waived by the lender), the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants
under the credit agreement at December 31, 2006.

The credit agreement includes a contingent lockbox arrangement, which is triggered upon an event of default or if the Company’s
availability under the revolving line of credit falls below $5.0 million. If triggered, all available funds would be used to pay down the
outstanding principal balance under the revolving line of credit. The Company currently classifies the outstanding balance, if any,
under the revolving line of credit as long-term; however, if the contingent lockbox is triggered, the Company would be required to
reflect its outstanding borrowings, if any, under this revolving line of ¢credit as short-term.

Facility Lease Obligation. In 2001, the Company sold its facilities, located in Stafford, Texas, for $21.0 million. Simulianeously
with the sale, the Company entered into a non-cancelable twelve-year lease with the purchaser of the property. Because the Company
retained a continuing involvement in the property that precluded sale-leaseback treatment for financial accounting purposes, the sale-
leaseback transaction was accounted for as a financing transaction, and the Company recorded a lease obligation of $21.0 million
using an implicit interest rate of 9.1% per annum.

In June 2005, the owner sold the facilities to two parties, which were unrelated to each other as well as unrelated to the seller. In
conjunction with the sale of the facilities, the Company entered into two separate lease arrangements for each of the facilities with the
new owners. One lease {the Operating Lease), which was classified as an operating lease, has a twelve-year lease term; the other lease
(the Lease Obligation), continues to be accounted for as a financing transaction due to the Company’s continuing involvement in the
property as a lessee, and has a ten-year lease term which the Company does not expect to renew. Both leases have renewal options
allowing the Company to extend the {eases for up to an additional twenty-year term.

Because the Company subleases more than a minor portion of the property under the Lease Obligation, the Company recorded the
commitment as a $5.5 million lease obligation at an implicit interest rate of 11.7% per annum. The Operating Lease qualified as a
sale-leaseback for financial reporting purposes; as a result, in June 2003, $11.8 mitlion under the related lease oblipations and $8.1
mitlion of long-term assets (primarily fixed assets) were treated as a sale, with the Company recording a deferred gain of $3.7 million,
The deferred gain is being recognized on a straight-line basis over the twelve-year lease term,

Convertible Senior Notes. In December 2003, the Company issued $60.0 million of convertible senior notes, which mature on
December 15, 2008. The notes bear interest at an annual rate of 5.5%, payable semi-annually. The notes, which are not redeemable
prior to their maturity, are convertible into the Company’s common stock at an initial conversion rate of 231.4815 shares per $1,000
principal amount of notes (a conversion price of $4.32 per share), which represents 13,888,890 total common shares. The Company
paid $3.5 miltion in underwriting and professional fees, which have been recorded as deferred financing costs and are being amortized
over the term of the notes.

Equipment Capital Leases. The Company has entered into a series of equipment loans that are due in installments for the purpose
of financing the purchase of computer equipment, in the form of capital leases expiring in various years through 2009. Interest charged
under these loans range from 3.5% to 11.7% and the leases are collateralized by liens on the computer equipment. The assets and
liabilities under these capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of
the assets. The assets are amortized over the lesser of their related lease terms or their estimated productive lives and such charges are
reflected within depreciation expense.

A summuary of future principal obligations under the notes payable, long-term debt, and equipment capital lease obligations are as
follows (in thousands):

Notes Payable and Capital Lease

Years Ended December 31, Long-Term Debt Ohligations
00T e e etttk ettt etttk et et et et et s enent ek s nbe e e e eren ¥ 1,458 $ 5,69
ZOOB . e E et a et A e ettt ea et et e e s e ntene st e et e nb e ee e et ne 60,381 4,623
200D ettt h et a e a e n e s e et s aen 455 1,644
2010 e ettt skttt sttt e ae et b e an e s ebeenene st e e en e e e seenens 521 —
ZOT L ettt et b et et s e s et s s ene e e enes 610 —
2012 and theT@AafIET ...c.ooveieie ettt 3,046 —
TOTAL e ettt s sb s et s s $§ 66471 11,963
IMIPUEEA TIETESE ....oviiiiieieiiieeicicee ettt esea e e sessrsseressres et ebs e sssb e s enensesereens (894)
Net present value of equipment capital lease obligations ...........cco.oiiiiee s eseeee e, 11,069
Current portion of equipment capital lease obligations .........covcvvvvvvevei e 5,108
Long-term portion of equipment capital lease obHgations...........c.ocovvvevviviieiiieseieeeeeieiene 3 5961
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{12) Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

In February 2005, the Company issued 30,000 shares of a newly designated Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
(Series D-1 Preferred Stock) in a privately-negotiated transaction, at a purchase price of §1,000 per share, for an aggregate of 529.8
million in net proceeds. Dividends, which are contractually obligated to be paid quarterly, may be paid, at the option of the Company,
either in cash or by the issuance of the Company’s common stock. Dividends are paid at a rate equal to the greater of (i) five percent
per annum or (ii) the three month LIBOR rate on the last day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter plus two and one-half
percent per annum. The dividend rate for the Scries D-1 Preferred Stock was 7.87% at December 31, 2006.

The Series D-1 Preferred Stock may be converted, at the holder’s election, into 3,812,428 shares of the Company’s common stock,
subject to adjustment, at an initial conversion price of $7.869 per share, also subject to adjustment in certain events. Also,
commencing on February 17, 2007, or sooner if the 20-day average market price of the Company’s common stock is less than $4.45
(the Minimum Price) on any date after August 12, 2005, if the Company fails to pay dividends, or a change of control is announced,
the holder has the right to redeem all or part of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock. The Company may satisfy its redemption obligations
either in cash or by the issuance of the Company’s common stock, calculated based upon the prevailing market price, but not less than
$4.45 per share, of the Company’s common stock at the time of redemption. However, if the 20-day average price of the Company’s
common stock is less than the Minimum Price during that time, the Company may satisfy its redemption obligation by resetting the
conversion price to the Minimum Price, and thereafter, all dividends must be paid in cash. In the event the Company cannot deliver
registered shares upon a redemption and to the extent the Company cannot deliver cash, the dividend rate will increase to §5%. Also,
if the Company falls out of registration, the Company will pay an additional dividend equal to 1/15% multiplied by the number of
days (equates to 2% per month) an effective registration is not available.

The Company also granted the right, commencing August 16, 2005 and expiring on February 16, 2008 (subject to extension), to
purchase up to an additional 40,000 shares of Series D-1 Preferred Stock, having similar terms and conditions as the Series D-1
Preferred Stock, and having a conversion price equal to 122% of the then-prevailing market price of the Company’s common stock at
the time of its issuance, but not less than $6.31 per share (subject to adjustment in certain events).

The proceeds received from the sale of the Series D-1 Preferred Stock, net of transaction costs, have been classified outside of
stockholders’ equity on the balance sheet below total liabilitics. The transaction costs have been deferred and are being accreted
through the statement of operations through February 2007. Prior to conversion, common shares issuable will be assessed for inclusion
in the weighted average shares outstanding for the Company’s diluted carnings per share using the if-converted method.

(13) Stockholders® Equity and Stock-Based Compensation
Stockholders Rights Plan

In January 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a stockholders’ rights plan. The stockholders’ rights plan was adopted
to give the Company’s Board increased power to negotiate in the Company’s best interests and to discourage appropriation of control
of the Company at a price that was unfair to its stockholders. The stockholders’ rights plan involved the distribution of one preferred
share purchase “right” as a dividend on each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock to all holders of record on January
27, 1997. Each right will entitle the holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock at a
purchase price of $200 per one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, subject to adjustment. The rights traded in
tandem with the Company’s common stock until, and would become exercisable following, the occurrence of certain triggering
events. The Board retained the right to discontinue the stockholders’ rights plan through the redemption of all rights or to amend the
stockholders’ rights plan in any respect prior to the Company’s announcement of the occutrence of any such triggering event,
including the acquisition of 20% or more of the Company’s voting stock by an acquirer. The stockholders rights plan and the rights
expired in accordance with the terms of the plan on January 29, 2007. The Board determined not to renew the stockholders’ rights
plan.

Treasury Stock

In October 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock in th
open market and privately negotiated transactions at such prices and at such times as management deems appropriate. As of Decembe
31, 2006, the Company had repurchased 932,860 shares of common stock at an average price of $7.70 per share under this repurchas
program. At December 31, 2006, the Company owned 850,428 shares of treasury stock.




Stock Option Plans

The Company has adopted stock option plans for eligible employees, directors, and consultants, which provide for the granting of
options to purchase shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2006, there were 6,824,648 shares issued or committed for issuance
under outstanding options under the Company’s stock option plans, and 696,286 shares available for future grant and issuance, of
which, all may also be issucd as other stock-based awards such as restricted stock or restricted stock units. As part of the acquisitions,
the Company issued to certain GXT and Concept Systems key employees inducement options to purchase up to 434,000 and 365,000
shares, respectively, of its common stock and assumed GXT stock options which represent fully vested stock options to purchase up to
2,916,590 shares of /0O common stock.

On March 14, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved, and on May 17, 2006, the stockholders of the Company
approved, the amendment and restatement of such plan as previously in effect, principally to (i) increase by 1,700,000 the total
number of shares of common stock of the Company available for issuance under such plan, and (ii) add provisions allowing equity
compensation awards to non-employee directors to replace the Company’s Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director
Stock Optton Plan, which expired by its terms in July 2006,

The options under these plans generally vest in equal annual instaliments over a four-year period and have a term of ten years.
These options are typically granted with an exercise price per share equal to or greater than the current market price and, upon
exercise, are issued from the Company’s unissued common shares. On August 16, 2006, the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company approved fixed pre-established quarterly grant dates for all future grants of options.

The vesting schedule for option grants to directors is determined based upon the years of service. The maximum vesting period is
equal annual installments over a three-year period beginning on the anniversary of the date of grant. The options have a term of ten
years.

Transactions under the stock option plans are summarized as follows:

Option Price Avaitable
per Share Outstanding Vested for Grant
January 1, 2004 ..o $3.30-$30.00 5,588,832 2,469,595 353,358
Increase in shares aROTIZEd ... eeee e e s e s s eeereeeees — — -— 1,000,000
GRANTE .ottt ee e et ane 4.51-10.81 1,025,000 —  {4,025,000)
VESIEA. ... ot ettt et enes — — 1,087,998 _
EXOICISEA ..ottt r e e e 01-938  (2,220,674)  (2,220,674) —
Canceledfforfeited ... e .83-30.00 (795,148) (615,898) 268,725
Restricted stock and units granted out of option plans....................... — — — (289,500)
Issuance of inducement StOCK OPLIONS ....oocovvieiinice e, 6.42-7.09 799,000 — —_
Assumption of GXT Stock optionS........cooveeeevecniiniesniresce e 01499 _2.916,590 2,916,550 —
December 31, 2004 ......ooiiiieceeccrv e ettt 1.73-30.00 7,313,600 3,637,611 307,583
Increase in shares authorized ... e — — — 1,600,600
Granted ... ..o e s 5.94-832 1,155,500 —  (1,155,500)
VBSIEA. ettt a e et e e s n et nns st e te e te e s — — 1,320,345 —
EXEITISE oottt ettt en e 1.73-8.32 {599,648) (599,648) —
Canceled/forfeited ..o 3.30-21.75 (877,325) (219,850) 325,499
Restricted stock and units granted out of option plans............c.c.co... — — — (603,000)
Issuance of inducement stock OPLIONS .....cvvveiiiiviiciiirecee e 6.49 55,000 — —
December 31, 2005 (..o 1.73-30.00 7,047,127 4,138,458 474,582
Increase in shares authorized.........ccovviiiiioiiii e — — — 1,700,000
GTanTed ..ottt ettt eenas 7.84-10.89 1,333,500 —  (1,333,500)
VSR, ..ottt nenes — — 1,269,726 —
EXEICISEd ...oiiiiiieieeic ettt ene 1.73-11.10 {778,921) (778,921) —
Cancelled/forfeited ............ooooo i 1.73-29.63 {777,058) (293,676) 457,704
Restricted stock granted out of option plans .........ccoeeeviviiecccivnrronnn — -— — {602.500)
December 31,2006 ..... ..ot $1.73-330.00 6,824,648 _4,335587 _ 696,286
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Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:

Weighted

Averape Exercise Weighted Weighted

Price of Average Average Exercise

Outstanding Remaining Price of Vested
Option Price per Share Outstanding Options Contract Life Vested Options
$ LT3 =839 600,752 $ 2.66 4.6 519,093 § 255
394 — TS 3,666,596 $ 638 6.5 2,642,360 $ 615
T80 — 1178 e, 2,357,000 $ 992 7.8 973,834 § 990
FETO — 1570 e, 8,400 $ 1254 39 8,400 § 12.55
1571 — 19,83 s 13,400 $ 18.21 0.6 13,400 £ 18.21
1964 — 2355 e 157,300 $ 21.75 1.0 157,300 § 21.75
2356 — 2748 ..o 11,000 $ 24.63 1.1 11,000 § 24.63
2748 —30.00. o 10,200 § 30.00 0.8 10.200 $ 30.00
TOLAlS ..ot 6,824,648 § 772 6.6 4,335,587 $ 7.28

Additional information related to the Company’s stock options is as follows:

Weighted Average
Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Contractual Life in Intrinsic
Number of Shares Exercise Price Value Years Value (000°s)
Total outstanding at January 1,
2006 .....ocoiueiiiniii 7,047,127 $ 741 6.3
Options granted ..o 1,333,500 $ 990 $ 4.51
Options exercised .......ocoovvmnne. (778,921) $ 497
Options cancelled..........ccccoee.n. (293,676) $ 1722
Options forfeited .....cccooeenennne (483,382) $ 744
Total outstanding at December 31,
2000 .o 6,824,648 £ 772 6.6 $ 40,321
Options exercisable and vested at
December 31, 2006 .................... 4,335,587 § 7.28 5.4 § 27,542

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was 36.5
million, $2.3 million, and $14.3 million, respectively. Cash received from option exercises under all share-based payment
arrangements for the tweive months ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $4.4 million. The weighted average grant date fair
value for stock options awards granted during the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $4.51, $4.00, and
$4.55 per share, respectively.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plans

The Company has adopted restricted stock plans which provide for the award of up to 300,000 shares of common stock to key
officers and employees. In addition, the Company has issued restricted stock and restricted stock units under the Company’s 2004
Long-Term Incentive Plan, 2000 Restricted Stock Plan, 1998 Restricted Stock Plan and other applicable plans. The plans provides for
the award of stock options, share appreciation rights, deferred shares, restricted stock and restricted stock units. Restricted stock units
are awards that obligate the Company to issue a specific number of shares of common stock in the future if continued service vesting
requirements are met. Non-forfeitable ownership of the common stock will vest over a period as determined by the Company in its
sole discretion, which is generally in equal annual installments over a three-year period. Shares of restricted stock awarded may not be
sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered by the grantee during the vesting period. Except for these restrictions,
the grantee of an award of shares of restricted stock has all the rights of a common stockholder, including the right to receive
dividends on and the right to vote such shares.

The status of the Company’s restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards for the year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Number of Shares/Units

Total nonvested at January 1, 2006
L e 11<1 IO OGO OO OO S UUP N




At December 31, 2006, the intrinsic value of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards was approximately $15.1 million.
The weighted average grant date fair value for restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards granted during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $9.83, $7.33, and $9.57 per share. The total fair value of shares vested during the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $2.6 million, $1.1 million, and $0.4 miliion, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In April 1997, the Company adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), which allows all eligible employees to authorize
payroll deductions at a rate of 1% to 15% of base compensation for the purchase of the Company’s common stock. The purchase price
of the common stock will be the lesser of 85% of the closing price on the first day of the applicable offering period (or most recently
preceding trading day) or 85% of the closing price on the last day of the offering period (or most recently preceding trading day). Each
offering period is six months and commences on January 1 and July 1 of each year. The ESPP is considered a compensatory plan
under SFAS 123R. Therefore, the Company recorded compensation expense of approximately $0.3 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006. The expense represents the estimated fair value of the look-back purchase option. The fair value was determined
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and is recognized over the purchase period. There were 113,582, 130,200, and 82,615
shares purchased by employees during the years ended December 31, 2006, 20035, and 2004, respectively.

Impact of the Adoption of SFAS 123R and Pro Forma Information

Stock-based compensation expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 was $6.1 million before the $(0.4) million
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle resulting from the adoption of SFAS 123R. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company
accounted for equity-based compensation using the intrinsic method prescribed in APB Opinion No. 25. As required by SFAS 123R,
the effect on net income (loss) and eamnings per share of stock-based compensation, including stock options, that would have been
recorded using the fair value based method for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, is as follows (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Years Ended December 31

2005 2004

Net income (loss) applicable t0 cOmMMON ShareS........coccvveeeive e $ 17,144 § (86i4)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income (loss) .................. 2,500 1,720
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value methods for all

AWEALAS ..ottt e sh e e s e a bRt e bR SRR R b s (5.685) (5,040)
Pro forma net income (loss} applicable to common Shares.........c.ccevvieninii e $ 13959 11,934
Basic net income (loss) per share — as reported ..o 5 022 5013
Pro forma basic net income (1055} per cOMMON ShAre ..ot § 018 $__(0.18)
Diluted net income (1085) per Share — as rePOMEd ....o.ooviiiiiioeiie ek eb bbb s b seans $ 021 $ (013
Pro forma basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share..............oooiiniiieninicsiincnnin $§ 017 $ (0.18)

SFAS 123R requires tax benefits relating to excess stock-based compensation deductions to be prospectively presented in the
Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows as financing cash inflows. As the Company has net operating loss carryforwards
available to be utilized to reduce its income taxes payable, no benefit has been realized from any excess tax deductions during the year
ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $10.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to all nonvested
stock options, nonvested restricted stock, and restricted stock units issued subsequent to December 31, 2005. These costs will be
recognized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average vesting period of 2.8 years. Unrecognized compensation cost at December
31, 2006 of $1.1 million relating to nonvested restricted stock and restricted stock units granted prior to January 1, 2006 will continue
to be amortized using the accelerated method, over a weighted-average vesting period of 1.5 years.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the intrinsic value of restricted stock was recorded as unamortized restricted stock

compensation, Upon the adoption of SFAS 123R, the unamortized restricted stock compensation balance of approximately $3.8
million was reclassified to additional paid-in capital.
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Valuation Assumptions

The Company calculated the fair value of each option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The following assumptions were used for each respective period:

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
RiISK-free INEreSt FAtES ...ovivviiietiiceceeieie it sar s srevs s s e eserereseas 4.27%-5.24% 3.58% -4.56% 2.65%-4.10%
Expected lives (10 YEAIS) oo e 4.5 5.0 5.0
Expected dividend yield...........ooo oo 0% 0% 0%
ExXpected VOIAHTILY ... cecvivsercevniarserses e eresaeneesssssessessarnessersssssens 47.50% - 52.79% 60% 60%

The computation of expected volatility during the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 was based on an equally weighted
combination of historical volatility and market-based implied volatility. Historical volatility was calculated from historical data for a
period of time approximately equal to the expected term of the option award, starting from the date of grant. Market-based implied
volatility was derived from traded options on the Company’s common stock having a term of six months. Prior to 2006, the
Company’s computation of expected volatility was based on historical volatility using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
Company’s computation of expected life in 2006 was determined based on historical experience of similar awards, giving
consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules, and expectations of future employee behavior.
The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods
corresponding with the expected life of the option.

(14) Segment and Geegraphic Information

The Company evaluates and reviews results based on four segments (Land Imaging Systems, Marine Imaging Systems, Data
Management Solutions, and Seismic Imaging Solutions) to altow for increased visibility and accountability of costs and more focused
customer service and product development. The Company measures segment operating results based on income (loss) from
operations.

A summary of segment information for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Net revenues:
Land IMaging SYSIEMS ..c.oviriviiierecceeieiete ettt enss s st et essenesesnasssase s $ 205,779 § 155,172 § 126,041
Marine IMaging SYSIEIMIS....oooiii ettt e ee e ee et e s er e e e enee e e e emeenes 127,927 69,604 54,680
Data Management SOIUHONS ... e 23,198 15,966 14,797
Seismic IMaging SOIUHONS .....ovve st s s 146,652 121,940 44,015
Corporate and OthET ... ... — — 1,108
TOAL ottt et $_503,556 $_362,682 §$ 240641
Income (loss) from operations:
Land IMaging SYSIEITS ....c.ocveieeriieeiee et sereeesteseesesrese e esesre e e saeseeseebesee e esesesmnnsennnnns $ 13463 § 18413 5§ 17,643
Marine Imaging SyStEImIS. ..ottt e 30,258 15,895 4,596
Data Management SoIUtIoNS ..o et eee e e 7.461 3,430 3,200
Seismic IMaging SOIUHONS ... erennrreeerees e s ersresssreesesresesaseseess 28,648 15,265 (8,003)
Corporate and OTHET ... e (39,882) _ (28.387) _ (20.614)
LY OO § 39948 § 24616 § (3,178)
Depreciation and amortization:
Land Imaging SYSIBINS .....c.ccoriiriiiirrecre s s srsn e et es £ 251 § 2,120 § 3,028
Marine Imaging SyStemS........ccuciviiiiiiiininiii i 825 2,295 1,964
Data Management SoIUtions ..o 2,896 2,647 1,946
Seismic Imaging Solutions. ... s s 38,677 24,540 13,753
Corporate and OthET ... e bbb 2,088 2,602 3.524

17 1 O O SO TS S OO UUU U OUT T OTOBIPON $ 47,047 § 34204 § 24215




December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
Total assets:
Land Imaging SYSIEMS .....cccouerimiiiiiiiii s e st e e $ 185,210 $ 140,148
Marine Imaging SyStemS...cccciiiiiiiii e e s 120,898 92,920
Data Management SOLUIONS ...t et 59,788 54,281
Seismic Imaging SOIUtIONS . ... s e 246,235 219,151
Corporate and OTRET ...t st ettt s 43,005 31.361
TOLAL 1t evvevemissescrrmiraeeeesreeesesesessrasesasssnsaasseseanbaseasbebe e saea e e ea e ee et e et ne e e e ne e e s et et e et she et et e e 3 655,136 $_537.861

Total assets by geographic area:
December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
INOTER ATIETICH - ettt eeat s et e e eat s s te s saateanbe s saasasabe s sssssosbsestensnnersnbeasaneesnses $ 548,679 S 442,170
AT+ o3 O PO PO SOOI 89,137 74,230
IMIAALE BASE ...ttt e e e e e et eeeeee e e st ses et st e bababa e s saaesasbs s seeeeaesrnrnanas 15,273 19,927
BT, cuserereiese sttt e e e et et e it et e s e e et e e et eeeee e e tneeteaeeeaaatnretaeeoeiebatabebaeeseaeiebtatae e e aaberaraeeaaas 2.047 1.534
TOTAL 1o eeee oo ee v v e te e e s s st s st sttt bbb e b s s s e sese st s s s s sssenesses et e s annsesamemeseesnsnessssebanarasnte s s es $. 655136 § 537,861

Intersegment sales are insignificant for all periods presented. Corporate assets include all assets specifically related to corporate
personnel and operations, a majority of cash and cash equivalents, and all facilities that are jointly utilized by segments. Depreciation
and amortization expense is allocated to segments based upon use of the underlying assets.

A summary of net revenues by geographic area follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
INOTER ATNETICA ovvveiceiitieiies sttt st eascsttsnasbessbeasrassressresntesneasrtssreesnsennssanssassenestesnsasnsaanseans $ 162261 § 113,706 § 61,840
IMIAIE BASL. ..ottt b ettt et s et e e s baasabeeebsassbbessssassssssarnenrnnesns 51,796 38,284 16,868
EUTOPE ..tivietett et eatarers et st et et ittt es et ets et e bt et ab e e b e b e bt b et e s e b e e s nb e n s s e b e ne s b n e sn s a e nens 119,398 91,699 45,054
ASIA PACITIC oot ottt et e ettt e e ettt a e e sttt s s stas s snbmeean s besnsnntes s s srbrerarsenarans 86,245 47.339 53,352
Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) ..o, 37,283 12,605 26,092
LATIN AINIETICA «oeieieeriisceieeeessee e e sttt e s ette e s s et tesssbeessasmeesssssesesasnsens s snseerraretesnsnsnsesansnananssseenssen 15,267 12,860 13,681
PN a1 T 11t 5 11 2 SO SR PPPPPIOt 31,306 46.189 23.754
TOAL. ..ot kbbbt 3 503,556 $_362,682 § 240,641

Net revenues are attributed to geographical locations on the basis of the ultimate destination of the equipment or service, if known,
or the geographical area imaging services are provided. If the ultimate destination of such equipment is not known, net revenues are
attributed to the geographical location of initial shipment.

(15) Income Taxes

The sources of income (loss) before income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
DIOMMESHIC ¢ vt eeeece ettt ettt et oo s ese e sbee s b ebas e saa s e b nRe e s a s st s bt e e e s $ 26,539 $ 14,715 § (13,980)
FOT@IBIL. ettt ettt bkt s b bbb b ek s e s e R s e nr e r e es e ner s 7.518 5,430 6,067
TOMAL .ottt bbb bbb bR b e s $_34,057 § 20,145 §__(7,913)

Components of income taxes follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Current:
FACTAL ..ottt ettt sar st sttt st r et ete et s st s st s sat et e st ate st s ase st s es e sasaeesesaeansesrererrerbennararntens 3 687 § 399 § —
At AN 10CAL ..ot a et a e ettt aa b s e e e e a b e e e s eatresnae s 1,798 (589) (21)
FOTRIEI .t ettt b bbbt s ettt et e st a bR e R b e a R nh e rar s nen e e en 3,643 2,274 1,243
DT U1 91~2 s FOTRTTUT TR RO OO O ST UP PSS (1.014) (718) (521)
TOAL INCOME LAX EXPEISE ..voveeeieeeeeeeeeieeeeeceeeeeeeesstaesesesseeseerteressnsansssasasassnsasssasesasasasssessssssssesssas $_ 5114 $ 1,366 § 701
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A reconciliation of the expected income tax expense on income (loss) before income taxes using the statutory federal income tax
rate of 35% for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004 to income tax expense is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Expected income tax expense (benefit) 4t 35%0 ...ovovvoreviriie et § 11,920 § 7.051 § (2,770)
Alternate MINUTMUML TAX ..ot ettt 687 325 —
FOTEIgN tAKES, MBL. ..ot iiiiiiiiic ittt et se bt ee et ebseb b et asce eessaesbnaba e abaasansss 2,883 1,097 (315)
Resolution of taX CONTMZENCIES ...vvavreeiriieii ettt ettt s v et s esbses et esre b s s besssbaemenens — (1,441) —
State and local AXES. ...t 1,798 (603) (221)
Deferred tax asset valuation allOWAICE. ........ooiiiiiiicee e (12,538)  (5.315) 3,686
NORAEAUCHIDLE EXPEISES .. oeeeeeieeieeet ettt etc ey e s e e e emeassensrasastersenseenansens 364 179 321
RELUIT LD PTOVISION 1...vovviveiviersirieesetersessevsessesrarsrsseesssssesmensesmnressmsssratesssnsssssssessssssssssarssssonenses — 73 —
Total INCOME TAX EXPENSE vveveviinisisisisi e seessse e e eiesssseresesssesetesasesss st s eseseseseresesesseseseasasasnsas & 5114 3 1366 § 701

The tax effects of the cumulative temporary differences resulting in the net deferred income tax asset (liability) are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
| Current deferred:
- Deferred income tax assets:
ACCTUBH EXPEISES ..o.itetitiieeeteteti it ieis et ets s s ssas e sete e s e sameeses e e s esessesese s e esesessese s s esess st e enraness $ 9528 $ 3,600
| ATOWATICE ATCOUILS .....oiieiii et ccee e e et e e et e et e et e et e s eesaeesaeesaeeseeseeseesse s e sseseenseeaneanseennens 5510 6,180
i IIVEIEOTY ...ocoeeeeeeeee et ee ettt tetetet et e e se s e s ee e en e et esese s as s s s s st setet et et ebebese e e ensnenenssarnssasons 860 630
Total current deferred INCOME tAX ASSCE...uvviiiicie it ssr e s s e s st e s s rrrrr s s srbrsrsrssrese e 15,898 10,410
VAlUATION AlIOWANCE ... cvviis e eis e re et e sare e rar s e ere e be s b sebeebbeabbsebbesbssassessassssnanes (13.152) (8.930)
Net current deferred iNCOME TAX @SSEL......uiiiieieeeiiei i ceiie i s esieee st e s sreeas s sb e s e seatesesbbesessstbesssbasassnns 2.746 1,480
Deferred income tax liabilities:
NIl TECEIVADLES oot ee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (8,655) (4.663)
Net current deferred income tax Hability ..o e § (5909 § (3,183
INONCUITENT AEFEITEA: o ettt e s e s e e s e b e e s et e e s sastbessbsbaessabessesassbassabansesnans
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating 10ss carryforward .........o.ooiiiiiiiiii e e e § 49,430 $ 58995
Basis in research and development ............ccoviiiiini e e 21,890 19,068
L 10 1 =t JA 1 1= SO RSOOSR RR 4.505 3,696
Total deferred INCOME tAX ASSEL .....eiieiiieiiieie et ectee e eee e e e e e e e e eaeeneeaeeeseeeseeebeebeebeeasesaeesaeeenin 75,825 81,759
ValUation @QllOWAICE ........occvviirviie e s e eeeitrrsterrsesssernssmestasasasntesntesntesntesnsesnsernsernsesnssresnrsenrens (63,172) (69,930)
Net non-current deferred INCOME tAX ASSEL ..ovviiiciieciieiie et sn s e e se s sassnssanens 12,653 11.829
Deferred income tax Habilities: ...t e s e e e e e e s e emneas
Basis in identified intangibles ... e sanes (10,581) (12,621)
Basis in property, plant and equUIPMENt .. ... s (17 (329)
Net non-current deferred income tax asset (Hability) .......ooooooieiieeiioiccee e $ 2055 $ (1,121)

During 2006, the Company performed a detailed review of the components of deferred tax assets and liabilities, including the
impact of an amended U.S. federal tax return. As a result, additional deferred tax assets of $10.0 million and valuation allowance were
identified. This did not impact tax expense.

In 2002, the Company established a valuation allowance for substantially all of its deferred tax assets. Since that time, the
Company has continued to record a valuation allowance. The valuation allowance was calculated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes, " which requires that a valuation allowance be established or maintained when it is “more
than likely than not” that all or a portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company will continue to reserve for
substantially all net deferred tax assets until there is sufficient evidence to warrant reversal. At December 31, 2006, the Company had
net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately 3143 million, which expire from 2018 through 2023. Included in the total net
operating loss carryforward are approximately $24.3 million related to acquired net operating losses. The future tax benefits of such
losses, if utilized, will be reflected as reductions in goodwill of the acquired companies.




United States income taxes have not been provided on the cumulative undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries as it is the Company’s intention to reinvest such earnings indefinitety. These foreign eamings could become subject to
additional tax if remitted, or decmed remitted, to the United States as a dividend; however, it is not practicable to estimate the
additional amount of taxes payabie.

During 2004, the Company tecorded $52.9 million and $21.4 million as identifiable intangible assets related to its purchase of
GXT and Concept Systems, respectively. These intangible assets are not deductible for federal income taxes. The deferred tax liability
related to the GXT intangibles, along with a related reduction in the valuation allowance, is included in the December 31, 2006 and
2005 deferred tax balances. The net deferred income tax liability of $4.1 million and $4.3 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, primarily relates to the acquired intangible assets of Concept Systems.

{16) Operating Leases

Lessee. The Company leases certain equipment, offices, and warchouse space under non-cancelable operating leases. Rental
expense was $9.1 million, $7.0 million, and $3.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

A summary of future rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases is as follows (in thousands}):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 e R e bR e RN e AR AR e R e s s e e s b et re e e s rn 5 8969
2008 e e e e e e R b e me Rt SRR TR R eSS Re e n e na e et re e rern 7,498
200D ettt b e h e e A R b eE bR eb b bRt bbb e et s 444 £ 44 e At R EE e A e R e A e R e e bRt et re s 7,377
ZOT0 et e e AR A SRR R A A bR e bt eSS oAt s £ et £ £ aeeRe e A e e e Reneeaer bt r e rares 7,363
20T e bbb bAoAt b e b A b et ket S 44284444t s oA ba ek saa bk s Rt R ket b e ks ebea bt s babrararaes 6.529
TOMAL ... ekt ekt h e ae et ek b e R e b e b ehe e b e b e s £ daa b eRe b e be b e b et e ent et et ehbrbe s asbe s ias § 37,736

Lessor. The Company leases seismic equipment to customers under month-to-month operating leases. At December 31, 2006, the
total cost of equipment leased or held for lease was $6.9 million, less accumulated depreciation of $2.9 million. The Company also
leases under-utilized facilities under various lease and sub-lease agreements. A summary of lease revenues is as follows (in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
EQUIPMENT TENTAL ..vevvviiveet ettt ettt ee e ee e s e e enenseteen e s ssseessnnse e esensennnsens $ 3,071 % 4500 § 4,984
FaCility TEMAL...oi e ettt e sn e s e s s s be b b emee e mene 1.228 1,375 1,749
TOAL TEIEAIS ..ottt sttt ettt eeeteem it em e et s eme e er e e e ee e et oo e e eesee e 5 4299 § 5875 § 6,733
A summary of future minimum non-cancelable sublease income is as foltows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

L OO OO OO U O 5§ 844
1 SO OO 536
2009 e e et e e e et e e — e e —_taeateeateeaaaseeeateareeeaateeinsaanteeatetaantteeteenaaeeareeeaateeataeaeeeintaenrasannean 534
20 et e e e e e ae e e eteeteee i teeteeeiaateeatesiseesasaeeesseateanaete it e eateteratsanr et e b e aatee et eaates st eantes 80
ZOTT ottt ettt te e et eete e e ea e e et e e ee e ae e saeeeaeeesateenteee s ateentesontaensaentaeseeasetaeasseeaes e et eeateeeeateranteenanteiareennresnres 43
TOMAL ettt ettt ettt ettt eh et et et e et et e st et e et et eeteete et et eeatereeare s tereantetent et e et ernearesate e entereanaserenrenrsnaeseentennen $ 2,037

(17) Benefit Plans

401¢k). The Company has a 401(k) retirement savings plan which covers substantially all employees. Employees may voluntarily
contribute up to 60% of their compensation, as defined, to the plan. The Company, effective June 1, 2000, adopted a company
matching contribution to the 401(k) plan. The Company matches the employee contribution at a rate of 50% of the first 6% of
compensation contributed to the plan. GXT had a 401(k) retirement savings plan that had terms similar to the Company’s existing
plan. Effective January 1, 2005, the GXT plan was merged together with the plan of the Company, Company contributions to the
plans were $1.2 million, $1.0 million, and $1.3 million, during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Supplemental executive retirement plan. The Company previously had a non-qualified, supplementat executive retirement plan
(SERP). The SERP provided for certain compensation to become payable on the participants’ death, retirement or total disability as
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set forth in the plan. The only remaining obligations under this plan are the scheduled benefit payments to the spouse of a deceased
former executive. The present value of the expected obligation to the spouse has been provided for in the Company’s balance sheet.

{18) Legal Matters

In October 2002, the Company filed a lawsuit against Paulsson Geophysical Services, Inc. (PGSI) and its then-owner in the 286th
District Court for Fort Bend County, Texas, seeking recovery of approximately $0.7 million that was unpaid and due to the Company
resulting from the sale of a custom-built product that PGSI had asked the Company to construct in 2001. After the Company filed suit
to recover the PGSI receivable, PGSI alleged that the delivered custom product was defective and counter-claimed against the
Company, asserting breach of contract, breach of warranty, and other related causes of action. The case was initially tried to a jury
during May 2004. The jury returned a verdict in June 2004, the results of which would not have supported a judgment awarding
damages to either the Company or the defendants. In August 2004, the presiding judge overruled the jury verdict and ordered a new
trial. The new trial commenced in March 2006 and the jury in the new trial returned a verdict in April 2006 finding that both parties
had breached their contract but that PGSI did not suffer any damages in connection with the Company’s breach. In September 2006,
the Court issued a final judgment awarding the Company $732,074 in damages on its breach of contract claim, $365,000 in attorneys’
fees, $166,431 in prejudgment interest, plus post-judgment interest and recoverable legal costs, while issuing a take-nothing judgment
against PGSI. PGSI did not appeal the judgment. On December 22, 2006, the judgment became final, nonappealable and binding on
both the Company and PGSI. In December 2006, PGS and its current majority owner confirmed to the Company their intention to pay
the judgment in full. As a result, the Comparly recorded the benefit of $1.3 million as a credit to its legal expenses (general and
administrative expenses) during the fourth quarter of 2006.

The Company has been named in various lawsuits or threatened actions that are incidental to its ordinary business. Such lawsuits
and actions could increase in number as the Company’s business expands and the Company grows larger. Litigation is inherently
unpredictable. Any claims against the Company, whether meritorious or not, could be time consuming, cause the Company to incur
costs and expenses, require significant amounts of management time, and result in the diversion of significant operational resources.
The results of these lawsuits and actions cannot be predicted with certainty. Management currently believes that the ultimate
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of the
Company.

(19) Selected Quarterly Information — (Unaudited)

A summary of selected quarterly information is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, 2006 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
PrOTQUCE TEVEIUES.....ocoviviviisisessessesresreresreseesentesnesessesesmsssesessessessssesnesensass $ 65649 § 92829 § 76,824 % 118956
SEIVICE TEVETIUES ....vveveeeieeitesirecesseasseeseesseesseeneesmeesneerneenssressssassessanasans 20,700 48.162 33,149 47,287
TOtal NEL TEVEIMUES ..eivvviiiiiriiirasenssreessnrsssrrerreessresre soncssssessnessssessnsesn 86,349 140,991 109,973 166,243

GTOSS PIOTI ..ottt cr e s s s 23,762 46,958 33,013 50,482
Income (10ss) from OPErations ..........ccccvmminiiicrireisse e (1,127) 17,393 6,453 17,229
INLEESE EXPEINSE .ooviiirereiiercriinieniainssisne s s v e s e s e neanas (1,399) (1,426) (1,484) (1,461)
Interest and other INCOMNE....ovvv i iieree e 301 {36) (57 (329)
INCOME [AX EXPENSE . ..vevereeeiererrenirrseesieeessseseaseaseserennsnsesnsssnsesnsnserconsssores 942 971 1,419 1,782
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .........ccoovevinenns 398 — — —
Preferred stock dividends and accretion ..., 565 600 636 628
Net income (loss) applicable to common Shares...........c.cnnn, § (3334) 8 14360 $ 2857 3§ _ 13,029
Net income (loss) per basic share before change in accounting

PLCIPIE .ottt $ (005 5 0.18 § 004 3 0.16
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... 0.01 p— — —
Net income (10ss) per basic SHATe ........o-cooeeeoereieeeee e $ (004 S 018 $ 004 § 016
Net income {loss) per diluted share before change in accounting

PLRCIPLE .ottt et bbb $ (005 % 0.16 3 004 § 0.15
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... 0.01 — — —
Net income (loss) per diluted Share ..o, § - (004 3 0.i6 3 004 § 0.15
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Three Maonths Ended

Year Ended December 31, 2005 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
ProdUCT TEVEIUES. ...vviieveae et it eererret et er b arstess sttt sassssbsstesnsanbsasssaasaaes $ 44,123 § 57,148 $ 58,371 8 77
SEIVICE TEVEIIUES ... ovveiiuiiieieeeeeee et eetssetnteeeeesae s s abtaaateseenreeesseesasaasbbeeesbennes 17,919 33.019 21,137 53,248
TOtAl NET FEVEIMUES .vvveeeeeeeee ettt eee st e e et ee e e e ee e eataaas s sannee s 62,042 90,167 79,508 130,965
GOS8 PIOTTE. oottt e r et a e e anea 10,875 27,963 23,825 43,712
Income (1088} from OPErations ........cocoeioeiiessiiee e (7,467) 9,087 5,018 17,978
INTETESE EXPEIISE .1viieeeieeerirsiirssaeseeas e et s erresbrerceemeemeene e s e asseaeeemeeameeanenans (1,744) (1,615) (1,367 (1,408)
Interest and Other IMCOME............ocoeoeeeeeevrs et e e s e e e e e e eeaeenens 112 217 214 1,120
Income tax expense (benefit) ... (1,215) 363 650 1,568
Preferred stock dividends and acCTeHON .......covivevreriiiiiiiriisresinenesnenianes 194 422 488 531
Net income (loss) applicable to common shares........cocooevr v 3 (8078)% 6904 § 2727 5 15591
Net income {loss) per basic Share ..........ooveeeeeeveineieeeee e, § (0Ilmns 009 §_ 0.03 S 0.20
Net income (loss) per diluted share ... $ (010)s 008 § 003 $ 017

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company determined a portion of service revenues had been previously reported as product
revenues during the first three quarters of 2006 and 2005. The Company has reclassified these into service revenues, with no impact
on total revenues for any reported period.

(20) Related Parties

Mr. James M. Lapeyre, Jr. is the chairman and a significant equity owner of Laitram, L.L.C. (Laitram) and has served as president
of Laitram and its predecessors since 1989. Laitram is a privately owned, New Orleans-based manufacturer of food processing
equipment and modular conveyor belts. Mr. Lapeyre and Laitram together owned approximately 11.5% of the Company’s outstanding
common stock as of February 20, 2007.

The Company acquired DigiCourse, Inc., the Company’s marine positioning products business, from Laitram in 1998 and renamed
it I[/0 Marine Systems, Inc. In connection with that acquisition, the Company entered into a Continued Services Agreement with
Laitram under which Laitram agreed to provide the Company certain accounting, software, manufacturing, and maintenance services.
Manufacturing services consist primarily of machining of parts for the Company’s marine positioning systems. The term of this
agreement expired in Septermber 2001 but the Company continues to operate under its terms. In addition, when the Company requests,
the tegal staff of Laitram advises the Company on certain intellectual property matters with regard to the Company’s marine
positioning systems. Under a lease of Commercial Property dated February 1, 2006, between Laitram and /0, the Company agreed to
lease certain office and warehouse space from Laitram until January 2011. During 2006, the Company paid Laitram a total of
approximately $3.6 million, which consisted of approximately $2.7 million for manufacturing services, $0.8 million for rent and other
pass-through third party facilities charges, and $0.1 million for other services. For the 2005 and 2004 fiscal years, the Company paid
Laitram a total of approximately $2.7 million and $1.8 million, respectively, for these services. In the opinion of the Company’s
management, the terms of these services are fair and reasonable and as favorable to the Company as those that could have been
obtained from unrelated third parties at the time of their performance.
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ROBERT P, PEEBLER
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R. BRIAN HANSON

Exacutive Vice Prasident
and Chief Financial Officer

JAMES R. (JIM} HOLLIS

Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer, I/O Solutions

CHRIS M. FRIEDEMANN
Senior Vice President, Corporate Marketing

DAVID L. ROLAND

Senior Vice President, General Counsel,
and Corporate Sacretary

MICHAEL L. MORRISON

Vice President, Corporate Controller,
and Chief Accounting Officer

board of WAECTORS

JAMES M. (JAY} LAPEYRE, JR.

Chairman of the Board
President, Laitram L.L.C.

BRUCE S. APPELBAUM, PHD

Chairman, Mosaic Natural Resources, Lid.

THEQDORE H. ELLIOTT, JR.
Chairman, Prime Capital Management Co., Inc.

FRANKLIN MYERS

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Cameron International Corporation

S. JAMES NELSON, JR.

Retired Vice Chairman, Cal Dive International, Inc.
{now Helex Energy Systems)

ROBERT P. PEEBLER

President and Chief Executive Officer
Input/Output, Inc.

JOHN SEITZ

Vice Chairman of the Board
Endeavour International Corporation

SAM K, SMITH

Consultant, Private Investments

inugstor AELRTIONS

Shareholders, securities analysts, portfolio managers,

or brokers seeking information about the Company are
welcome io call Investor Relations at 281.933.3339.

If you prefer, you may send your requests to the Investor
Relations email address: ir@i-0.com. Recent naws
releases, financial information, and SEC filings can be
downloaded from the Company's website at www.i-o.com.

annual report on FORM 10-K

Input/Output’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 20086, although
furnished as an integral part of this Annual Report to
Shareholders, is also available upon request without
charge from;

Input/Quiput, Ing,

Attn: Investor Relations

2101 CityWest Blvd., Building I, Suite 400
Houston, Texas 77042

annuat MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of nput/Qutput, Ins.,
will be held at the offices of GX Technology, located at
2101 CityWest Blvd., Building 111, Suite 800, Houston,
Texas, on May 21, 2007, at :30 PM CST.

stock TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare Investor Service
2 North LaSalle St.

Chicago, Winois 80602
312.588.4901

independent RUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP

5 Houston Center
Suite 1200

1401 McKinney St.
Houston, Texas 77010
713.750.1500

cea & cfo CERTIFICATES

The Company has included as Exhibit 31 to its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 20086, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, certificates of the Chief Exacutive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company certifying

the quality of the Company’s public disclosure, and

the Company has submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company certifying that he is not aware of any violation
by the Company of the New York Stock Exchange corporate
governance listing standards.

stotement for purpose of
FORWAAD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information included herein contains certain forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Secunties
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934, These forward-looking statements include statements
concerning expected future financial positions, segment sales,
results of operations, cash flows, funds from operations, financing
plans, gross margins, business strategy, budgets, projected
costs and expenses, capital expenditures, competitive position,
product offerings, technology developments, access to capital
and growth opportunities, future sales and market growth, and
other statements that are not of historical fact. Actual results may
vary materialty from those described in these forward-looking
statements. All forward-looking statements reflect numerous
assumptions and involve a number of risks and uncertainties,
These risks and uncertainties include the fiming and development
of the Company's products and services and market acceptance
of the Campany’s new and revised product offerings; risks
associated with competitor's product offerings and pricing
prassuras resulting therefrom; the relatively small number of
customers that the Company currently relies upon; the fact that

a significant portion of the Company’s revenues is derived from
foraign sales; the Company’s ability to successfully manage the
integration of its acquisitions into the Company's operations;

the risks that sources of capital may not prove adequate; the
Company's inability to produce products to preserve and increase
market share; collection of receivables; and technological and
marketplace changes affecting the Company's product lime.
Additional risk factors, which could affect actual results, are
disclosed by the Company from time to time in its filings with

the Securities and [Zxchange Commission, including its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
information contained herein includes references to trademarks,
sarvice marks, and registered marks of input/QOutput and our
subsidiazies, as indicated. Except where stated otherwise or
unless the context ctherwise requires, the terms “DigiCOURSE,”
“FireFly," “Gator," *Orca,” “Scorpion,” *System Four,” and
"VactorSeis" refer to our DigiCOURSE® FireFly* Gator® Orca®
Scorpion® System Four®and VectorSeis® registered marks,

and the terms “ArcticSPAN,” “Autobahn,” “BasinSPAN,"
“Connex,” “DigiFIN,” "GulfSPAN," and “IndiaSPAN" refer to

our ArcticSPAN.™ Autobahn,™ BasinSPAN.™ Connex.” DigiFIN.™
GulfSPAN™ and IndiaSPAN™ trademarks and service marks.
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